3

V.

For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!



http://www.adobe.com/go/reader


112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

GOVERNMENTAL BODY: Carroll City Council
DATE OF MEETING: June 26,2017
TIME OF MEETING: 5:15P.M.
LOCATION OF MEETING: City Hall Council Chambers

www.cityofcarroll.com

AGENDA

I. Pledge of Allegiance
II. Roli Call
III. Consent Agenda
A. Approval of Minutes of the June 12 Meeting
B. Approval of Bills and Claims
C. Licenses and Permits:
None
D. Cigarette Permits
IV. Oral Requests and Communications from the Audience
V. Ordinances
A. Residential Solid Waste Hauling Agreement and Amendments to the City Code related to Solid
Waste Regulation and Fees
1. Consider Approval of a Resolution Approving a new Residential Solid Waste Hauling
Agreement
2. Consider Approving the First Reading of an Ordinance Pertaining to Waste Storage
Containers and Solid Waste Collection Fees along with Waving the Second and Third
Reading and Moving Final Adoption of said Ordinance
VI. Resolutions
A. Down Payment Assistance - Satisfaction of Forgivable Mortgages
B. Downtown Streetscape Phase 8 — Supplemental Services Agreement #3
VII. Reports
A. High Ridge Road HMA Resurfacing — Statement of Completion and Final Acceptance of Work
B. Report of Bid Opening — 72” Front Mount Mower — Golf Course






C. Community Video Collaboration with Daily Times Herald
D. Timberline Road and Hidden Valley Road
E. Sidewalk Repair Program
VIII. Committee Reports
IX. Monthly Activity Reports
X. Comments from the Mayor
XI. Comments from the City Council
XII.  Work Session
A. Housing
XIII.  Adjourn

July/August Meetings:
Board of Adjustment — July 3, 2017
City Council — July 10, 2017
Airport Commission — July 10, 2017
Planning and Zoning Commission — July 12, 2017
Library Board of Trustees — July 17, 2017
Parks, Recreation and Cultural Advisory Board — July 17, 2017
City Council — July 24, 2017
Board of Adjustment — August 7, 2017
Planning and Zoning Commission — August 9, 2017
City Council — August 14, 2017
Airport Commission — August 14, 2017
Library Board of Trustees — August 21, 2017
City Council — August 28, 2017

www.cityofcarroll.com

disabilities, please notify us at least three business days in advance when possible at

t The City of Carroll will make every attempt to accommodate the needs of persons with
L/ 712-792-1000, should special accommodations be required.







06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 1
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll CPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME -~--- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-001704 ACCO POOL CHEMICALS 2,459.76 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,459.76
01-001704 ACCO LADDER STEPS 525.10 0.00 000000 0/00/00 525.10
01-001704 ACCO POOL SUPPLIES 213.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 213.50
01-001704 ACCO POOL CHEMICALS 1,614.60 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,614.60
** TOTALS =** 4,812.96 0.00 4,812.96
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE PARTS RETURNED 1.10- 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1.10-
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE CONCRETE MIX 11.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 11.99
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE CABLE TIES 8.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 8.99
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 8.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 8.98
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 37.46 0.00 000000 0/00/00 37.46
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE REPAIR PARTS 14.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 14.99
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE REPAIR PARTS 3.49 0.00 . 000000 0/00/00 3.49°
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 25.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 '25.98
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 50.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 50.96
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE CLEANING SUPPLIES 9.99 0.00 000000 - "0/00/00 - 9.99
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 42.97 0.00 000000 0/00/00 42.97
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE REPAIR PARTS 5.48 0.00 000000 0/00/00 5.48
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE REPAIR PARTS 30.90 0.00 000000 0/00/00 : 30.90
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 7.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 7.98
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE KEYS . 17.88 0.00 000000 0/00/00 17.88
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE POOL UMBRELLA REPAIRS 1.99 0.00 000000 ©0/00/00 1.99
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 10.98 0.00° 000000 0Q/00/00 10.98
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE CLEANER 13.98 0.00 000000 -0/00/00 13.98
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 27.25 0.00 000000 0/00/00 ' 27.25
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 100.94 0.00 000000 0/00/00 100.94
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 45.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 45.96
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE KEYS 8.94 0.00 000000 0/00/00 8.94
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 56.97 0.00 000000 0/00/00 56.97
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE BLEACH 6.49 0.00 000000 0/00/00 6.49
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 4.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4.98
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE VACUUM REPAIRS 35.77 0.00 000000 0/00/00 35.77
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE POCL BRUSH 13.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 13.99
01-001621 ACE HEARDWARE SUPPLIES 51.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 51.98
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SPRAY PAINT 12.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 12.00
01-001621 ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 6.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 6.99
*% TOTALS ** 676.15 0.00 676.15
01-001583 ADVANCE SERVICES INC. NIGHT CLEANING W/E 6/4/2017 198.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 198.00
01-001583 ADVANCE SERVICES INC. NIGHT CLEANING W/E 6/11/2017 198.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 198.00
01-001583 ADVANCE SERVICES INC. NIGHT CLEANING W/E 6/18/2017 99.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 99.00
** TOTALS *=* 495.00 0.00 495.00

01-001698 ADVANCED LASER TECHNOLOGI TONER CARTRIDGE 84 .95 84.95- 108403 6/22/17 0.00






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 2
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======1TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PATD ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-001698 ADVANCED LASER TECHNOLOGI TONER CARTRIDGE 69.95 0.00 000000 0/00/00 69.95
** TOTALS ** 154.90 84 .95- 69.95
01-002816 ALL PRO DOOR COMPANY OVERHEAD DOORS 4,900.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4,900.00
01-002816 ALL, PRO DOOR COMPANY GARAGE DOOR 1,356.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,356.00
** TOTALS ** 6,256.00 0.00 6,256.00
01-002080 AMAZON/GE MONEY BANK BOOKS AND VIDEOS 333.75 333.75- 108405 6/22/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 333.75 333.75- 0.00
01-002280 AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS APWA MEMBERSHIP DUES 320.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 320.00
*%* TOTALS *x* 320.00 0.00 320.00
01-002916 AMERICAN RED CROSS LIFEGUARDING CLASSES 700.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 700.00
01-0029216 AMERICAN RED CROCSS LIFEGUARD CLASS 210.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 210.00
01-002916 AMERICAN RED CROSS LIFEGUARD CLASS 456.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 456.00
*% TOTALS *x* 1,366.00 0.00 1,366.00
01-002370 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY FUSES FOR TRUCKS 21.61 0.00 000000 0/00/00 21.61
01-002370 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY #22 OIL PRESSURE SENSOR 42.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 42.99
** TOTALS ** 64.60 0.00 64.60
01-002258 ASCAP LICENSE FEE 341.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 341.00
** TOTALS ** 341.00 0.00 341.00
01-003086 ASHLEY SIBENALLER SUPPLIES 28.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 28.00
*% TOTALS ** 28.00 0.00 28.00
01-000852 AUTOMATIC DOOR GROUP INC. FRONT AUTO DOOR REPAIRS 415.40 0.00 000000 0/00/00 415.40
*% TOTALS ** 415.40 0.00 415.40
01-003515 BOMGAARS ROUNDUP RETURNED 59.98- 59.98 108367 6/15/17 0.00
01-003515 BOMGAARS CORE CREDIT 96.00- 0.00 000000 0/00/00 96.00-
01-003515 BOMGAARS FIELD CART AND SUPPLIES 395.73 0.00 000000 0/00/00 395.73
01-003515 BOMGAARS BB/SB STORAGE SUPPLIES 21.57 0.00 000000 0/00/00 21.57
01-003515 BOMGAARS ROUNDUP AND SUPPLIES 103.80 103.80- 108367 6/15/17 0.00
01-003515 BOMGAARS MISC SUPPLIES 14.99 14.99~ 108367 6/15/17 0.00
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 43.26 0.00 000000 0/00/00 43.26
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 3.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3.99
01-003515 BOMGARRS SUPPLIES 3.29 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3.29
01-003515 BOMGAARS NET REPLACEMENT 32.87 0.00 000000 0/00/00 32.87
01-003515 BOMGAARS OIL 23.88 0.00 000000 0/00/00 23.88
01-003515 BOMGAARS EYES/EARS PROTECTION 14.95 0.00 000000 0/00/00 14 .95
01-003515 BOMGAARS FURNACE FILTERS AND BULBS 47 .64 0.00 000000 0/00/00 47 .64






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 3
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES===m==== mm=====]TEM DATESz==z======== ======POSTING DATES=======
PATD ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR ---~ VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 28.41 0.00 000000 0/00/00 28.41
01-003515 BOMGAARS REPAIR PARTS 10.78 0.00 000000 0/00/00 10.78
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 1.69 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1.69
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES ) 5.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 5.96
01-003515 BOMGAARS BATTERIES 635.94 0.00 000000 0/00/00 635.94
01-003515 BOMGAARS PATINT MARKER 3.79 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3.79
01-003515 BOMGAARS TOOLS AND SUPPLIES 483.47 0.00 000000 0/00/00 483 .47
01-003515 BOMGAARS BASEBALL PARKING SIGNS 11.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 11.96
01-003515 BOMGAARS DRY WALL MUD 16.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 16.99
*% TOTALS ** 1,748.98 58.81- 1,690.17
01-002630 BRANDIE LEDFORD LIBRARY DIRECTOR TRAINING 751.63 751.63- 108406 6/22/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 751.63 751.63- 0.00
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 8.00 8.00- 108369 6/15/17 0.00
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY DEGREASER 120.20 0.00 000000 0/00/00 120.20
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY SUPPLIES 73.42 0.00 000000 0/00/00 73.42
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 286.06 0.00 000000 0/00/00 286.06
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY SUPPLIES 53.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 53.50
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY SUPPLIES 111.84 0.00 000000 0/00/00 111.84
** TOTALS ** 653.02 8.00- 645.02
01-025028 CAROL SCHOEPPNER SECRETARY CONTRACT 350.00 350.00- 108375 6/15/17 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 350.00 350.00- 0.00
01-004132 CARROLL AVIATION INC. SPEED BUMPS FOR DRIVEWAY 839.96 839.96- 108368 6/15/17 0.00
01-004132 CARROLL AVIATION INC. CONTRACT 6,450.00 6,450.00- 108368 6/15/17 0.00
**% TOTALS *¥* 7,289.96 7,289.96- 0.00
01-004146 CARROLL CONTROL SYSTEMS AHU REPAIRS ' 1,690.00 1,690.00- 108408 6/22/17 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 1,690.00 1,690.00- 0.00
01-004170 CARROLL COUNTY RECORDER RECORD DANZER SUBDIVISION 57.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 57.00
01-004170 CARROLL COUNTY RECORDER RECORD NORTHRIDGE 4TH 92.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 92.00
** TOTALS ** 149.00 0.00 149.00
01-000638 CARROLL COUNTY STATE BANK CHIEF'S CONF. & LAB TRAINING 735.16 735.16- 108358 6/15/17 0.00
01-000638 CARROLL COUNTY STATE BANK IaCMA SUMMER CONFERENCE REG. 155.00 155.00- 108359 6/15/17 0.00
01-000638 CARROLL COUNTY STATE BANK 5/24-6/23/17 ACROBAT PRO PC 14.99 14.99- 108360 6/15/17 0.00
01-000638 CARROLL COUNTY STATE BANK SUPPLIES 536.01 536.01- 108361 6/15/17 0.00
*% TQTALS ** 1,441.16 1,441.16~ 0.00
01-004193 CARROLL FIRE DEPARTMENT MAY FIRE CALLS AND DRILLS 1,610.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,610.00

** TOQTALS ** 1,610.00 0.00 1,610.00






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 4
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= zz=====]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ~~--- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-004200 CARROLL LUMBER TILE PLUG 2.65 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2.65
01-004200 CARROLL LUMBER TILE BEHIND SHOP 222.60 0.00 000000 0/00/00 222.60
** TOTALS ** 225.25 0.00 225.25
01-002977 CARRCLL REFUSE SERVICE MAY GARBAGE 57.00 57.00- 108362 6/15/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 57.00 57.00- 0.00
01-004237 CARROLL VETERINARY CLINIC JULY DOG CARE CONTRACT 650.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 650.00
** TOTALS ** 650.00 0.00 650.00
01-004233 CARROLLTON INN LODGING - LEDFORD 705.30 705.30- 108409 6/22/17 0.00
** TOTALS *=* 705.30 705.30- 0.00
01-003087 CARSON KIRSCH SOCCER OFFICIAL 75.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 75.00
*% TOTALS ** 75.00 0.00 75.00
01-004300 CENTER POINT PUBLISHING BOOKS 3,789.36 3,789.36- 108410 6/22/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 3,789.36 3,789.36- 0.00
01-004325 CENTRAL IOWA DISTRIBUTING CLEANING SUPPLIES 398.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 398.50
** TOTALS ** 398.50 0.00 398.50
01-002998 CENTURYLINK BACK-UP PHCONE RBRILL 56.45 56.45- 108364 6/15/17 0.00
01-002998 CENTURYLINK TELPEHONE BILL 107.20 107.20- 108365 6/15/17 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 163.65 163.65- 0.00
01-004137 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE TOURISM PROMOTION 20,107.38 0.00 000000 0/00/00 20,107.38
** TOTALS ** 20,107.38 0.00 20,107.38
01-002867 CINTAS FIRST AID & SAFETY FIRST AID SUPPLIES 159.28 0.00 000000 0/00/00 159.28
*% TOTALS ** 159.28 0.00 159.28
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK MTHLY ACH PROCESSING FEES 114.54 114.54- 000000 6/14/17 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK FEDERAL WITHHOLDINGS 14,162.26 14,162.26~ 000000 6/22/17 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK FICA WITHHOLDING 15,459.88 15,459.88- 000000 6/22/17 0.00
01-004835 COMMERCIAL SAVINGS BANK MEDICARE WITHHOLDING 4,489.82 4,489.82- 000000 6/22/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 34,226.50 34,226.50- 0.00
01-004836 COMMUNITY OIL CO. INC. EQUIPMENT FUEL 826.95 826.95- 108370 6/15/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 826.95 826.95- 0.00
01-001588 COMPANION CORPORATION SUPPLIES 115.00 115.00- 108401 6/22/17 0.00

** TOTALS ** 115.00 115.00- 0.00






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 5
VENDCR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN I TEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES - 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 TEHRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR --~-- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-000366 COMPUTER & NETWORK SPEC COMPUTER ISSUES 180.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 180.00
*% TOTALS ** 180.00 0.00 180.00
01-000911 COMPUTER CONCEPTS OF IOWA IT MAINTENANCE 240.00 240.00- 108400 6/22/17 0.00
01-000911 COMPUTER CONCEPTS OF IOWA IT MAINTENANCE 361.66 361.66- 108400 6/22/17 0.00
01-000911 COMPUTER CONCEPTS OF IOWA IT MAINTENANCE 100.00 100.00- 108400 6/22/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 701.66 701.66- 0.00
01-001595 COUNSEL OFFICE & DOCUMENT COPIER CONTRACT 292.17 292.17- 108402 6/22/17 0.00
01-001595 COUNSEL OFFICE & DOCUMENT TONER 7.22 7.22- 108402 6/22/17 0.00
01-001585 COUNSEL OFFICE & DOCUMENT COPIER CONTRACT 243 .97 0.00 000000 0/00/00 243.97
01-001595 COUNSEL OFFICE & DOCUMENT COPIER CONTRACT 31.84 0.00 000000 0/00/00 31.84
*%x TOTALS ** 575.20 299.39- 275.81
01-005395 D & K PRODUCTS CHEMICALS 2,184.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,184.00
*% TOTALS ** 2,184.00 0.00 2,184.00
01-005410 DAILY TIMES HERALD PUBLICITY 155.00 155.00- 108411 6&/22/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 155.00 155.00- 0.00
01-0030920 DENG NYOCK SOCCER OFFICIAL 125.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 125.00
** TOTALS ** 125.00 0.00 125.00
01-001¢265 DIANE TRACY BOOKS 17.00 17.00- 108404 6/22/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 17.00 17.00- 0.00
01-006275 DREES OIL CO. INC. UNLEADED GASOLINE 946.12 0.00 000000 0/00/00 946.12
01-006275 DREES OIL CO. INC. DIESEL FUEL 692.44 0.00 000000 0/00/00 692 .44
** TOTALS ** 1,638.56 0.00 1,638.56
01-006725 EARL MAY STORE FLOWERS AND WEED CONTROL 80.96 80.96- 108371 6/15/17 0.00
01-006725 EARL MAY STORE FLOWERS 15.96 15.96- 108371 6/15/17 0.00
01-006725 EARL MAY STORE MAPLE TREE AND HOSTAS 178.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 178.98
01-006725 EARL MAY STORE LANDSCAPING SUPPLIES 1,148.68 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,148.68
** TOTALS ** 1,424.58 96.92- 1,327.66
01-000258 EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SERVIC DATEBASE RENEWAL 2,421.00 2,421.00- 108398 6/22/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 2,421.00 2,421.00- 0.00
01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY FUSES 66.56 0.00 000000 0/00/00 66.56
01-0125%0 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY LED LAMPS 30.89 0.00 000000 0/00/00 30.89
01-012590 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY MAPLE PARK SHELTERHOUSE 757 .42 0.00 000000 0/00/00 757.42
*%* TOTALS ** 854 .87 0.00 854 .87






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABTLE PAGE: 6
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTICON GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-006810 ECOWATER SYSTEMS COOLER RENT AND WATER 100.55 100.55- 108372 6/15/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 100.55 100.55- 0.00
01-007253 ELECTRIC MOTOR SERVICE MOTOR TESTING 60.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 60.00
*% TOTALS ** 60.00 0.00 60.00
01-007258 ELECTRONIC SPECIALTIES INSTALL REAR CAMERA 183.70 0.00 000000 0/00/00 183.70
** TOTALS ** 183.70 0.00 183.70
01-002644 ETS CORPORATION CC PROCESSING FEES 265.08 265.08- 000000 6/14/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 265.08 265.08~- 0.00
01-007860 EXECUTIVE TECHNOLOGIES COPIER CONTRACT 363.09 0.00 000000 0/00/00 363.09
** TOTALS ** 363.09 0.00 363.09
01-008020 FAMILY & SPECIALTY MEDICA FD PHYSICALS HAMILTON/DENTLING 350.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 350.00
01-008020 FAMILY & SPECIALTY MEDICA EE PHYSICAL JOHNSON/VAN ERDEWY 690.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 690.00
*% TOTALS ** 1,040.00 0.00 1,040.00
01-008027 FAREWAY STORES SUPPLIES 22.60 0.00 000000 0/00/00 22.60
01-008027 FAREWAY STORES CONCESSIONS 5.94 0.00 000000 0/00/00 5.94
01-008027 FAREWAY STCORES CONCESSIONS 3.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3.96
01-008027 FAREWAY STORES CONCESSIONS 2.97 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2.97
01-008027 FAREWAY STORES EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 28.48 0.00 000000 0/00/00 28.48
** TOTALS ** 63.95 0.00 63.95
01-008035 FARNER-BOCKEN CO. CONCESSIONS 765.43 0.00 000000 0/00/00 765.43
01-008035 FARNER-BOCKEN CO. CONCESSIONS 523.83 0.00 000000 0/00/00 523.83
01-008035 FARNER-BOCKEN CO. SUPPLIES 1,312.05 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,312.05
01-008035 FARNER-BOCKEN CO. CONCESSIONS & EE RECOGNITION 572.66 0.00 000000 0/00/00 572.66
*% TOTALS ** 3,173.97 0.00 3,173.97
01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. CASCADE CYCLINDER TEST #2 600.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 600.00
01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 200' 5" HOSE 930.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 930.00
01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. SUPPLIES 1,468.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,468.00
01-006860 FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. CASCADE HYDROTEST RESCUE 7 420.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 420.00
** TOTALS ** 3,418.00 0.00 3,418.00
01-000633 FILTER CARE FILTER CLEANING 58.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 58.00
** TOTALS ** 58.00 0.00 58.00
01-000013 FIRE/POLICE RETIREMENT SY MFPRSI CONTRIBUTIONS 10,923.30 10,923.30- 000000 6/22/17 0.00

** TOTALS ** 10,923.30 10,923.30- 0.00






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 7
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll ) OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
=me=z=PAYMENT DATES=c===== zzzmoz=] TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-002712 GAGE GUNNERSON SOCCER OFFICIAL 100.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 100.00
** TOTALS ** 100.00 0.00 100.00
01-008315 GALL'S INC. FERRIN - BOOTS 105.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 105.99
01-008315 GALL'S INC. BENSLEY - BOOTS 120.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 120.00
** TOTALS ** 225.99 0.00 225.99
01-002137 GAVILON GRAIN LLC ROAD ROCK SALT 1,794.52 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,794.52
01-002137 GAVILON GRAIN LLC ROAD ROCK SALT 3,499.28 0.00 000000 0Q/00/00 3,499.28
01-002137 GAVILON GRAIN LLC ROAD ROCK SALT 1,710.20 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,710.20
** TOTALS ** 7,004.00 0.00 7,004.00
01-009500 GEHLING WELDING & REPAIR CAMEL VACUUM TUBE 265.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 265.00
*% TOTALS ** 265.00 0.00 265.00
01-002567 GEHLPRO WELDING LILY PAD REPAIRS 167.97 0.00 000000 0/00/00 167.97
** TOTALS ** 167.97 0.00 167.97
01-002598 GOLF PRODUCTS INC. GOLF PENCILS 181.32 0.00 000000 0/00/00 181.32
** TOTALS ** 181.32 0.00 181.32
01-001292 GOLF SERVICES LLC EE RECOGNITION 535.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 535.50
*% TOTALS ** 535.50 0.00 535.50
01-003093 GRANT KRAUS SOCCER OFFICIAL 25.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 25.00
*%* TOTALS ** 25.00 0.00 25.00
01-010156 GRAPHIC EDGE, THE AQUATIC STAFF SHIRTS 289.24 0.00 000000 0/00/00 289.24
01-010156 GRAPHIC EDGE, THE LIFEGUARD SWEATSHIRTS 593.64 0.00 000000 0/00/00 593.64
01-010156 GRAPHIC EDGE, THE VOLLEYBALL CAMP SHIRTS 266.09 0.00 000000 0Q/00/00 266.09
01-010156 GRAPHIC EDGE, THE LIFEGUARD SHIRTS 31.48 0.00 000000 0/00/00 31.48
01-010156 GRAPHIC EDGE, THE STAFF SHIRTS 14.49 0.00 000000 0/00/00 14.49
01-01C0156 GRAPHIC EDGE, THE PD SHIRTS 1,072.80 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,072.80
** TOTALS ** 2,267.74 0.00 2,267.74
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METER SUPPLIES RETURNED 90.00- 0.00 000000 0/00/00 90.00-
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METER SUPPLIES 240.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 240.00
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METER SUPPLIES 350.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 350.00
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD METER SUPPLIES 132.15 0.00 000000 0/00/00 132.15
01-030148 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD SUPPLIES 45.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 45.00
** TOTALS ** 677.15 0.00 677.15

01-003081 HIGHWAY 30 COALITION HWY 30 COALITION DUES 300.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 300.00






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 8
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= z======]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES==t====
PATD ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----~- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
** TOTALS ** 300.00 0.00 300.00
01-011831 HY-VEE INC. BB/SB COACHES CLINIC 19.98 19.98- 108412 6/22/17 0.00
01-011831 HY-VEE INC. SUMMER CAMP SUPPLIES 292.72 292.72- 108412 6/22/17 0.00
**% TOTALS ** 312.70 312.70- 0.00
01-012610 IOWA CITY/CO. MGMNT ASSN TaCMA MEMBERSHIP 2017-2018 250.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 250.00
*% TOTALS ** 250.00 0.00 250.00
01-012642 IOWA LAW ENFORCE ACADEMY RIFLE INSTRUCTOR SCHOOL 300.00 0.00 000000 ©0/00/00 300.00
** TQOTALS ** 300.00 0.00 300.00
01-012647 IOWA LEAGUE OF CITIES LEAGUE DUES 4,143.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4,143.00
01-012647 IOWA LEAGUE OF CITIES CLERKS HANDBOOK 20.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 20.00
** TOTALS *¥* 4,163.00 0.00 4,163.00
01-012666 IOWA ONE CALL MAY 2017 LOCATE REQUESTS 180.20 0.00 000000 0/00/00 180.20
** TOTALS ** 180.20 0.00 180.20
01-012670 IOWA PARK & RECREATION LIFEGUARD TRAINING BACKPACK 150.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 150.00
** TOTALS ** 150.00 0.00 150.00
01-012685 IOWA SMALL ENGINE CENTER SUPPLIES 883.74 0.00 000000 0/00/00 883.74
** TOTALS ** 883.74 0.00 883.74
01-012706 IPERS IPERS CONTRIBUTIONS 16,070.02 16,070.02~ 000000 6/22/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 16,070.02 16,070.02- 0.00
01-003092 JAMES DE BOLT SOCCER OFFICIAL 200.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 200.00
** TOTALS ** 200.00 0.00 200.00
01-003091 JAMIE MEYER DAY BALL/VOLLEYBALL SUPERVISOR 435.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 435.00
** TOTALS ** 435.00 0.00 435.00
01-002453 JASON MATTHEW LAMBERTZ PRODUCTION COSTS 960.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 960.00
** TOTALS ** 960.00 0.00 960.00
01-013917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. CEMETERY MAINT. BUILDING 1,080.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,080.50
01-013917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. 2016 HIGH RIDGE RD IMPROVEMENT 3,463.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3,463.50
01-013917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. THIRD ST RESURFACING 2,456.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,456.00
** TOTALS ** 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL REPAIR PARTS 46.35 46.35- 108413 6/22/17 0.00
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL REPAIR PARTS 45.71 45.71- 108413 6/22/17 0.00






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
m=m=e==PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATES=========
PATD ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL REPAIR PARTS 152.60
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL REPATR PARTS 4.87
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL TRACTOR REPAIR PARTS 31.10
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL FUEL PUMP SOLENOID 126.75
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL MOWER PARTS 107.35
01-025020 JOHEN DEERE FINANCIAL TILLER REPAIRS 19.56
01-025020 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL TILLER REPAIRS 2.44
*% TOTALS ** 536.73
01-002922 JOSHUA LUFT TOBACCO COMPLIANCE 190.00
** TOTALS ** 120.00
01-000714 X & D PAINTING STADIUM PAINTING 500.02
*% TOTALS ** 500.02
01-000994 KABEL BUSINESS SERVICES - APR HRA PARTICIPANT FEES 169.00
01-000994 KABEL BUSINESS SERVICES - MAY 2017 HRA PARTICIPANT FEES 172.25
01-000994 KABEL BUSINESS SERVICES - MAY FLEX SPENDING 87.50
** TOTALS ** 428.75
01-014520 KASPERBAUER CLEANING SER LAUNDER MOPS 29.31
01-014520 KASPERBAUER CLEANING SER LAUNDER MOPS 29.31
01-014520 KASPERBAUER CLEANING SER LAUNDER RUGS 82.30
01-014520 KASPERBAUER CLEANING SER LAUNDER MOPS 30.31
** TOTALS ** 171.23
01-003089 KAYLA MARIE VENNER SOCCER OFFICIAL 100.00
*%* TOTALS ** 100.00
01-014240 KITT PLBG. AND HTG. INC. WATER LINE AND STREET REPAIRS 100.00
*% TOTALS ** 100.00
01-015190 KNOBBE PLBG. & HTG. LOCATOR RENTAL 60.00
** TOTALS ** 60.00
01-003084 LENUS SCHULTE MEMBERSHIP REFUND 67.10
*% TOTALS ** 67.10
01-010827 LEON HENDRICKS MAY CONTRACT METER READER 1,802.64
** TOTALS ** 1,802.64
01-016515 LOHRMANN ELECTRIC ELECTRICAL - BASEBALL FIELD 6,293.00
** TOTALS ** 6,293.00

PAGE:
BANK: AP
======P0OSTING DATES=======
6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
152.60- 108413 6/22/17 0.00
4.87- 108413 6/22/17 0.00
31.10- 108413 6/22/17 0.00
126.75- 108413 6/22/17 0.00
107.35- 108413 6/22/17 0.00
19.56- 108413 6/22/17 0.00
2.44- 108413 6/22/17 0.00
536.73- 0.00
0.00 000000 0/00/00 190.00
0.00 190.00
0.00 000000 0/00/00 500.02
0.00 500.02
169.00- 000000 6/12/17 0.00
172.25- 000000 6/12/17 0.00
87.50- 000000 6/12/17 0.00
428.75- 0.00
0.00 000000 0/00/00 29.31
0.00 000000 0/00/00 29.31
0.00 000000 0/00/00 82.30
0.00 000000 0/00/00 30.31
0.00 171.23
0.00 000000 0/00/00 100.00
0.00 100.00
0.00 000000 0/00/00 100.00
0.00 100.00
0.00 000000 0/00/00 60.00
0.00 60.00
0.00 000000 0/00/00 67.10
0.00 67.10
1,802.64- 108357 6/13/17 0.00
1,802.64- 0.00
0.00 000000 0/00/00 6,293.00
0.00 6,293.00






06-23-2017 08:11 AM
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL

=z=====PAYMENT DATES=======
6/09/2017 THRU
6/09/2017 THRU

PATD ITEMS DATES :
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES:
UNPAID ITEMS DATES :

VENDOR

01-003088

01-002993 MC CLURE ENGINEERING CO.

01-002951 MIKE POGGE-WEAVER

01-002596 MOHR SAND GRAVEL & CONSTR

01-003020 MONERIS SOLUTIONS INC.

01-017730
01-017730
01-017730
01-017730
01-017730

MOORHOUSE
MOORHOUSE
MOORHOUSE
MOORHOQUSE
MOORHOUSE

READY MIX CO.
READY MIX CO.
READY MIX CO.
READY MIX CO.
READY MIX CO.

01-018408
01-018408

NAPA AUTO
NAPA AUTO

PARTS
PARTS

01-003021 NBX MERCHANT SERVICES COR
01-020330 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
01-002054 OMG MIDWEST
01-002956 OPN ARCHITECTS INC
01-020326 OPTIONS INK

01-021050 P & H WHOLESALE INC.
01-021050 P & H WHOLESALE INC.

6/22/2017
6/22/2017

SOCCER OFFICIAL

UN
I

6/09/2017 THRU
6/09/2017 THRU
6/09/2017 THRU

T
T

** TOTALS
DRIVE ENTRANCE PROJECT

** TOTALS
ACCESS WASHINGTON CADC

** TOTALS
ICE CONTROL SAND

** TOTALS
PROCESSING FEES

** TOTALS
ROW - 14TH STREET
CONCRETE PAD
ROW - MAPLE STREET
CONCRETE DRAIN PAD - SHOP
CONCRETE

*%* TOTALS
SWITCHES
POWER INVERTER #14

** TOTALS
MAY REC EFT PROCESSING FEES

** TOTALS
SUPPLIES

** TOTALS
3RD STREET RESURFACING

** TOTALS
LIBRARY/CITY HALL

** TOTALS
SIGNS

*% TOTALS
PLUMBING SUPPLIES
REPAIR PARTS

** TOTALS

S
EM
SUMMARY

* %

* %

* K

¥

* %

* %

* %

* %

* ok

* %

oo
ow

6/22/2017
6/22/2017
6/22/2017

GROSS AMT
75.00
75.00

1,661.20
1,661.20

156.05
156.05

3,620.68
3,620.68

313.94
313.94

690.00

120.00 -

840.00
720.00
1,057.50
3,427.50

13.29
189.99
203.28

106.68
106.68

14.99
14.99

5,649.09
5,649.009

10,500.00
10,500.00

133.20
133.20

113.35
19.49
132.84

6/09/2017 THRU
6/09/2017 THRU
6/09/2017 THRU

PAYMENTS

313.94-
313.94-

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

106.68~-
106.68~

133.20-
133.20-

0.00
0.00
0.00

6/22/2017
6/22/2017
6/22/2017

CHECK# CHECK DT

000000

108363

000000

000000

000000

000000
000000
000000
000000
000000

000000
000000

000000

000000

000000

000000

108374

000000
000000

0/00/00

6/15/17

0/00/00

0/00/00

6/14/17

0/00/00
0/00/00
6/00/00
0/00/00
0/00/00

0/00/00
0/00/00

6/14/17

0/00/00

0/00/00

0/00/00

6/15/17

0/00/00
0/00/00

PAGE: 10
BANK: AP

- ---BALANCE- - -

75.00
75.00

0.00
0.00

156.05
156.05

3,620.68
3,620.68

0.00
0.00

690.00
120.00
840.00
720.00
1,057.50
3,427.50

13.29
189.99
203.28

0.00
0.00

14.99
14.99

5,649.09
5,649.09

10,500.00
10,500.00

0.00
0.00

113.35
19.49
132.84






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 11
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES=z======= z======]TEM DATES=z====z==== ======POSTING DATES=======
PATID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-021220 PEPSI BEVERAGES COMPANY CONCESSIONS 178.36 0.00 000000 0/00/00 178.36
** TOTALS ** 178.36 0.00 178.36
01-002911 PERFECT MIND INC. RECEIPT PRINTER 299.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 299.00
*%* TOTALS ** 299.00 0.00 295.00
01-000169 PERRY JOHNSON MAY MILEAGE - INSPECTIONS 264.83 0.00 000000 0/00/00 264.83
01-000162 PERRY JOHNSON APRIL MILEAGE - INSPECTIONS 130.54 0.00 000000 0/00/00 130.54
*% TOTALS ** 395.37 0.00 395.37
01-003082 PHILIPS HEALTHCARE FIRST AID SUPPLIES 175.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 175.00
**% TOTALS ** 175.00 0.00 175.00
01-021440 PIZZA HUT CONCESSIONS 30.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 30.00
01-021440 PIZZA HUT CONCESSIONS 18.75 0.00 000000 0/00/00 18.75
01-021440 PIZZA HUT CONCESSIONS 30.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 30.00
01-021440 PIZZA HUT CONCESSIONS 22.75 0.00 000000 0/00/00 22.75
01-021440 PIZZA HUT CONCESSIONS 18.75 0.00 000000 0/00/00 18.75
*% TOTALS ** 120.25 0.00 120.25
01-021860 PRESTO-X-COMPANY PEST CONTROL 55.00 0.00 000000 o0/00/00 55.00
01-021860 PRESTO-X-COMPANY PEST CONTROL 45.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 45.00
** TOTALS ** 100.00 0.00 100.00
01-009870 RACCOON VALLEY ELECTRIC C MAY ELECTRIC SERVICE 1,016.57 1,016.57- 108373 6/15/17 0.00
** TOTALS *=* 1,016.57 1,016.57- 0.00
01-003094 RACHEL VAN ERDEWYK SUPPLIES 10.89 10.89- 108407 6/22/17 0.00
** TOTALS *x* 10.89 10.89- 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 36.00 36.00- 108399 6/22/17 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 36.00 36.00- 108399 6/22/17 0.00
01-000326 RECORDED BOOKS LLC AUDIO BOOKS 31.50 31.50~ 108399 6/22/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 103.50 103.50- 0.00
01-002287 RIESBERG AUDIO AND DETAIL LIGHTS 60.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 60.00
** TOTALS ** 60.00 0.00 60.00
01-002931 RIVER CITY AMMO CO. AMMO 1,017.00 0.00 000000 o0/00/00 1,017.00
01-002931 RIVER CITY AMMO CO. AMMO 2,549.80 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,549.80
** TOTALS ** 3,566.80 0.00 3,566.80
01-024630 RUTTEN'S VACUUM CENTER VACUUM 549.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 549.99






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYARLE PAGE: 12
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN I TEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
==m===PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATES========= ======DP0OSTING DATES=—===z===
PAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME -~~--- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
*%* TOTALS ** 549.99 0.00 549.99
01-024905 SAFETY-KLEEN CORP. PARTS WASHER - SOLVENT 276.56 0.00 000000 0/00/00 276.56
*% TOTALS ** 276.56 0.00 276.56
01-024915 SARGENT DRILLING WELL #12 - REPAIR 9,781.88 0.00 000000 0/00/00 9,781.88
*% TOTALS ** 9,781.88 0.00 9,781.88
01-001596 SCHROEDER'S SUPPLIES 10.40 0.00 000000 0/00/00 10.40
*% TOTALS ** 10.40 0.00 10.40
01-025050 SCHUMACHER ELEVATOR CO. ELEVATOR SERVICE 200.91 0.00 000000 0/00/00 200.91
*%* TOTALS ** 200.91 0.00 200.91
01-025119 SEIDL ELECTRIC OUTSIDE LED LIGHTS 4,559.58 4,559.58- 108376 6/15/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 4,559.58 4,559.58- 0.00
01-000612 SENECA COMPANIES ASSESSMENT & RELATED COSTS 12,314.35 0.00 000000 ©0/00/00 12,314.35
*% TOTALS ** 12,314.35 0.00 12,314.35
01-002803 SITE ONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY SPRINKLER HEADS 1,458.88 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,458.88
*% TOTALS ** 1,458.88 0.00 1,458.88
01-004178 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT CO DISPOSAL FEES 8.60 0.00 000000 0/00/00 8.60
*% TOTALS ** 8.60 0.00 8.60
01-002865 STATE FAIR MINI DONUTS US AQUATICS CONCESSIONS 187.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 187.00
*% TOTALS ** 187.00 0.00 187.00
01-003085 STEPHANIE MOHR MEMBERSHIP REFUND 146.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 146 .00
*% TOTALS ** 146.00 0.00 146.00
01-025874 STERICYCLE INC OSHA 109.15 0.00 000000 0/00/00 109.15
*% TOTALS ** 109.15 0.00 109.15
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. SUPPLIES 4.50 4.50- 108414 6/22/17 0.00
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. SUPPLIES 11.40 11.40- 108414 6/22/17 0.00
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. SUPPLIES 8.34 0.00 000000 0/00/00 8.34
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. LAMINATING 1.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1.00
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. TONER CARTRIDGES 132.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 132.96
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. SUPPLIES 49.00 49.00- 108414 6/22/17 0.00
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. UTILITY BILL ENVELOPES 883.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 883.96
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. SUMMER BROCHURES 316.00 316.00- 108414 6/22/17 0.00
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. WATER RECEIPTS 60.95 0.00 000000 0/00/00 60.95






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 13
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
z======PAYMENT DATES======= zz==m====]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PATID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. OFFICE SUPPLIES 106.55 0.00 000000 0/00/00 106.55
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. CALCULATOR AND STAPLES 111.59 0.00 000000 0/00/00 111.59
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. OFFICE CHAIRS 418.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 418.50
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. LAMINATOR AND TONER 325.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 325.99
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. TONER CARTRIDGES 493.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 493.96
01-025880 STONE PRINTING CO. SUPPLIES 71.99 0.00 000000 0/00/00 71.99
** TOTALS *x* 2,996.69 380.90~ 2,615.79
01-025935 SUBWAY EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 17.34 0.00 000000 0/00/00 17.34
** TOTALS ** 17.34 0.00 17.34
01-001998 TEAMSIDELINE.COM TEAM SIDELINE SOFTWARE 898.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 898.00
**% TOTALS ** 898.00 0.00 898.00
01-002272 TIGGES OVERHEAD DOORS DOOR REPAIRS 240.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 240.00
*% TOTALS ** 240.00 0.00 240.00
01-027060 TREASURER OF IOWA 5/16-5/31/2017 SALES TAX 9,559.00 9,559.00~- 000000 6/12/17 0.00
01-027060 TREASURER OF ICWA 6/1-6/15/17 SALES TAX 458.00 458.00- 000000 0/00/00 0.00
01-027060 TREASURER OF IOWA 6/1-6/15/17 SALES TAX 458.00 458.00- 000000 6/20/17 0.00
*% TOTALS *x* 10,017.00 10,017.00- 0.00
01-000534 TRI AIR TESTING INC. BREATHING AIR ANALYSIS 172.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 172.00
** TOTALS ** 172.00 0.00 172.00
01-027079 TRIPLE A SEEDS INC. GRASS SEED 58.75 0.00 000000 0/00/00 58.75
** TOTALS ** 58.75 0.00 58.75
01-027085 TROPHEIES PLUS INC. YOUTH TRIATHLON MEDALS 200.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 200.00
** TOTALS ** 200.00 0.00 200.00
01-001088 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES FY 18 INCODE MAINTENANCE 19,305.42 0.00 000000 0/00/00 19,305.42
01-001088 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES TIME CLOCK MAINTENANCE 527.11 0.00 000000 0/00/00 527.11
01-001088 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES ONLINE BILLING ACCESS 180.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 180.00
*%* TOTALS ** 20,012.53 0.00 20,012.53
01-028168 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE FREIGHT W/E 6/10/2017 47.97 47.97- 108415 6&/22/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 47.97 47.97- 0.00
01-001121 UTILITY POINT CLINIC RANDOM DRUG TESTING 79.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 79.00
** TOTALS ** 79.00 0.00 79.00
01-028814 VAN METER COMPANY, THE POOL LIGHTS 22,862.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 22,862.00
** TOTALS ** 22,862.00 0.00 22,862.00






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLTE PAGE: 14
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEDM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PATD ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
VENDOR -~~- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-002666 VAN WALL EQUIPMENT INC. CORDLESS CUT-OFF SAW 702.44 0.00 000000 0/00/00 702 .44
*% TOTALS ** 702 .44 0.00 702.44
01-028009 VESSCO INC. SUPPLIES 201.42 0.00 000000 0/00/00 201.42
01-0235009 VESSCO INC. SUPPLIES 123.52 0.00 000000 0/00/00 123.52
01-022009 VESSCO INC. SUPPLIES 417 .42 0.00 000000 0/00/00 417 .42
*% TOTALS ** 742 .36 0.00 742.36
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUMMER CAMP SUPPLIES 79.95 0.00 000000 0/00/00 79.95
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 DVDS 111.28 0.00 000000 0/00/00 111.28
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUMMER CAMP SUPPLIES 54.62 0.00 000000 0/00/00 54.62
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 STAPLES 5.94 0.00 000000 ©0/00/00 5.94
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUMMER CAMP SUPPLIES 107.81 0.00 000000 0/00/00 107.81
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 BB/SB STORAGE 59.31 0.00 000000 0/00/00 59.31
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 25.21 25.21- 108416 6/22/17 0.00
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 1.85 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1.85
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUMMER CAMP SUPPLIES 106.35 0.00 000000 0/00/00 106.35
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 2.%92 0.00 000000 0/00/00 2.92
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 18.75 0.00 000000 0/00/00 18.75
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 85.72 0.00 000000 0/00/00 85.72
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 54.89 54.89- 108416 6/22/17 0.00
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 BB/SB STORAGE 178.04 0.00 000000 0/00/00 178.04
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 BB/SB SUPPLIES 66.58 0.00 000000 0/00/00 66.58
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUMMER CAMP SUPPLIES 13.92 0.00 000000 0/00/00 13.92
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUPPLIES 142.11 0.00 000000 0/00/00 142.11
01-030120 WAL-MART STORE #01-1787 SUMMER CAMP SUPPLIES 114.58 0.00 000000 0/00/00 114.58
** TOTALS *x* 1,229.83 80.10- 1,149.73
01-003377 WELLMARK BLUE CROSS/BLUE 7/1-10/1/17 DAVIS #134AD2005 3,068.40 3,068.40- 108366 6/15/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 3,068.40 3,068.40- 0.00
01-030355 WITTROCK MOTOR CO. MAY CAR RENTAL 375.00 375.00- 108377 6/15/17 0.00
01-030355 WITTROCK MOTOR CO. MUD FLAPS #14 110.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 110.00
** TOTALS ** 485.00 375.00- 110.00
01-000386 ZIMCO SUPPLY CO CHEMICALS 6,114.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 6,114.00
01-000386 ZIMCO SUPPLY CO WHITE MARKING CHALK 308.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 308.00
** TQOTALS ** 6,422.00 0.00 6,422.00

* Payroll Expense

161,127.38






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 15
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY

======PAYMENT DATES======= =======TTEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PATD ITEMS DATES : 6/08/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017

REPORT TOTALS

GROSS PAYMENTS BALANCE
PATID ITEMS 269,483.07 269,483.07CR 0.00
PARTIALLY PAID 0.00 0.00 0.00
UNPAID ITEMS 199,254.10 0.00 199,254.10
VOID ITEMS 458 .00CR 458.00 0.00
** TOTALS ** 468,279.17 269,025.07CR 199,254.10

UNPAID RECAP

UNPAID INVOICE TOTALS 199,441.20
UNPAID DEBIT MEMO TOTALS 0.00
UNAPPLIED CREDIT MEMO TOTALS 187.10CR

*%* UNPAID TOTALS ** 199,254.10






06-23-2017 08:11 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 16
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======ITEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PATD ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017 6/09/2017 THRU 6/22/2017
FUND TOTALS
001 GENERAL FUND 209,712.08
010 HOTEL/MCTEL TAX 20,135.71
110 ROAD USE TAX FUND 16,553.90
167 REC CENTER TRUST FUND 62.91
178 CRIME PREV/SPEC PROJECTS 191.85
303 C.P. - AIRPORT 1,661.20
304 C.P. STREETS 11,568.59
311 C.P.-PARKS & RECREATION 2,138.28
600 WATER UTILITY FUND 33,978.93
602 WATER UTILITY CAP. IMP. 58.75
610 SEWER UTILITY FUND 10,194 .34
620 STORM WATER UTILITY 554.00
850 MEDICAL INSURANCE FUND 341.25
* PAYROLL EXPENSE 161,127.38

GRAND TOTAL 468,279.17







City )

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-27989 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager Lﬁﬁ/ﬁ W

A

FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerlgj;z
DATE: June 16, 2017

SUBJECT: Cigarette Permits
Attached is a list of the current cigarette permit holders requesting renewal through June 30, 2018. The
only change from last year was K-Mart #3585 did not renew.

RECOMMENDATION: Council consideration and approval for the renewal of the cigarette
permits on the attached list.






RENEWAL CIGARETTE PERMITS —2017/2018

Business

Address

Phone

Casey's General Store #3082
Casey’s General Store #3025
Dollar General #2756

DonRoy’s Inc.dba Ossy's/Piranha Club

Drees Oil Co., Inc

Fareway Stores, Inc. #409

Golf Services, LLC

Hy-Vee

Kimmes Carroll Country Store 1
Kimmes Carroll Country Store 2
Reiling's 71-South

Sparky's One Stop #25
Sparky’s One Stop #29

The Vaped Ape

Walgreen's #10770

Wal-Mart Supercenter #1787

510 E. Hwy. 30

613 W. US Hwy 30
840 E. Plaza Dr.
1215 Plaza Dr.
1257 W. US Hwy 30
709 Monterey Dr.
2266 N West St
905 W. US Hwy 30
1511 N. US Hwy 71
422 W. Hwy 30

112 N. US Hwy 71
402 E. 6th St.

1515 Plaza Dr.

905 E US Hwy 30
105 E. 6th St.

2014 Kittyhawk Drive

712-792-4748
712-792-5508
712-792-0408
712-792-9102
712-792-1225
712-792-2517
712-792-9190
712-792-6333
712-792-9183
712-792-2122
712-775-2350
712-775-2120
712-792-7030
712-775-2291
712-792-4566
712-792-2280







ity

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Managerf/(7#-1)

DATE: June 21, 2017

SUBJECT: Committee Reports

A

A e =

Library Board (meets 3 or 4" Monday of month) — June 19, 2017

Board of Adjustment (meets 1% Monday of month) —

Planning and Zoning Commission (meets 2! Wednesday of month) —

Carroll Airport Commission (meets 2" Monday of month) — June 12, 2017

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Advisory Board (meets 3™ Monday of January, March,
May, July, September and November) — May 24, 2017

Carroll County Solid Waste Management Commission (meets 2" Tuesday of month) —
Historical Preservation Commission (no regular meeting dates) —

Safety Committee (no regular meeting dates) —

Civil Service Commission (as needed) —






Library Board Minutes--DRAFT

June 19, 2017

The Carroll Board of Trustees met in the Mayor’s Conference Room of City Hall. Trustees present were:
Jacob Fiscus, Paul Reicks, Sondra Rierson, Carol Shields, Ralph von Qualen, and Director Rachel Van
Erdewyck. Trustees absent were: Janet Auge, Tom Louis, Summer Parrott, and Kyle Ulveling. Also in
attendance was city manager Mike Pogge-Weaver.

Fiscus called the meeting to order at 5:17. It was moved by Rierson and seconded by Reicks to approve
the agenda. All voted aye. It was moved by Shields and seconded by Rierson to approve the minutes of
the May meeting. All voted aye. It was moved by Rierson and seconded by Reicks to approve the bills. All

voted aye.

Director’s Report: Children’s librarian Diane Tracy was busy with her regular story time, Read-aloud, and
outreach, plus additional commercials for the upcoming Summer Reading Program. Registration started
May 30%" and will continue to July 21%%. To date, registration for all groups stands at over 1,400. The first
program was David Fisher, the Rope Warrior. It was held at Holy Spirit gym and had an attendance of
449. An adult program was held on May 25™; James Stordahl spoke about coping with Bipolar Disorder.
The program had an attendance of 36. Future children’s events will be held at Holy Spirit gym on June
20™, June 27, July 11, and July 25%™. A makerspace demo will be held at the library on July 27%. A STEM
Camp was held June 13" and 14", and additional camps will be held in August. Total monthly door count
was 7,002. Total print checkouts were 8,718. Total resources utilized were 18,389. Total program
attendance was 1,386.

Old Business: OPN Library Project and update on Library Steering Committee and the upcoming vote.

New Business: Nomination of Officers. After discussion a motion to nominate Fiscus for President,
Rierson for Vice-President, and Auge for Secretary was made by Shields and seconded by Rierson. All

voted aye.

It was moved by Rierson and seconded by Shields to adjourn. All voted aye. Meeting adjourned at 5:40.
Next regular meeting will be July 17, 2017.

Jacob Fiscus—President Judy Behm—Recording Secretary






CARROLL AIRPORT COMMISSION

Regular Meeting

The regular meeting of the Carroll Airport Commission
was held on Monday, June 12, 2017, at the Arthur Neu
Airport. Commission members in attendance were Norman
Hutcheson, Greg Siemann, Gene Vincent, Kevin Wittrock
and Dick Fulton. Also attending were Mr. Pete Crawford,
engineer, Don Mensen, airport manager - and Carol
Schoeppner, recording secretary. Chairman Hutcheson
conducted the 5:30 P.M. meeting.

MINUTES
The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed by
the Commission. A change in the wording from Mr. Pete

Crawford regarding landings of heavy aircraft is from
a letter of March 16, 2017, to have Don Mensen authorize
up to 12 takeoffs and landings per year at weights up

to 42,000 pounds. A motion by Comm. Vincent and second
by Comm. Fulton was made to approve the minutes after
the change was made. Motion carried by Commissioners

Hutcheson, Siemann, Vincent Wittrock and Fulton.

DRIVE ENTRANCE PROJECT
Mr. Crawford received a notice from the FAA that the

grant of $300,000.00 was approved and there might be
an additional $33,843.00 funds to apply to the project.
Chairman Hutcheson signed the engineering contract
approved at the May meeting. A motion by Comm. Fulton
and seconded by Comm. Siemann was made to approve the
resolution approving contract and bond from Wicks
Construction and to have Chairman Hutcheson sign said
contract. Motion <carried by Commissioners Hutcheson,
Siemann, Vincent, Wittrock and Fulton. A motion by Comm.
Siemann and seconded by Comm. Vincent was made to have
Chairman Hutcheson sign the contract, performance bond
and payment bond with Wicks Construction. Motion carried
by Commissioners Hutcheson, Siemann, Vincent, Wittrock
and Fulton. Work will begin when Congress releases the
funds and the project should take 30 working days to
complete. Mr. Crawford will schedule a Pre—construction
meeting with Wicks Construction.






June 12, 2017 Pge 2

FARM REPORT
Comm. Vincent reported there will be 56 acres of corn,

68 acres of beans and 11 acres of hay. Comm. Vincent
will apply for a government payment which will be given
to the Carroll Community School for student educational
field trips.

TOPICS DISCUSSED:
Fagen Fighters will ©be on the field for the Flight

Breakfast and will be sponsored by Carroll Aviation,
New Way Ford and the Carroll Pilots Association. The
Masonic Lodge will coordinate the advertising for the
Flight Breakfast to include the Fagen Fighters.

Mr. Crawford said representatives from McClue Engineering
will be at the July meeting to discuss updating the
airport layout plan.

BILLS
The following bills were presented to the Carroll Airport

Commission for approval:

Carroll Aviation contract $ 6,450.00
Seidl Electric hanger LED lights 4,559.58
Community 0il equipment fuel 826.95
Wittrock Motor May car rental 375.00
Ecowater cooler rent/water 100.55
Raccoon Valley Elec May electric service 1,016.57
Earl May flowers/weed spray 96.92
Options Ink hanger signs 133.20
Carroll Cleaning cleaning supplies 8.00
Carroll Aviation speed bumps 839,96
Carroll Refuse May garbage 57.00
Bomgaars weed spray/misc'l 58.81
McClure Engineering drive project 1,661.20
Carol Schoeppner secretary contract 350.00

A motion by Comm. Fulton and seconded by Comm. Wittrock
was made to approve the bills as presented to the Carroll
Airport Commission. Motion carried by Commissioners
Hutcheson, Siemann, Vincent, Wittrock and Fulton.

There being no further Dbusiness, a motion by Comnm.
Hit6r88kPaMd. seconded by Comm. Fulton was made to adjourn





June 12, 2017 Page 3

Chairman/Vice—Chairman

ATTEST:






CARROLL AIRPORT COMMISSION

Regular Meeting

Monday, July 10, 2017
5:30 P.M.

Arthur Neu Airport

Ageﬁda

Aﬁprove minutes from previous meeting
Entrance Drive Project

Tall Structure Issue Ruling

McClure Engineering Layout Plan
Airport Manager contract renewal

New Business

Approve monthly bills





PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES
May 24, 2017 @ 4:00 P.M.
Farner Government Building — Council Chambers

The Parks, Recreation and Cultural Board meet on this date at 4:00 p.m. at the Farner
Government Building — Council Chambers. Members Present: Summer Boes, Cara
Greteman, Matt Hodges, Brook Mikkelsen, and Clay Netusil. Absent: Jeff Aden, Jen
Munson, Ryan Milligan, and Lois Neu. Staff Present: Jack Wardell, Director of Parks
and Recreation, McKenzie Kiger, Recreation Superintendent, Sarah Johnson, Aquatics
& Fitness Specialist and Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager.

* * * * * * *

The meeting was called to order at 4:03 P.M.

* * * * * * *

It was moved by Greteman and seconded by Boes to approve the May 24, 2017
agenda as presented. All present voted Aye.

* * * * * * *

It was moved by Mikkelsen and seconded by Greteman to approve the minutes of the
December 27, 2016 meeting. All present voted Aye.

* * * * * * *

Wardell reviewed the Graham Park District and Carroll Trails — Segment A & B. No
action taken.

Wardell reviewed the indoor Pool Study and the Carroll Recreation Center Locker
Room Remodel Project. No action taken.

* * * * * * *

It was moved by Boes and seconded by Netusil to adjourn at 5:08 PM. All present
voted Aye.







ity

4

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager é&}( NGRS
DATE: June 21, 2017
SUBJECT: Community Video Collaboration with Daily Times Herald

Last winter, the City was approach by a firm that develops on-line community videos. The
videos are produced by the firm at no cost to the City with 4 to 6 short videos on the
community. The videos are hosted on the firm’s website with a link on the City’s website to
the videos. The firm in turns places advertising with videos to cover their costs. A few
communities that have produced these types of community videos include:

Des Moines https://www.dmgov.org/ link located on bottom left corner
West Des Moines  http://www.wdm.iowa.gov/ link located right side - mid part of page
Fort Dodge https://www.fortdodgeiowa.org/ link located on bottom right corner

In passing I mentioned this project to Doug Burns from the Daily Times Herald who
expressed an interest taking on such a project for the City of Carroll. With their access to
photos and history on Carroll it appeared to be a natural fit to work with them as a local firm
on the project. Attached is a proposal from the Daily Times Herald to take on this project.

In general terms, the Daily Times Herald would develop scripts for the videos (subject to City
approval), shoot and produce the videos, and place them on a website that the City would link
to. They propose a 3-year arrangement to in order recoup their cost in producing the videos,
which is the same commitment that the first firm would require.

RECOMMENDATION: Discuss and consider approving a collaboration with the Daily
Times Herald to develop community videos for the City of Carroll.






Collaboration with Daily Times Herald on Promotional Videos

To: City manager, elected officials

From: Douglas Burns, co-owner, Carroll Daily Times
Re: Video promotions of city

Date: June 12, 2017

The Daily Times Herald has hundreds of videos, an archive of tens of
thousands of photos and hundreds of thousands of local stories.

We intend to work in cooperation with a joint staff person for lowa Public
Television and our newspaper group this summer to shoot videos
promoting the city that will be accessible from the City of Carroll’s website
with a high-profile one click, and produced and stored with our digital
partners in Atlanta and Wisconsin on our sites, at our expense. There is no
proposed cost to the city.

The proposal includes videos related to the following subjects:
1. Why Carroll, lowa? Why Carroll, lowa NOW!

Parks and Recreation

Education

Business and Industry

Entertainment and Restaurants

Churches and Religion

O o s wN

We will update the videos periodically. This project carries no cost to the
city other than collaboration time to shoot the videos with city information






and some staff participation. The Daily Times Herald will maintain
advertising on the site related to the subject areas. The videos are intended
to promote and celebrate the city. We believe the Daily Times Herald is
best positioned for this project as we possess the above-mentioned
unrivaled archive of photos and stories that will accompany the videos.

The Daily Times Herald is seeking a 3-year agreement. The city will have
final say on any videos posted to the sites in collaboration with the

newspaper.







COUNCIL MEETING
JUNE 12, 2017

(Please note these are draft minutes and may be amended by Council before final approval.)

The Carroll City Council met in regular session on this date at 5:15 p.m. at the Council
Chamber of the Farner Government Building. Members present: Misty Boes, LaVern Dirkx (via
telephone), Jerry Fleshner, Clay Haley, Mike Kots, and Carolyn Siemann. Absent: None. Mayor
Eric Jensen presided and City Attorney Dave Bruner was in attendance.

R e

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the City Council. No Council action taken.
* ok ke k kKK
It was moved Haley, seconded by Kots, to approve the minutes of the May 22, 2017
council meeting as written. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok ok ok ok Kk
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to approve the bills and claims in the amount
of $2,327,855.35. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.
* ok ok ok ok kk
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to approve the renewal of the following
permits:
e Renewal of Class “C” Beer Permit with Sunday Sales — Casey’s General Store #3025
e Renewal of Class “C” Beer Permit with Sunday Sales — Casey’s General Store #3082
e Renewal of Class “C” Beer Permit including Wine Coolers with Sunday Sales — Pizza
Hut
On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

EE S S e S

There were no oral requests and communications from the audience.
* ok ok k kK K

An Ordinance Amending the Code of Ordinances by Repealing and Replacing Section
41.13 Pertaining to the Use of Fireworks was introduced by Council Member Kots.

It was moved by Kots, seconded by Fleshner, to approve the first reading and waive the
second and third readings of said ordinance. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None.
Motion carried.

It was moved by Kots, seconded by Fleshner, to adopt said Ordinance No. 1704. On roll
call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.





* Kk Kk ik

An Ordinance Amending the Code of Ordinances by Amending Section 122.08
Pertaining to Criteria Considered for Issuing Transient Merchants Permits was introduced by
Council Member Kaots.

It was moved by Kots, seconded by Fleshner, to approve the first reading and waive the
second and third readings of said ordinance. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None.
Motion carried.

It was moved by Kots, seconded by Fleshner, to adopt said Ordinance No. 1705. On roll
call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

* ok ke k kKK

An Ordinance Amending the Code of Ordinances by Amending Provisions Pertaining to
Flood Plain Regulations was introduced by Council Member Haley.

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Siemann, to approve the first reading and waive the
second and third readings of the said ordinance. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None.
Motion carried.

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Siemann, to adopt said Ordinance No. 1706. On roll
call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

* ok ok ok ok Kk

It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Haley, to postpone the discussion of the
Residential Solid Waste Hauling Agreement and Amendments to the City Code related to Solid
Waste Regulation and Fees until the June 26, 2017 Council meeting. On roll call, all present
voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

* ok ok k ok kk

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Fleshner, to accept the Report of Bid Opening and
approve Resolution No. 1746, Making Award of the Construction Contract for the Downtown
Streetscape Phase 8 Project to Badding Construction Company at their bid price of
$1,294,844.41. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

* ok ok k ok kK

It was moved by Kots, seconded by Haley, to approve Resolution No. 1747, An
Agreement for the Provision of Limited Professional Services with Confluence for the Corridor
of Commerce Downtown Streetscape Phase 8 Project not to exceed $25,196.00. On roll call, all

present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

* Kk k* Kk kK%





It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to approve Resolution No. 1748, Audit
Agreement with Feldmann & Company CPA’s P.C. to perform the annual audit for fiscal years
2017-2019 at an annual fee of $13,500 for FY 2017, $14,000 for FY 2018, and $14,500 for FY
2019. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

* ok ke k kKK

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Fleshner, to approve Resolution No. 1749,
Contracts for Liability, Property and Worker Compensation Insurance Coverages which includes
payment of premiums on July 1, 2017. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion
carried.

* ok ke k kKK

It was moved by Boes, seconded by Kots, to continue with development of construction
documents, plans and specifications for the U.S. 30 East Entrance Sign. On roll call, all present
voted aye except Fleshner and Siemann voted nay. Absent: None. Motion carried.

* ok ok k ok Kk

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to show “Carroll” in red letters reading
bottom to top on the U.S. 30 East Entrance Sign. On roll call, all present voted aye except
Fleshner and Siemann voted nay. Absent: None. Motion carried.

* ok ok ok ok Kk

It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Haley, to adjourn at 6:30 p.m. On roll call, all

present voted aye. Absent: None. Motion carried.

Eric P. Jensen, Mayor
ATTEST:

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk






City of

4

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

%

MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager\}\)\(«./\Q g B

FROM: Laura A. Schaefer, Finance Director/City Clerk
DATE: June 21, 2017

SUBJECT: Down Payment Assistance — Satisfaction of Forgivable Mortgages

In 2010, the City of Carroll was awarded a down payment assistance grant for first time homebuyers
from Iowa Finance Authority. The City contracted services with Region XII to administer the grant,
Part of the process included the recording of a forgivable mortgage with the City of Carroll listed as a
lien holder.

Iowa Finance Authority has contacted Region XII requesting that some of the forgivable mortgages be
released because the timeframe has expired. There will be several mortgages that will expire over the
coming months.

Attached is a resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign on behalf of the City for the satisfaction of
forgivable mortgages relating to the down payment assistance grant awarded in 2010.

RECOMN[ENDATION Council consideration and approval of the attached resolution authorizes
the Mayor to sign on behalf of the City of Carroll for the satisfaction of any forgivable mortgage
relating to the down payment assistance grant awarded in 2010.






RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SATISFACTION OF FORGIVABLE MORTGAGES
FROM DOWN PAYMENT ASSISTANCE

WHEREAS, in 2010 the City of Carroll was awarded a down payment assistance grant from
Iowa Finance Authority and administered by Region XII Council of Governments;

WHEREAS, the down payment assistance was in the form of forgivable mortgages; and
WHEREAS, the timeframe for these forgivable mortgages are beginning to expire;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to sign on behalf of
the City of Carroll for the release of the forgivable mortgages as notified by Iowa Finance Authority
due to an expiring timeframe.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, lowa, this 26th day
of June, 2017.

CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA

BY:
Eric P. Jensen, Mayor

ATTEST:

By:

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk







¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager N j‘j AN
FROM: Randall M. Krauel, Ditector of Public Works EIE
DATE: June 22, 2017

SUBJECT: Downtown Streetscape Phase 8
Supplemental Setvices Agreement #3

Discussions with Commetcial Savings Bank have recently included their desite for the City to attempt
to coordinate Streetscape completion adjacent to their new bank site with bank construction
completion. To initiate that attempt, a design Supplemental Services Agreement #3 has been
tequested and received from Confluence. The Agreement details the design services necessaty to
ptepate the block and one-half of West Street and 5% Street for streetscape construction. The

Agteement amends the contract fees by adding $14,750.00.

The Design Setvices Agreement fees with Supplemental Services Agreements #1, #2 and #3 and

Construction Setvices Agreement are as follows:

Design Setvices Agreement, 11-10-14 $65,500.00
Supplemental Setvices Agreement #1, 11-09-15 $23,540.00
Supplemental Services Agreement #2, 01-23-17 $12,900.00
Supplemental Services Agreement #3 $14.750.00
Total Design Contract Amount $116,690.00
Construction Setvices Agreement, 06-12-17 $25,196.00
Total $141,886.00

Mayor and City Council consideration and passage and approval of the

Resolution Approving Supplemental Services Agreement #3 with Confluence for the Downtown

Streetscape Phase 8 project.
RMK:ds

attachments (3)






RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES AGREEMENT #3 WITH
CONFLUENCE FOR THE CORRIDOR OF COMMERCE DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE
PHASE 8 PROJECT.

WHEREAS, the City of Cazroll is desirous of adding portions of West Street and Fifth Street to
the development of the Corridor of Commerce Downtown Streetscape Phase 8 project; and,

WHEREAS, a Supplemental Setvices Agreement #3 to the Design Services Agreement has been
ptepated for the development of the addition to the Corridor of Commerce Downtown Streetscape
Phase 8 project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, lowa, that
Supplemental Services Agreement #3 with Confluence for the Corridor of Commerce Downtown
Streetscape Phase 8 is approved.

Passed and approved by the Catroll City Council this 26™ day of June, 2017.

CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA

By:

Eric P. Jensen, Mayor

ATTEST:

By:
Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk






B25 I TH STREET DES SMEER, 1A 50309 CO(‘) F"LU EﬁC &,

TELBIS-Z88. 4875 FANSIS-D83 S350 WIW THINKCONFLUFNGE.CON

Suppleniental Agresment

June 26,2017

Mr., Randall M. Krausl, Pulilic Works Diréctor
Gity of Carroll

112 €..5% Street.

Carrotl, 1A:51401

Re: Carroll Downtown Sirestscape Phase 8, Confluence #14136
Supplemental Services Agreement # 3

‘Dear Mr. Krauely

At the request of he City of Carroll, we are providing this Supplemental Agreement #3 for the-addition of design scope tothe Carroll
Downtown Streetscape Phase.8 contract, The additional area s described ag the west 2 block of West 5% Street, and West Straet from
West 59 Street fo West 67 Street as shown Tn the-attached Exhibit B-3, The scope of services are as followsy

1, Desigriof pavement and ctirh moditications along the north side of the west ¥ block.of West 57 Stréet to match thenew public
‘sidewalk-alignmenit created in the east ¥ block.

Design of pavement and curb miodifications to the Depot Business Center parking islands along the west sidé of West Stréet to allow
“fot a 5" sidewalk continuaition fram Culvers-to the Carroll Chamber Office.

Design of 5' sidewalk along east side of West Street from West 5% Street to West 6 Street {US 30).

Design-of landscaping. .

Deslgn of new street lighting along these segments to match City standards (by JEQ Consulting Group).

Coordination with Community Savings Barik plans and consfruction dchedule:
“Preparation of constrirction documents-and cost estimate,

Bidding administration and review of bid proposals,

NS

NGO W

Based on the above, we respectfully request that our current contract amount of $101,940.00 be amended by $14,750,00, for a revised
total contract ambunt of $116,690.00 This amendiient is subject to afl other terms and conditions of the orginal agreement, Upon your
review and approval, please return one signed copy to us: Thank you for your consideration.

ACKNGWLEDGEMENT OF APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT

City of Carroll Confhsence
By: Erlc P. Jensen By: Chris Della Vedova
wb"‘w
, e
Signature: Signature: @/{ ,@’( L//
Title: Mayor Title: President and CEQ
Date; June 26, 2017 Date: June 26, 2017
Eng: ExhioitB-3
Cody Forch, JEO
Ce: Jeff Sobezyk, JEO

14136 Gatroll Downtown Streetscape Phase 8
Page 1 of 1






Exhibit B-3
Carroll Corridor of Commerce Phase 8 CONFLUENCE

June 26, 2017

Carroll, lowa






¢

112 E. 5th Sireet Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager %M/{f* (JJ
FROM: Randall M. Krauel, Directot of Public Works 24
DATE: June 20, 2017
SUBJECT: High Ridge Road HMA Resutfacing

Statement of Completion and Final Acceptance of Work

The contractor, OMG Midwest, Inc. d/b/a Tti-State Paving, has completed the High Ridge Road
HMA Resurfacing project. The wotk on the project was started May 16, 2016 and completed June 7,
2017. Ninety-four (94) wotking days wete specified for the project. A total of ninety-eight (98)
wortking days were charged to the project.

The contract price was $1,259,956.06. The unaudited final construction cost is $1,180,008.61.

N: Mayor and City Council consideration and apptoval of the Statement of
cceptance of Work for the High Ridge Road HMA Resutfacing project.

attachment






i {SIOWADOT

SMARTER | SIMPLER 1 CUSTOMER DRIVEN

STATEMENT OF COMPLETION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF WORK

OMG Midwest, Inc. d/b/a Tri-State Paving Letiing Date  3/15/2016
Contract ID 14-1125-616

Contractor

work Type HMA Resurfacing

Accounting ID(s) 33339

Project Number(s) STP-U-1 125(616)—-70-14

Type of Contract

[ | specified Start Date

D Approximate Start Date Site No.(s) 00

Late Start Date 6/27/2016 Working Days Specified: 94

[:l Completion Date Contract Working Days Charged: 98

Actual Start Date 5/16/2016 Closure Days Specified:
Closure Days Charged:

Field Completion Date 6/7/2017

Recommended for Acceptance lowa DOT Contract Acceptance

Signature Cazﬁqj(ﬂok) Signature

O:’roject Engineer District Construction Engineer

Date b/26L/ 11 Date

’Approyed and Work Accepted on Behalf of the Rgantdyof Bupgmvisori®k City Council of

the City of Carroll R this 26th Day of June . 2017

Year

Signature

COMNENENIe® Mayor

For Central Office Use Only

r Recorded Finance Recorded Construction & Materials

NOTE: On county administered projects, the County Engineer is required to sign “Recommended for Acceptance” and
“Approved and Work Accepted on Behalf of the Board of Supervisors”.

Project Engineer ~ Send original to District District ~ Forward original to Office of Construction & Materials and copy to Project Engineer.







City Manager’s

Monthly Activity Report
Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager

May 2017

City of @/fﬂi’l

This is a report of the various departments and divisions of the City of Carroll.

1






Finance Department

As reported by Laura Schaefer, City Clerk/Finance Director

Routine Activities for the month:

Dealt with water issues/collections

Attended Healthiest State Initiative Conference — May 2 (Ames)

Attended lowa Government Finance Initiative Training — May 4 (Atlantic)

Worked with Benefit Source Inc. for health insurance renewal — employee meetings
Continued to work with Rec Center/Aquatic Center with new software

Prepared and filed FY 16/17 Budget Amendment #2

Compiled information for annual liability and property insurance renewal

Continued to promote wellness initiatives (Carroll County Wellness Coalition and City
wellness program)
o Wellness Coalition Meeting — May 18

Activities planned for next month and other comments:

Continue to work on delinquent water accounts/water issues

Draft financial policies

Continue to work with Rec Center/Aquatic Center new software

Review property & liability insurance renewal information

Audit services bid opening — June 6

Continue to promote wellness program with employees
o Employer sponsored wellness seminar (blood pressure) — June 8
o Wellness Coalition Meeting — June 15

Accomplishments of particular note:

e 253 utility bills and statements were emailed in May 2017.






Fire Department

As reported by Greg Schreck, Fire Chief

Routine Activities for the month:
The Department responded to five calls for service and held three training sessions in May.

Firefighter training focused on truck pumping operations and firefighting hose line extension into
structures. Truck pumping operations involve obtaining water from draft, which is required for rural
fire-fighting operations. The draft process involves tanker trucks quick-dumping water into portable
tanks and returning to a hydrant for re-filling. Pumper trucks then draft water from the portable tanks
for fire suppression. Hose line extension training involves hose-clamping charged lines in order to
add hose sections for extended reach within buildings. The Department continues to utilize the
abandoned house on the golf course for these training sessions.

The Department participated in the American Legion Memorial Day Parade held May 31%.

Run Report for May:

Alarm Date Alarm Location Incident Type
05/03/2017 510 E 18" Apt. B-2 Stove fire

05/11/2017 1211 E 18™ False alarm

05/16/2017 912 Boylan Ave Bathroom vent fire

05/24/2017 805 W 15 Dishwasher fire

05/30/2017 250" and Highway 71 Vehicle collision






Police Department

As reported by Brad Burke, Police Chief

Routine Activities for the month:

Officer Ethan Kathol attended open sight rifle instructor school at the lowa Law Enforcement
Academy (ILEA) from May 1-5. This certifies the officer to train and qualify officers on the use of
patrol rifles.

Officer Alex Klever, Sergeants JJ Schreck and Gary Bellinghausen attended sexual assault forensic
interview training. This training was held in Carroll and hosted at New Opportunities. The training
was open to law enforcement from around the area and gave the officers information on interviewing
victims of sexual assault.

Tours of the police department continued throughout the month as classes from local schools rounded
out their year.

Officer Nathan Christian was certified as a marijuana identification specialist after attending training
from May 22-25 at the lowa Department of Public Safety Crime Lab in Ankeny. Officer Christian,
along with 2 other officers, test marijuana that is seized by the CPD along with other surrounding
agencies. All testing is completed in the Carroll Police Department Lab.






CARROLL POLICE DEPARTMENT OFFENSE SUMMARY
Reported: May 1 THRU May 31, 2017

Offenses

Incidents

Reported

Citations

Simple Assault

Animal

Domestic Abuse

Burglary/B&E

Dark Windows

Shoplifting

License

Theft from Vehicle

Other

Theft Vehicle Part

Parking Violation

Theft from Building

Motor Vehicle Theft

Registration

Credit/ATM Fraud

Seatbelt

Vandalism: Residence

Tobacco

Vandalism: Vehicle

Traffic

Drug/Narc Violations

Drive Under Infl

Warning

OWTI 2nd

TOTAL

OWTI 3rd

Liquor Law Violation

Drunkenness

Disorderly Conduct

All Other Offenses

Trespassing

Found Property

Animal Bite

Warrant Outside

Restraining Order

10-50 PI

1050PD

1050PD: Hit and Run

Under 1500

Op After Revocation

Operate After Suspen

Misc. Public

Total

I R N E E N E A E NN R R E N N N S NN R R P E LN

Salvage Vehicle
Inspections: 13






Building Department

As reported by Perry Johnson, Building Official

Permits - By Class - By Type - May 2017

Permit
Class Type Date Issued Valuation Permit #

Agricultural
Building

NONE
Agricultural Building Valuation Total: Agricultural Building Fee Total:

Agricultural Valuation Agricultural Fee
Total: $0.00 Total: $0.00

Commercial
Building
05/01/2017 $1,007,900.00 170101 $2,517.00
Commercial Building Valuation Total: ~ $1,007,900.00 Commercial Building Fee Total: ~ $2,517.00

Electrical
05/16/2017 170108 $65.11

05/16/2017 170118 $86.58
05/16/2017 170119 $35.88

Commerecial Electrical Fee Total: $187.57
Mechanical
05/16/2017 170115 $42.26

Commercial Mechanical Fee
Total: $42.26

Plumbing
05/16/2017 170116 $37.50

Commercial Plumbing Fee Total: $37.50
Right of Way
05/01/2017 170099 $0.00

05/16/2017 170117 $25.00
05/18/2017 170121 $25.00

05/31/2017 170133 $25.00

Commercial Right of Way Fee
Total: $75.00

05/16/2017 170120 $5.00
Commercial Sign Fee Total: $5.00

Commercial Valuation Total: $1,007,900.00 Commercial Fee Total: $2,864.33






Residential
Building
05/01/2017 $0.00 170094 $35.00
05/01/2017 $180,000.00 170095 $678.50
05/02/2017 $27,000.00 170105 $181.00
05/16/2017 $101,500.00 170114 $446.00
05/23/2017 $95,000.00 170122 $465.00
05/23/2017 $6,000.00 170125 $53.25
Residential Building Valuation Total: $409,500.00 Residential Building Fee Total: $1,858.75
Electrical
05/01/2017 170093 $80.98
05/01/2017 170100 $36.44
05/01/2017 170102 $35.88
05/01/2017 170103 $137.25
05/02/2017 170104 $35.88
05/23/2017 170129 $95.13
Residential Electrical Fee Total: $421.56
Mechanical
05/16/2017 170109 $64.13
05/16/2017 170110 $58.01
05/23/2017 170128 $64.88
Residential Mechanical Fee Total: $187.02
Plumbing
05/01/2017 170092 $39.00
05/16/2017 170112 $100.00
05/23/2017 170130 $73.00
05/23/2017 170131 $41.00
05/23/2017 170132 $34.00

Residential Plumbing Fee Total: $287.00

Right of Way
05/01/2017 170096 $25.00
05/01/2017 170097 $385.00
05/01/2017 170098 $0.00
05/03/2017 170106 $0.00
05/16/2016 170107 $25.00
05/16/2017 170111 $25.00
05/16/2017 170113 $25.00
05/23/2017 170123 $25.00
05/23/2017 170124 $25.00
05/23/2017 170126 $25.00
05/23/2017 170127 $25.00
05/31/2017 170134 $25.00

Residential Right of Way Fee
Total: $610.00

$0.00
Residential Sign Fee Total: $0.00

Residential VValuation
Total: $409,500.00 Residential Fee Total: $3,364.33

Valuation Grand Total:  $1,417,400.00 Fee Grand Total: $6,228.66






Permits - YTD - through May 2017

Class Permit Type

Valuation

Agricultural
Building

Agricultural
Valuation Total:

Agricultural
Fee Total:

Commercial
Building
Electrical
Mechanical
Plumbing
Right of Way
Sign

Commercial
Valuation Total:

$13,380,220.00

Commercial

$13,380,220.00 Fee Total:

$23,591.50
$497.38
$143.18
$123.50
$150.00
$55.00

$24,560.56

Residential
Building
Electrical
Mechanical
Plumbing
Right of Way

Sign

Residential
Valuation Total:

$5,070,000.00

Residential

$5,070,000.00 Fee Total:

$16,480.95
$964.39
$660.48
$1,345.50

$1,035.00

$20,486.32

Valuation Grand Total:

Fee Grand
$18,450,220.00 Total:

$45,046.88






As reported by Randy Krauel, Public Works Director/City Engineer
Routine Activities for the month:
Division: Streets; Tom Weber, Street Superintendent

Excavated eight graves for Cemetery

Placed 32 cubic yards of concrete for street repairs and ROW permits.

Repaired brick pavers on U.S. Hwy. 30 at Carroll Street on May 2"

Buried field tile behind Street Maintenance Garage to help drain property.

Assisted the Wastewater Division with a new lid on a sanitary sewer structure at 116 Simon
Avenue on May 8.

Crack-sealed High Ridge Road.

Patched potholes.

Assisted Water Division with watermain repair at 13" Street and Adams Street on May 111,
Assisted Wastewater Division with a sanitary sewer repair on Windwood Drive.

Assisted Carroll County cleaning ditch on 3™ Street on May 26,

Graded shoulders on Railroad Street for proper drainage on May 31%,

Repaired washout locations at new well sites on May 31%,

Maintained signs and signals.

Swept streets.

Started traffic marking painting on streets.

Division Safety Meeting: Improving Safety Performance on May 25™, 2017.

Division: Water; Terry Kluver, Water Superintendent

e Water production:
Monthly Total: 38.813 million gallons
Daily Average: 1.123 million gallons
Daily Maximum:  1.458 million gallons
Completed 198 lowa One Call locate requests.
Meter Department
148 service orders.
20 delinquents.
3 rereads.
3 stuck meters.
. Division Safety Meeting: “Seven Tips for Electrical Safety”, May 25, 2017.

Division: Sean Kleespies, Wastewater Superintendent

e \Wastewater treatment:
Monthly Total: 75.791 million gallons
Daily Average: 2.445 million gallons
Daily Maximum: 3.576 million gallons
Performed laboratory analysis.
Completed DNR Monthly Operating Report.

9






e Daily plant sampling and operations.
e Division Safety Meeting: “Seven Tips for Electrical Safety”, May 24, 2017.

Special Activities/Accomplishments of particular note:

Division: Streets; Tom Weber, Street Superintendent

e Placed larvicide tablets in wet areas for mosquito control.
e Picked up tree branches from wind storm on May 17",

Division: Water; Terry Kluver, Water Superintendent

e Excavated and shut off corporation stop at 640 Troy Drive.
e Mowed three (3) well sites.
e Submitted permit-required sample for Nitrate.

Division: Sean Kleespies, Wastewater Superintendent

Routine maintenance on plant equipment.

Jet/vac and camera inspection of the sanitary sewer.

Worked on communication for the Industrial Park Road lift station.

Repaired a 4’ section of sanitary sewer on Windwood Drive.

Had a rain event that required water to be diverted to the stormwater detention.
Replaced electrical wiring to Blower #4.

Hydro excavated storm sewer for Street Division at 6™ Street and Maple Street.
Repaired manhole east of New Hope Village.

Vactor jet/vac demo by Trans-lowa.

Camel jet/vac demo by Elliot Equipment.






Activities planned for next month and other comments:

Division: Streets; Tom Weber, Street Superintendent

Paint traffic markings.

Assist Wastewater Division with sanitary sewer repairs.
Street repairs.

Maintain signs and signals.

ROW Permits.

Division: Water; Terry Kluver, Water Superintendent

Obtain bacteria samples on watermain for Northridge Fourth Subdivision Phase Three.

Begin obtaining permit-required samples for thirty (30) Lead and Copper sites in the
distribution system.

Complete 2017 Consumer Confidence Report and distribute, by mail and electronically, to
consumers.

Division: Sean Kleespies, Wastewater Superintendent

Laboratory Analysis.

DNR Monthly Operating Report.

Perform preventative maintenance on equipment.

Lab will be performing proficiency testing for the EPA.

Repair sanitary sewer on 8™ Street between Vine Street and High Ridge Road.
Jet/VVac the City sanitary sewer.

Finish communication system for Industrial Park Road lift station.






CAPITAL PROJECT STATUS SUMMARY - 06-13-17

PROJECT ANTICIPATED CONTRACT DATA

Name Action Budget Estimated Projected Contractor Contract Cost | Start Date Expenditure % Completion
Plan Cost Completion Complete Date

Cemetery 2015
Maintenance New
Garage

Trails 2015

On-
going

Merchants 2015
Park On-

going

Rec Center 2015
Locker Rooms On-
going
Streambed $385,000
Stabilization

Third Street $1,400,000 JEO $152,425.00 11-09-15 $154,807.50 03-31-16 Design
Storm Sewer Consulting $11,000.00 08-08-16 Const. Staking
Improvements Group, Inc. (Hourly)

-2016 King $1,368,237.55 | 06-13-16 | $1,386,083.18

Construction Group A - West

Rognes Corp. $850,833.90 06-13-16 $799,864.62
Group B — East

Street JEO $60,800.00 + 09-24-12 $43,848.36 11-15-13 Plus Hourly
Resurfacing Consulting Construction
2013 Group, Inc. Services

Godbersen- $555,808.75 $563,827.37 11-15-13
Smith
Construction
Co.






PROJECT

ANTICIPATED

CONTACT DATA

Project Name

Action
Plan

CIP

Estimated
Cost

Projected
Completion

Contractor

Contract Cost

Start Date

Expenditure

%
Complete

Completion
Date

Notes

Street
Resurfacing
2015

2016
On-
going

FY 16

JEO
Consulting
Group, Inc.

Ten Point
Constr. Co.,
Inc.

$122,730.00
+

$1,132,455.61

11-10-14

06-16-15

$132,856.50

$1,180,803.75

04-15

11-13-15

Plus Hourly
Construction
Services
Design
Completion

Street
Maintenance
Building

$4,308,500

FEH Design

$22,500.00

01-25-16

$2,250.00

05-01-16

Space Needs/
Prelim. Design

US 30 - Grant
Road
Intersection

$1,466,150

Snyder &
Associates,
Inc.

Snyder &
Associates,
Inc.

$4,900.00

$199,600.00

07-22-13

04-14-14

$4,900.00

$165,533.15

08-15-13

TSIP
Application

Downtown
Streetscape
Phase 8

$998,500

Confluence

Confluence

Badding
Construction
Company

$101,940.00

$25,196.000

$1,294,844.41

11-10-14

06-12-17

06-12-17

$102,038.53

05-15-17

11-15-17

11-15-17

Design
Completion

Const. Services

High Ridge
Road
Resurfacing -
2016

$1,150,00 0

JEO
Consulting
Group, Inc.

OMG
Midwest, Inc.

$99,356.00
$94,260.00

1,149,123.40

09-14-15

04-11-16

$199,385.40

$1,170,008.61

2016

Design
Construction
Services






PROJECT

ANTICIPATED

CONTACT DATA

Project Name

Action
Plan

Estimated Projected
Cost Completion

Contractor

Contract Cost

Start Date

Expenditure

%
Complete

Completion
Date

Corridor Entry
Features

2016
On-
going

$440,000 2018

Confluence

$19,550.00

01-23-17

$5,988.90

Third Street
Improvements

$1,036,000

JEO
Consulting
Group, Inc.

Tri-State
Paving

$71,193.00
$80,078.00

$777,872.17

09-26-16

Late Start
Date
08-14-17

$73,193.00

40 Working
Days

Design
Construction
Services

Well and
Transmission
Main

Transmission
Main — Group
A

JEO
Consulting
Group, Inc.

Drake
Construction,
L.C.

$324,000.00

$790,134.07

07-28-14

03-23-14

$325,810.61

$743,099.63

Contract
Completion
11-30-15

Watermain
Replacement

$500,000

Leachate
Forcemain &
Gravity Sewer

King
Construction

$661,257.50
Total

$335,962.50
City

07-18-16

08-31-16

CCSWMC
Contract






Parks and Recreation

As reported by Jack Wardell, Parks and Recreation Director
Routine Activities for the month:

Parks: Scott Parcher, Parks Superintendent
Clean all restrooms and shelters
Mow all park areas
Trim trees
Maintain perennials beds downtown
Maintain all ballfields
Weed control in all park areas

. Scott Haakenson, Golf Superintendent
Mowed fairways 11 times
Mowed tees 12 times
Mowed collars 12 times
Mowed greens 15 times
Rolled greens seven times
Mowed rough as needed
Trimmed as needed
Cut cups 11 times
Sprayed greens and tees as needed
Watered as needed
Serviced mowers as needed

Cemetery: John Snyder, Cemetery Sexton

e Tended to 14 funerals, three were cremation burials, 11 were full burials with one being
held on Saturday
Prepared cemetery grounds for Memorial Day
Picked up a ton of branches and sticks blown down by strong winds
Picked up garbage daily
Mowed cemetery five times
Trimmed cemetery three times
Used prisoners from Rockwell City for weed eating and picking up sticks and garbage for
three days. Transported prisoners to and from Rockwell City
Edged curbs on Grant Road, 1% Street and all cemetery streets
Trimmed trees when and where needed
Started moving and setting up in new Cemetery Maintenance Building
Worked with the public on grave sales, locations and private cremation burials
Applied mulch in perennial gardens
Edged sidewalks on 1% Street, Clark Street and Veterans Circle two times
Did all office paperwork which includes time sheets, burial records, grave sales, billing
records for funeral homes and fees collected for private cremation burials
Stocked new black dirt bunker - twice
Serviced two mowers






Recreation Center: McKenzie Kiger, Recreation Center Superintendent,

Sarah

Johnson, Aquatics & Fitness Specialist, Mike Mertes, Program Specialist and Pam

Hanlin, Secretary
e May Aquatic Center pass sales: $29,290 (139 family passes, 37 single, 30

caregiver add-ons)
Youth Tri : 67 kids registered
Fitness classes
Learning Perfect Mind
Selling of Pool Passes
Getting the Aquatic Center ready to roll
Monthly State water testing
Guard Scheduling
Youth Triathlon
Hiring of Lifeguards
Reservations
Wellness Coalition
Fitness calendars
Monitor Production Slideshow update
Updating website & social media with help of Pam Hanlin

Building Maintenance: Andy Snyder, Building Maintenance Specialist
e Changed light bulbs on city property

Back washed filters for pools and spa at Rec Center

General housekeeping

Time sheets for staff

Ordered supplies

Vacuum Pool

Night cleaning crew at Rec Center

Power scrub gym and pool at Rec Center

Bills

Special Activities/Accomplishments of particular note:

Parks: Scott Parcher, Parks Superintendent
e Plant and maintain flowers

Golf: Scott Haakenson, Golf Superintendent
e Put fountain in #7 pond
e Cut down dead pine behind #4 green
¢ Finished retaining wall project next to clubhouse

Cemetery: John Snyder, Cemetery Sexton
e Prepared cemetery for Memorial Day






Recreation Center: McKenzie Kiger, Recreation Center Superintendent, Sarah Johnson,

Aquatics & Fitness Specialist, Mike Mertes, Program Specialist and Pam Hanlin,

Secretary

o Attended Workforce Development Job Fair May 9
e Attended lowa Parks and Recreation Association state Pool Manager Workshop

with Sarah in Marshalltown. Topics included social media, professionalism of
guards, new lifeguard skills, icebreakers, training for special considerations around
the pool.
Interviewed potential new water fitness staff for summer/fall
Hired 3 summer part-time staff to operate new “Summer Kids Camp” program
serving kids too old for daycare but not ready for being alone all summer. Began
planning events, activities and room preparation for the summer. Each week
different theme (castles, Olympics, nature, camping, etc.)
Offered two dates at the Aquatic Center to sell passes and assist families in a quick
purchase vs. coming to the Recreation Center
Offered 2 extra lifeguard classes in May in attempt to get more lifeguards. Was able
to certify more than 10 more lifeguards for our facilities.
Opening the Carroll Aquatic Center on Saturday, May 27
Teaching 9 am MWF Flex & Stretch water fitness class/updated routines focus on
balance and strength
Youth Tri meetings, planning and assistance for successful event May 27 — Sarah
took the lead on this event, but all staff assisted in various ways
Summer Swim team began May 30, this year offering morning or night practice
options
Spring Soccer Games
Baseball / Softball Program planning
T-ball Program planning
Summer Activity planning
Soccer Concession Stand

Building Maintenance: Andy Snyder, Building Maintenance Specialist
e Fixed bathrooms at city buildings

Worked on vacuums at City Hall and Rec Center

Fixed exercise equipment

Sinks and drains at Rec Center and City Hall

Downtown lights

Working on specs, bids, quotes

Locker locks at Rec Center

Budget items

Theater rentals

Floor drains at Rec Center

Finishing budget items

Storm sirens testing

Baseball stadium project

Golf house removal

Next year’s budget items

Replacement of electrical service at Historical Building

Night cleaning shift openings

Water lines at Rec Center






Street light bulb testing

Aquatic Center opening

Little League lights

Pump seals at Aquatic Center

Street lights to LED on highway stop lights

Activities planned for next month and other comments:

Parks: Scott Parcher, Parks Superintendent
e Mow all park areas
e Maintain perennial beds
e Maintain all ballfields

Golf: Scott Haakenson, Golf Superintendent
e Routine mowing
e Cut down more dead pine trees

Cemetery: John Snyder, Cemetery Sexton
e Clean up after Memorial Day
e Stay with regular maintenance schedule

Recreation Center: McKenzie Kiger, Recreation Center Superintendent, Sarah Johnson,
Aquatics & Fitness Specialist, Mike Mertes, Program Specialist and Pam Hanlin,
Secretary
e Summer programs begin: Summer Kids Camp, Volleyball,

Thall/Baseball/Softball leagues, REC summer swim team meets, swim lessons

Researching fitness training

Hoping to hire more trainers

Summer / Fall Program planning

Fall Sports Registration

Inventory Spring Soccer

Building Maintenance: Andy Snyder, Building Maintenance Specialist
e Pool lights

Safety Topic:
e Lockout Tagout
e Remember your Safety ABC’s “Always Be Careful”






/7
D 1/0” Director’s Report
] April 2017

PUBLIC LIBRARY

INFORM -« INSPIRE « IMAGINE

As reported by Brandie Ledford, Library Director

Program Attendance: Monthly Statistics:

MOB — STEM Programming 21 Total Print Circulation: 7,678
Everybody on the Same Page Program 43 BRIDGES Circulation: 686
Tech Help Friday 39 Consumer Reports: 575
Children’s Library Programs 834 Public Computer Use: 658
Children’s Program Outreach 483 Wi-Fi Use: 217
Crafty Library Ladies 59 Website Visits 3,423
Poetry Group 17 EbscoHost Downloads: 127
Noon Book Club 7 Global Road Warrior Page Views: 313
Evening Book Club 6 Learning Express Resources: 3
Ukrainian Eggs Program 8 Freegal Music Downloads: 494
GVRL eBook Downloads: 0
Total Program Attendance : ABC Mouse Sessions: 50
Monthly Door Count Zinio Digital Magazine Circulation: 54
Daily Times Herald Page Views: 3,312
Total Resources Utilized 17,590

Special activities/accomplishments of particular note:

1) Children’s Programs: Story time programming this month included Rookie
Readers, Diane’s Read-Aloud, Ivan the Reading Dog, and outreach to area
daycares. Diane started summer reading commercials at the Optional
Kindergarten at Kuemper this month and has more classes scheduled in the month
of May. The Everybody on the Same Page program wrapped up this month with
500 kids attending the Finding Winnie story time in March and April. Staff are
currently getting ready for summer reading promotions and registration is
scheduled to take place the first week in June. The Earth Day program was a big
hit with 368 attending this come and go event at the library. Ivan the Reading
Dog and Dr. Whoot made special appearances. There were also signups for 1,000
Books Before Kindergarten, photo ops, coloring stations and animals displayed by
Samantha Dunn from Blank Park Zoo including a snake, alligator, pigmy
hedgehog, and a naked neck chicken.






2) Adult & Teen Programs: Adult programs continued this month with the regular
monthly schedule of Tech Help Fridays, Crafty Ladies, Noon Book Club, Evening
Book Club and the poetry group. Another adult program was held for the
Everybody on the Same Page program this month to wrap up the program. CPL
welcomed back Pippa White for another theatrical performance about World War
| called Saints, Soldiers and Spies with 43 attending.

Service Updates: Staff updated procedures for requesting interlibrary loan
materials with the State Library’s recent release of the new SILO ILL system. In
addition, the library SonicWall router was replaced because the firewall’s CPU
was maxed out causing issues with simultaneous connections including trouble
downloading or streaming content on personal devices. This update has fixed
these connection issues for patrons.

Upcoming Events: View upcoming events on the library’s Google calendar at
www.carroll-library.org by clicking on the Calendar of Events link on the home

page.




http://www.carroll-library.org/



/70-” Director’s Repor
Dﬂ C&I ng 2017p t

PUBLIC LIBRARY

INFORM -« INSPIRE « IMAGINE

As reported by Rachel Van Erdewyk, Library Director

Program Attendance: Monthly Statistics:

Tech Help Friday Total Print Circulation:
Children’s Library Programs BRIDGES Circulation:

Summer Reading Commercials Consumer Reports:

Crafty Library Ladies Public Computer Use:

Noon Book Club Wi-Fi Use:

Evening Book Club Website Visits

James Stordahl EbscoHost Downloads:

Global Road Warrior Page Views:
Learning Express Resources:
Freegal Music Downloads:
GVRL eBook Downloads:

ABC Mouse Sessions:

Total Program Attendance , Zinio Digital Magazine Circulation:
Monthly Door Count , Daily Times Herald Page Views:
Total Resources Utilized

Special activities/accomplishments of particular note:

1) Children’s Programs: Storytime programming this month included Rookie
Readers, Diane’s Read-Aloud, and outreach commercials. Diane continued her
Summer Reading commercials at Breda daycare, Carroll Fairview School, Carroll
Middle School, Kuemper schools, and the Ar-We-Va community schools.
Summer Reading registration began on May 30. After the first day of registration,
523 people were registered and after the first week, 954 people were registered.






2) Adult & Teen Programs: Adult programs continued this month with the regular
monthly schedule of Tech Help Fridays, Crafty Library Ladies, Noon Book Club,
and the Evening Book Club. Poetry Club will begin meeting again in June. The
Book Clubs will meet again this fall. James Stordahl came on Thursday, May 25,
2017. Through his journey, Jim learned the importance of journaling for good
mental health. The result is four books about living and coping with Bipolar
Disorder: Bipolar Dad, Scatterbrain, Bits and Pieces, and Straggler. This program
was well received with 36 people attending.

Library/City Hall Project Update: City Council on May 22, 2017, unanimously
agreed to set a referendum date of August 1, 2017.

Upcoming Events: A few summer reading events include:
Jonathan May, Magician: June 20

Geoff Akins Hannah, Bubble Wonders: June 27
Laughing Matters, Jay & Leslie: July 11

Dan Wardell, IPTV Reading Road Trip: July 25
Makerspace Demo with Aidex: July 27

STEM Camp for 9™ through 12" graders: August 1 and 2
STEM Camp for 6" through 8" graders: August 8 and 9
STEM Camp for adults: August 15 and 16

Pick up a Summer Reading Program booklet and magnet to see what other events
are planned for this summer. View upcoming events on the library’s Google
calendar at www.carroll-library.org by clicking on the Calendar of Events link on
the home page.




http://www.carroll-library.org/



Annual Planning Session

Carroll City Council Annual Planning Session
2016-2017 Priority Items Work Plan Update as of May 31, 2017
Current and Ongoing Items

e Develop Library/City Hall concept/implementation/financing plan
o Council Work Session with OPN held February 13, 2017
o Council Work Session with PFM held February 27, 2017
Continue Street Improvements
o Third Street HMA Resurfacing
= Bid Letting March 21, 2017 - Complete
= Award of Contract: April 24, 2017 - Complete
= Contract late start date: August 24, 2017
= Contract working days: 40
Grant Rd/Hwy 30 Improvements
o Project Development Schedule (Tentative)
ROW Offers to Property Owners: June 2, 2017
Check Plans and Bid Documents: June 30, 2017
Final Plans and Bid Documents: August 18, 2017
ROW Acquisition: October 31, 2017
Bid Letting: December 11, 2017
Bid Award: December 28, 2017

Trails Expansion
o Bid Letting — April 11, 2017 — Completed
o Award of Contract — April 24, 2017 — Completed
o Construction — Late July
o Completion Date — September 30, 2017
Review Graham Park Athletic District/ISU Plan when developed
o Plan reviewed with Committee at the February 10, 2017 meeting
o Final Plan has been reviewed by City Council
o $75,000 in the FY 18 budget for further planning
Continue Corridor of Commerce streetscapes on planning bases
o Streetscape Phase 8 Project Development Schedule (Tentative)
= Plan Hearing: May 22, 2017
= Bid Letting: June 6, 2017
» Bid Award: June 12, 2017
= Construction Substantial Completion: November 15, 2017
FY 2018 Budget
o Conducted Council Work Sessions on January 26 and 30, 2017
o Public Hearing and FY 2018 Budget approved: March 13, 2017
City Entryway Signs
o City Council Workshop: January 9, 2017
o Monument signage and Trail Improvement Capital Loan Note Public Hearing
and Resolutions: February 2017
Downtown Business Sign Selection: April 10, 2017, April 24, 2017
US 30 East Entrance Sign Consideration: April 10, 2017

23






e Competitive Bidding Laws for lowa
o City Council Workshop: January 23, 2017
o No further scheduled action

Upcoming Actions (Tentative Dates)
e Develop Library/City Hall concept/implementation/financing plan
o Rescheduled meeting with OPN: February 13, 2017
o Meeting with OPN: April 10, 2017
Debt Issuance and Debt Management meeting with PFM
o City Council Workshop: February 27, 2017
Develop Sidewalk repair program
o City Council Workshop: May 8, 2017
Start Rec Center Improvement Projects
o City Council Workshop: March 27, 2017
Develop plan/strategy for Rec Center for long-term viability
o City Council Workshop: March 27, 2017
Trails Expansion
o City Council Workshop
Implement Housing Study
Rental Housing Inspection Program
o City Council Workshop
Water Distribution/Street Conditions
o City Council Workshop: July 2017

Other items on the Horizon (Ongoing/no set timeline at this time)
e Waste Water Treatment Plant Improvements

o DO/Disinfection: Self-Assessment Matrix and Work Record Request:
January 1, 2017
Copper: Compliance Strategy: May 1, 2017
DO/Disinfection: Facility Plan: October 1, 2017
DO/Disinfection: Progress Report: April 1, 2018
Copper: Progress Report: May 1, 2018
DO/Disinfection: Plans and Specifications: September 1, 2018
Nutrient Reduction: Feasibility Report: November 1, 2018
DO/Disinfection: Construction Contract: November 1, 2018
Copper: Progress Report: May 1, 2019
DO/Disinfection: Progress Report: July 1, 2019
DO/Disinfection: Complete Contraction: March 1, 2020
DO/Disinfection: Compliance: April 1, 2020
Copper: Progress Report: May 1, 2020
Copper: Progress Report: May 1, 2021
Copper: Compliance: October 1, 2021
e Street Maintenance Building — Develop Financing Plan
e Council Adoption of Financial Policies
e Learn more about and provide information on the Community Endowment Fund

24

O 0O O O O O O o0 o0 O O o0 o0 o







City of Carroll
¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager IM/;Q b’*\)
FROM: Jack Wardell, Director of Parks and éecreation 49
DATE:  June 21,2017
SUBJECT: Report of Bid Opening — 72” Front Mount Mower — Golf Course
Pre-Bid Estimate: F.Y.2017-18 - Budgeted Item $21,000.00

On June 20, 2017 two bids were received at the time of the bid opening and the results are
listed below:

72” Mower Trade-In Final Cost

Rueter’'s Red Power — Carroll, lowa — Kubota
$22,925.00 ($5,000.00) $17,925.00

Van WaII Equipment — Urbandale, lowa — John Deere

$23,625.00 ($5,200.00) $19,125.00

Trade In Mower: 2010 John Deere JD 1445 Mower with 3,000 hours

The Kubota mower has met all of the specifications outlined in the bid documents.

RECOMMENDATION: For the Mayor and City Council to approve the bid from Rueters red
Power from Carroll, lowa for the final cost of $17,925.00.






CITY OF CARROLL
Department of Parks and Recreation

N TR BID OPENING REPORT

CARROLL, IOWA 51401
(712) 792-5400

For: 72 Inch Front Mount Mower - Carroll Municipal Golf Course
Bids were opened on: June 20, 2017 @ 2:00 PM

Pre-Bid Estimate: $21,000

2017
72" Front Trade In
CONTRACTOR: Mount Mower 2010 JD 1445 Total Cost
1. Rueters Red Power - Kubota $ 2292500 $ 5,000.00 $  17,925.00
2. Van Wall Equipment - John Deere $  23,625.00 $ 5,200.00 $  18,425.00

Signed: /'{(?'L[/“é O (/A . :‘@%’/Za‘/'ddifxﬂé;)
2/

Date: é ‘X(}"‘ﬂd/ b]






, For Life

For Earth

990

F,

/

()
(©)]
Y
LL
|

- F2690







| ’

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager é{/{‘f}'@v@

DATE: June 21, 2017 June-8;2017
(Changes from the June 8" memo shown are underline and strikethroughs)

SUBJECT: Residential Solid Waste Hauling Agreement and amendments to the City
: Code related to solid waste regulation and fees

1. Consider approval of a resolution approving a new Residential Solid
Waste Hauling Agreement.

2. Consider approving the first reading of an ordinance pertaining to
waste storage containers and solid waste collection fees along with
waving the second and third reading and moving final adoption of
said ordinance.

The collection of solid waste in Carroll is done by two private refuse haulers with a contract
between them and the City of Carroll. The current agreement started on July 1, 2009 is set to
expire on June 30, 2017.

On June 12 the City Council reviewed and discussed the proposed Residential Solid Waste
Hauling Agreement and Ordinance implementing a new fee schedule. At that meeting, a
concern was raised related to the proposed insurance limits contained in the agreement. The
Council moved to table action and requested staff to review the limits and report back to the
Council on June 26™.

Staff discussed the limits with our insurance agent Terry Axman. Mr. Axman
recommended the following minimum limits be included in the agreement:

Commercial General Liability $1.000,000 each occurrence
Commercial General Liability $2.000.000 general aggregate
Automobile Liability $1.000.000 each accident

Each hauler current maintains those exact coverages and limits. Additionally, each
hauler maintains Umbrella Liability coverage of $1.000,000 each occurrence. These
coverage and limits have been incorporated into the attached revised agreement.






The Mayor, Councilmember Boes, and staff met with the two refuse haulers and the attached
contract and amendments are a result of these negotiations. The changes from the current
agreement to the new agreement are as follows:

e Increasing the monthly pickup fees from the current monthly rate of $11.93 to as
follows:

o $12.68 as of Fuly August 1, 2017, an increase of 75 cents.

o $13.18 as of July 1, 2021, an increase of 50 cents.

o $13.93 as of July 1, 2023 an increase of 75 cents.

e The current landfill tipping fee is $43.00 per ton. The agreement provides for an
increase in the monthly rates of 7 cents per $1.00 when the landfill tipping fees rises
above $46.00 per ton,

e Requires both haulers move to automated solid waste collection system and provide
trash carts at no cost to the city and residents by February 1, 2018.

o Requires both haulers to provide recycling carts at no cost to the city and
residents if and when the Carroll Recycling center moves to single sort
recycling.

e Requires haulers to provide the next year’s pickup schedule annually by October 1%
in order for the City to include an annual pickup calendar in water utility bill in
October/November utility statements.

The attached ordinance implements the new fee schedule based on the agreement that also
include the City’s 65 cent month administration fee along with making revision to allowable
waste storage containers to reflect moving from resident plovided containers to hauler
provided containers. In the revised agreement, rates are set to increase as of August 1, 2017.
Smee—the—lwate&bemgﬂcnp}ememed—as—ef—k&y—lé@# Staff requests that the Council
consider waiving the second and third readings of the ordinance in order that the new fees can
be reflected on the water utility statement that is mailed out in late Fune July for Jaby August
garbage service.

RECOMMENDATION: Consider approving the attached residential solid waste hauling
agreement and the first reading of attached ordinance along with waving the second and third
reading and move to final adoption of the ordinance.






CITY OF CARROLL
Residential Solid Waste Hauling Agreement

This Agreement is made this day of , 2017, between the
City of Carroll, Jowa, with offices located at 112 East 5th Street, Carroll, Iowa, hereinafter
referred to as “City” and the independent contractors Ray's Refuse, Inc. and SGS, LLC dba
Carroll Refuse Service, hereinafter referred to as “Hauler(s)”.

This Agreement is the standard, non-exclusive Agreement between the City and
qualified haulers to provide some of the solid waste collection service desired by the City
for residential solid waste removal in zones established by the City.

The parties to this Agreement, in consideration of the mutual covenants and
stipulations set out herein, agree as follows:

SECTION ONE
DEFINITIONS AND SCOPE

A "Solid waste" is defined for this agreement as garbage, refuse, rubbish and
other similar discarded solid or semi-solid materials from household and personal
activities. "Solid waste" does not include any hazardous wastes listed in the lowa or United
States Codes, nor for this agreement does the term "solid waste" include any industrial,
commercial or agricultural waste products.

1. "Garbage" is defined as all solid and semi-solid, animal and vegetable
wastes resulting from the handling, preparing, cooking, storing, serving and
consuming of food or of material intended for use as food, and all offal,
excluding useful industrial by-products, and includes all such substances
from all public and private establishments and from all residences.

2. "Yard waste" is defined as grass clippings, leaves, garden waste, brush and
trees, from that residence. Yard waste does not include tree stumps.

B. Haulers will pick-up and remove all residential solid waste, except yard
waste and except any other excluded items left to private enterprise, at all single family
dwelling units, and all multi-family dwelling units which do not exceed 4 separate
dwellings, and which have water meter installations for each separate unit.

C. Haulers will pick up at the curbside only. However, special arrangements
may be made for pick up at housing units of handicapped persons and there shall be no
additional charge made to such handicapped persons.

D. Haulers® pick up area, designated as a zone, will be defined by a map
attached to this agreement. Newly annexed areas will be added to the closest contiguous

zone.






E. Haulers will pick up all solid waste and recyclables once per week per
family housing unit at the curb. The day and time of the pick-ups will be set by the City
Managet.

F. Haulers are not obligated to pick up yard waste, but must notify the
customers within their residential zone of the method, dates and times when yard waste
will be picked up. Notification must be by one of the three allowable methods set out in

Section Four, N, below.

SECTION TWO
TERM

The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2017, until June 30, 2025

SECTION THREE
CITY PAYMENT TO HAULERS

A. Payments collected by the City, based on family housing units with one
regular water meter per family, will be made to the Haulers monthly, by the tenth (10th)
day of each month.

B. City payments to Haulers will be as follows per household per month as the
base rate:

1. For the July 1, 2017, eleven dollars and ninety-three cents ($11.93)

2. Beginning August 1, 2017, twelve dollars and sixty-eight cents ($12.68)
3. Beginning July 1, 2021, thirteen dollars and eighteen cents ($13.18)

4. Beginning July 1, 2023, thirteen dollars and ninety-three cents ($13.93)

C. The City will pay the Haulers twice the above rates for each household
choosing to have a second trash cart. It is the responsibility of the Haulers to notify the
City when a household has two trash carts. The City will discontinue billing for two trash
carts when notified by the Hauler or when a utility user with two trash carts changes. The
City will notify the Haulers when a utility user with two trash carts changes. Households
are limited to two trash carts.

D. Haulers will pay all landfill "tipping" fees as established by the Carroll
County Solid Waste Management Commission. Haulers shall pay such tipping fees out of
the monthly fee paid by the City. If the tipping fees are not paid by the Hauler within five
(5) days of the due date, the City will pay the tipping fees for that particular Hauler and
will automatically deduct the fees from that Hauler's next check. If the Hauler fails to pay
its tipping fees by the due date (15th of the month) for two consecutive months, this will
be considered a failure to perform under this agreement. The City's deduction of a prior
month's delinquent tipping fees will not be considered a "payment" by the Hauler. All






general increases in tipping fees shall be added to the monthly base rate paid to the Haulers
as follows:

1. The current tipping fees are $43.00 per ton.

2. It is agreed that for each dollor of increase in the current tipping fees over a
rate of $46.00 per ton, $.07 will be added to the monthly base rate paid to the Haulers. Any
surcharges or penalties that might be imposed by the landfill shall be the responsibility of
the Haulers.

E. Any and all changes in the number of households counted for purposes of
this agreement may be acknowledged by the City if requested by the Haulers.

F. This agreement is based on present Department of Natural Resourses rules
and regualtions. If future DNR rules and regulations would materially effect the execution
and performance of this agreement, the parties agreed to attempt to mutually resolve the
issue and amend this agreement if necessary.

SECTION FOUR
HAULER'S OBLIGATIONS

A. To collect all solid waste covered by the Agreement, in a neat, quiet and
professional manner and in accordance with Chapters 105 and 106 of the Carroll City Code.

B. To keep current a contact person's name and phone number which
information shall be updated for the City Manager whenever there is a change in such
information.

C. To dispose of all solid waste in the Carroll County Solid Waste
Management Commission landfill.

D. To keep all equipment neat and clean.
E. Not to subcontract any of this work without prior written approval by the
City Manager.

F. To comply with all applicable City, State and Federal laws.
G. To pay the landfill's tipping fees.

H. To collect all recyclables required by the Carroll County Solid Waste
Management Commission and dispose of those recyclables at the Commission's recycling
facility under the Commission's rules and regulations.

L. To collect all solid waste and recyclables once per week on the day and
within the time frame designated by the City Manager. The City Manager may, if requested






by a Hauler sufficiently in advance, grant permission to change the route day and/or time
schedule. If such a change is permitted, it will be the Hauler's responsibility to notify the
citizens. Mailing lists will be available from the City for a reasonable administrative fee.
All local radio stations should be used by the Haulers when immediate notifications are
necessary. Holidays or bad weather will be accommodated in the weekly schedule by
allowing the pick up to slide one day. Holidays will be defined as those observed by the
Carroll County Solid Waste Management Commission.

J. Haulers shall maintain their present pick up schedule as previously
approved by the City Manager.

1. Annually by October 1st, Haulers shall submit a pick up schedule
for remainder of the current year and the entire upcoming year.
Schedule shall specifically note delays of regular schedule pickup
days due to holidays.

K. To maintain a Carroll telephone number which is available to the residents
for receiving complaints, concerns, and questions.

L. To notify each residential customer in writing how to dispose of yard waste,
tires, oversized furniture and any waste not picked up by the Hauler according to the
notification method set out in paragraph N, below.

M. To participate actively with the City of Carroll and Carroll County
Recycling Center to educate customers how to use the recycling program and how to
prepare material for recycling.

1. Haulers shall supply at no cost to the City or households a recycling
cart to each household within 12 months after the Carroll County
Solid Waste Management Commission notifies the Haulers that the
Carroll Recycling Center will be moving to single stream recycling.
Each household shall have a choice between a 35, 65, or 96-gallon
recycling cart.

N. To notify residential users of any material that was not picked up by the
Hauler, including the reason, by one of the following methods:

1. A notice securely attached to any container left at curb side; or

2. A telephone call to the resident made the same day as the refusal to
pick up the material; or

3. A letter mailed to the resident on the same day as the refusal to pick

up the material.

0. By February 1, 2018, the Haulers shall exclusively collect trash in the City using
automated trash collection systems. The Haulers shall supply at no cost to the City or
households a trash cart to each household. Each household shall have a choice between a
35, 65, or 96-gallon trash cart. The Haulers shall not be obligated to pick up trash that is






not contained in the trash cart with the lid fully closed.

SECTION FIVE
CITY'S OBLIGATIONS

A. To continue a mandatory collection ordinance and mandatory use of
recycling containers in the City of Carroll, Iowa.

B. To monitor all new housing construction and keep the Haulers advised of
housing units about to be constructed by letters to the Haulers at the addresses set forth in
the Agreement, within a reasonable period of time.

C. To notify each household of the existence of this Agreement, the mandatory
collection ordinance and the recycling program.

D. To approve a pre-payment resolution which will allow the Haulers to be
paid by the tenth day of each month after the effective date of this Agreement.
E. To encourage citizens to use wind-resistant containers.
SECTION SIX

HAULER’S FAILURE TO PERFORM

A. Any breach of a material covenant of this Contract by a Hauler will be
considered a failure to perform.

B. Hauler’s failure to meet Hauler's schedule of pick-ups designated by the
City manager will be considered a failure to perform. Hauler will be notified of such failure
by ordinary mail at its address of record, and will be notified of the penalty.

C. Individual citizens who have complaints shall call the Hauler responsible
for the pick up in their zone. If the City receives a citizen complaint, the City shall refer
the call to the Hauler to remedy the situation.

If the Hauler fails to remedy the complaint, the City Manager shall order the Hauler
to meet with the complainant and the City Manager and discuss the situation.

D. The following is a schedule of liquidated damages or penalties for failure to
perform:
1. Failure to complete the route on schedule, for any one day or time frame
set by the City Manager:

a for the first violation during the contract term $100;
b. for the second violation during the contract term $250;
c. for the third violation during the contract term, contract termination.






2. Failure to provide proof of insurance $500.

3. Failure to have insurance in force at any time during the contract term,
termination of the contract.

4, Failure to notify customers of a change in the day or time frame of pickups
$500.
5. Putting recyclables in with regular refuse $100 for each violation.
SECTION SEVEN
HAULER'S INSURANCE
A. Each Hauler shall obtain the necessary Workers Compensation Insurance to

insure adequate benefits are provided its workers pursuant to the law of the State of Iowa.

B. Each Hauler will obtain and maintain at all times, automobile or truck,
public liability and property damage insurance, known in the insurance industry as
comprehensive general liability with limits. Each Hauler shall maintain the following
limits:

Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 each occurrence
Commercial General Liability $2,000,000 general aggregate
Automobile Liability $1,000,000 each accident
Umbrella Liability $1,000,000 each occurrence
C. The City will be named as an additional insured for each coverage listed in
item "B" above.
D. Each Hauler Will‘provide a current copy of the certificate of insurance to the

City, verifying coverage of items "A" through "C." Each Hauler shall provide proof of
renewal to the City prior to the expiration date of any insurance policy.

E. Failure to provide proof of insurance will be considered a failure to perform
this agreement.

SECTION EIGHT
PERMITS AND LICENSES

Haulers will be responsible for acquiring all necessary permits and licenses at the
expense of the Haulers, including the City collector's License under Chapter 106 of the
Carroll City Code.






SECTION NINE
INDEMNIFICATION OF CITY BY HAULER

Hauler agrees to indemnify the City for any and all actions against the Hauler in which
the City is named as a defendant. Hauler agrees to notify the City within five (5) City
business days upon receiving notice that the Hauler has been sued or that a claim or suit
might be filed that includes or names the city and arises from the operations of the
Hauler. This duty of indemnification by the Hauler to the City will arise from any claims,
whether they have merit or not, that are filed against the Hauler or the Hauler and the
City. The only situation where the Hauler will not be required to indemnify the City will
be if such a claim is brought and the City is found to be totally at fault with no fault
assigned to Hauler.

SECTION TEN
ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT

No assignment of this Agreement or any right accruing under this Agreement shall be made
in whole or in part by the Haulers without the prior expressed written consent and approval
of the City Council.

SECTION ELEVEN
JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY

If the operation of a Hauler is comprised of more than one individual, corporation
or other entity, each such individual corporation or entity comprising the Hauler's
operation, shall be jointly and severally liable for all activities conducted by the Hauler.

SECTION TWELVE
SEVERABILITY

It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that if any part, term or provision
of this Agreement is held by any court or agency to be illegal or in conflict with any law
of the State of Iowa, the validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be
affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if
the Agreement did not contain the particular part, term or provision held to be invalid.

SECTION THIRTEEN
BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the heirs,
executors, administrators, and successors of the respective parties. However, such
continuation will be limited to a reasonable time, not to exceed six months, during which






time the heirs, executors, administrators and successors must obtain written consent and
approval from the City Council for the continuation of the Agreement. In the absence of
such written consent and approval within six months from the event causing the succession,
the Agreement will terminate.

SECTION FOURTEEN
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This instrument contains the entire Agreement between the parties and no other
statement, promises or inducements made by either party or agent of either party that is not
contained in this written Agreement, shall be valid or binding; and this Agreement may not
be enlarged, modified or altered except in writing signed by the parties and endorsed
hereon.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement at Carroll,

Iowa,on this day of , 2017.
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA
By: ATTEST:
Eric P. Jensen, Mayor Laura A. Schaefer , City Clerk
REFUSE HAULERS
Ray’s Refuse, Inc. SGS, LLC dba Carroll Refuse Service
By By

Tim Sapp, President Curt Snyder, Manager






ORDINANCE NO

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES
OF THE CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA, BY REPEALING AND REPLACING
SECTION 105.10 (1) PERTAINING TO WASTE STORAGE CONTAINERS AND SECTION
106.12 PERTAINING TO COLLECTION FEES FOR SOLID WASTE

BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa:

SECTION 1. Chapter 105, section 10, subsection 1 of the Code of Ordinances of the City
of Carroll, Towa, is repealed in its entirety and replaced with the following provisions:

105.10 WASTE STORAGE CONTAINERS.

Every person owning, managing, operating, leasing or renting any premises,
dwelling unit or any place where refuse accumulates shall provide and at all times
maintain in good order and repair portable containers for refuse in accordance with

the following:

1. Container Specification. Waste storage containers shall comply with the
following specifications:

A. Residential. For single-family residential and multiple-family
dwellings where each unit is serviced by an individual water meter,
waste storage containers and recycling containers provided by the
solid waste hauler shall be used. The total weight of any individual
container and contents shall not exceeding seventy-five (75) pounds
and the lid needs to be fully closed when left at the curb for collection.

B. Commercial and multi-family dwellings not serviced by an individual
water meter. Every person owning, managing, operating, leasing or
renting any commercial and multi-family dwellings not serviced by an
individual water meter premises where an excessive amount of refuse
accumulates and where its storage in portable containers as required
above is impractical, shall maintain metal bulk storage containers
approved by the City.

SECTION 2. Chapter 106, section 12, subsections 1 and 2 of the Code of Ordinances of
the City of Carroll, Iowa, are repealed in their entirety and replaced with the following provisions:

106.12 COLLECTION FEES.

The collection and disposal of solid waste as provided by this chapter is declared
to be beneficial to the property served or eligible to be served and there shall be
levied and collected fees therefor in accordance with the following:

1. Schedule of Fees.






A. Effective August 1, 2017, the fee for refuse collection and disposal
service, used or available, shall be:

i. For each single-family residence $13.33 monthly. One
additional trash cart can be requested for an additional
$13.33 monthly fee.

ii. For each dwelling unit of a multiple-family dwelling
serviced by an individual water meter $13.33 monthly. One
additional trash cart can be requested for an additional
$13.33 monthly fee.

B. Effective July 1, 2021, the fee for refuse collection and disposal
service, used or available, shall be:

i. For each single-family residence $13.83 monthly. One
additional trash cart can be requested for an additional
$13.83 monthly fee.

ii. For each dwelling unit of a multiple-family dwelling
serviced by an individual water meter $13.83 monthly. One
additional trash cart can be requested for an additional
$13.83 monthly fee.

C. Effective July 1, 2023, the fee for refuse collection and disposal
service, used or available, shall be:

i. For each single-family residence $14.58 monthly. One
additional trash cart can be requested for an additional
$14.58 monthly fee.

ii. For each dwelling unit of a multiple-family dwelling
serviced by an individual water meter $14.58 monthly. One
additional trash cart can be requested for an additional
$14.58 monthly fee.

2. Additional Fees. For every dollar of increase in tipping fees over $46.00
per ton charged by Carroll County Solid Waste Management Commission
shall result in a $0.07 increase in the monthly rates listed as part of the
Schedule of Fees in Section 106.12 (1).

SECTION 3. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. If any section, provision or part of this
ordinance shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional such adjudication shall not affect the
validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid
or unconstitutional.

SECTION 5. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its
final passage, approval and publication as provided by law.

Passed and approved this day of , 2017.






CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA

Eric P. Jensen
ATTEST:

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk

I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance No. on the day of
, 2017,

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk







¢

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 {712) 792-1000 EAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager L\,\j -
FROM: Randall M. Krauel, Director of Public Works <4%
DATE: June 21,2017

SUBJECT: Sidewalk Repair Program

Duting the May 8 Sidewalk Repair Program Work Session, follow-up information was requested on
the City of Spencer program, liability and staffing. Information on these items is attached and
summarized below.

City of Spencer Sidewalk Grant Program. Attached is information on the Sidewalk Grant Program
from the City of Spencer website and Mike’s notes of a telephone conversation. Briefly, the Sidewalk
Gtant Program pays tesidents for the cost of concrete for sidewalk replacement or installation.

Liability. Dave Bruner has reviewed the sidewalk regulations in the City Code. Attached is a Draft
otdinance imposing liability on abutting property owners for failure to maintain sidewalks. Following
review, if it is desited to proceed with adoption of the ordinance, it will be prepared in final form and
scheduled for introduction and reading at a future meeting.

Staffing. It has been determined that there is not adequate existing staff to add a sidewalk repair
ptogtam. DPatt-time staffing has been considered as a way to initiate a program. Additional
considetations for patt-time staff must have knowledge of sidewalk construction, ability to
satisfactotily interact with residents and part-time availability with respect to the needs and schedules
of residents.

Mayor and City Council further consideration of a sidewalk repair

program.

RM:ds

attachments (2)






Sidewalk Grant Program (From Spencer’s Website)

In 2012 the Spencer City Council made it a goal to make Spencer a more walkable community.
A sidewalk grant program was developed and put in place in January of 2013. The program
attracted over 190 applicants for sidewalk replacement or installation of new sidewalk

throughout the community.

For those residents needing sidewalk repairs or new sidewalk, a Spencer Sidewalk Grant is
available again this season. This grant pays for the calculated amount of concrete required to
replace or install a public sidewalk adjacent to their property.

A new feature of the program, this year, is that applicants can choose to have the cost of the
sidewalk project assessed and included in their property taxes over a ten year period of time. In
this case, the City will hire a contractor to complete the job.

If you were approved last year and did not get the job completed, you may re-apply and choose
to have the City hire a contractor to complete the project. Applications are available at City Hall.

Feel free to call or stop in at City Hall, 580-7200 and ask for Craig or Mark for more
information.

Notes from a call with Craig at the City of Spencer

To participate in the City of Spencer sidewalk program, property owners complete and submit a
small application to the City. Once an application is received, City staff conducts a site visit to
determine if there are defective sidewalks. Based on that check staff will calculate the area (in
cubic yards) to be replaced. The City will reimburse the property owner for the cost of the actual
concrete. In Spencer concrete is currently $108.00 per yard. The City does not reimburse labor
costs. The grant typically covers around 20% of the total project cost if a contractor is used.

Spencer recently started a program that allow the full cost of sidewalk replacement to be
assessed on an owner’s property taxes over a 10 years period when the cost of a project is over
$500.00. It costs the City around $6.00 per square foot for the City to install a new sidewalk.
Craig felt this is resulting in additional interest replacing sidewalk in the City.

366 sidewalk projects have been completed in Spencer being completed since 2013.

The City funded the program with $100,000 in 2013 and an additional $100,000 in 2014. To
date they have spent approximately $179,000.

The City is also in the early stages of developing a new sidewalk code of the City.






ORDINANCE NO DRAF ?

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES
OF THE CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA, BY REPEALING AND REPLACING
SECTIONS 136.03, 136.04 and 136.05 AND ADDING A NEW SUBSECTION
TO 136.02 PERTAINING TO SIDEWALK REGULATIONS

BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Carroll, Iowa:

SECTION 1. NEW SUBSECTION. Chapter 136, section 02 of the Code of Ordinances
of the City of Carroll, Iowa, is amended by adding a new subsection I which shall read as

follows:

L Noncompliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA) standards and
requirements and Iowa Statewide Urban Design and Specifications (SUDAS).

SECTION 2. SECTION REPEALED AND REPLACED. Chapter 136, section 03 of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Carroll, Iowa, is repealed and replaced with the following:

136.03 REMOVAL OF SNOW, ICE AND ACCUMULATIONS. It is the responsibility
of the owner to remove snow, ice and accumulations promptly from sidewalks and the owner
shall be liable for injuries and damages caused by the failure to use reasonable care in the
removal of snow, ice and accumulations resolved. If the owner does not remove snow, ice and
accumulations within a reasonable time and after notice by the City, the City may do so and
assess the costs against the owner for collection in the same manner as property tax. If the City
is required to remove snow, ice and accumulations after notice, this action shall not release or
relieve the owner of liability imposed above. The owner shall further defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless the City of Carroll, from and against any claim, arising out of the failure to
remove snow, ice and accumulations.

SECTION 3. SECTION REPEALED AND REPLACED. Chapter 136, section 04 of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Carroll, Iowa, is repealed and replaced with the following:

136.04 RESPONSIBILITY FOR MAINTENANCE - LIABILITY OF ABUTTING
PROPERTY OWNER. It is the responsibility of the owner to repair, replace, or reconstruct or
cause to be repaired, replaced or reconstructed, all defective sidewalks and to maintain in a safe
and hazard free condition any sidewalk abutting their property. The owner shall be liable to any
person who may incur injuries and/or damages as a result of or caused by the failure of the owner
to use reasonable care in the repair, replacement or reconstruction of defective sidewalks.
Defective sidewalks are declared public nuisance. The owner shall further defend, indemnify
and hold harmless the City of Carroll, from and against any claim, arising out of the failure to

maintain the owner’s sidewalk.

SECTION 4. SECTION REPEALED AND REPLACED. Chapter 136, section 05 of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Carroll, Iowa, is repealed and replaced with the following:






136.05 CITY MAY ORDER REPAIRS. If the owner does not maintain sidewalks as
required, the City may serve notice on such owner, by certified mail, requiring the owner to
repair, replace or reconstruct defective sidewalks within a reasonable time and if such action is
not completed within the time stated in the notice, the City may perform the required action and
assess the costs against the abutting property for collection in the same manner as property tax.
If the City is required to repair, replace or reconstruct defective sidewalks after notice, this action
shall not release or relieve the owner of liability imposed by this Chapter.

SECTION5. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 6. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. If any section, provision or part of this
ordinance shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional such adjudication shall not affect the
validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid
or unconstitutional.

SECTION 7. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its
final passage, approval and publication as provided by law.

Passed and approved this day of ,2017.

CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA

Eric P. Jensen
ATTEST:

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk

I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance No. on the day
of , 2017.

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk

m:\janetiword\dsb\0-1850\ordinances\sidewalks






.

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Mike Pogge-Weavet, City Manager %W”Ud
FROM: Randall M. Krauel, Director of Public Works Y70
DATE: June 20, 2017

SUBJECT: Timbetline Road and Hidden Valley Road

A trequest has been received to review the traffic control at the intersection of Timberline Road and
Hidden Valley Road. City Code of Ordinances Chapter 61.04 requires that “T'raffic control devices
shall comply with Standatds established by The Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and
Highways”. 'The Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) includes the following
Guidance on the establishment of intersection control.

“. .. The following factors should be considered:

A. Vebicnlar, bicycle, and pedestrian traffic volumes on all approaches;

B.  Number and angle of approaches;

C. Approach speeds;

D. Sight distance avatlable on each approach; and

E. Reported crash experience.

YIELD or STOP signs should be used at an intersection if one or more of the following conditions excist:

A. An intersection of a less important road with a main road where application of the normal right-of-way rule

would not be excpected to provide reasonable compliance with the law;

B. A street entering a designated through highway or street; and/ or

C. An un-signalized intersection in a signalized area.

In addition, the use of YIELD or STOP signs should be considered at the intersection of two minor streets or local

roads where the intersection has more than three approaches and where one or more of the following conditions extst:

A. The combined vebicular, bigycle, and pedestrian volume entering the intersection from all approaches averages
more than 2000 units per day;

B. The ability to see conflicting traffic on an approach is not sufficient to allow a road user to stop or yield in
compliance with the normal right-of-way rule if such stopping or yielding is necessary; and/ or

C.  Crash records indicate that five or more crashes that involve the failure to yield the right-of-way at the intersection
under the normal right-of-way rule bave been reported within a 3-year period, or that three or more such crashes
have been reported within a 2-year period.

YIELD or STOP signs should not be used for speed control.”






Timberline Road and Hidden Valley Road
Page 2
June 20, 2017

The Police Department deployed the speed trailer at two locations in the atea of the intetsection in
late May and eatly June. One location was on Timbetline Road west of the intetrsection, closer to
Main Street, for eastbound/northbound traffic. The second location was on northbound Hidden
Valley Road south of Timberline road. A brief summary of the data from the speed trailer is as follows:

Timberline Road

Volume: 350 vpd NB, Varies between weekday and week-end
Speed, Average: 26 mph
Speed, 85" Petcentile: 29 mph

Hidden Valley Road

Volume: 300 vpd NB
Speed, Average: 26 mph
Speed, 85" Petcentile: 30 mph

Sight-distances on the east and south legs of the intersection are restricted. The City Code sight
triangle of 75" is restricted by a right-of-way planting. That could be corrected by removal of the
planting from the right-of-way. Stopping sight distance of 115’ is restricted by plantings on private

property.

No ctashes have been reported at the intersection in the past five years.

Considering that both Timberline Road and Hidden Valley Road are both classified local streets, the
intetsection has three approaches and the above data, the MUTCD guidance for intersection control
is not met.

Mayor and City Council consideration of the request for intersection
control at Timberline Road and Hidden Valley Road.

RMK:ds







City of Carroli
4

112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM:  Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager W w
DATE: June 22,2017

SUBJECT: Workshop: Housing

One of the action items the City Council set at their annual planning session was to have Amy
Haase with RDG review the recently completed housing study with them. Ms. Haase will be
at the council meeting on June 26 to complete this review.

Attached to this report is an abbreviated copy of the housing report that mainly excludes
material related specifically to other Carroll County cities. The full report is available on the
City’s website at: http://www.cityofcarroll.com/council-priorities-initiatives and clicking the
link at the bottom of the page.

Additionally, staff will review possible housing development incentives with the Council and
have a discussion on rental housing inspections.

Attached to this memo are the following documents that will be referenced as part of the
workshop:

Abbreviated copy of the housing report

What is tax increment financing?

Property tax abatement (questions and answers about lowa law)
Workforce housing tax credits

Basic information on Code Enforcement and Rental Housing Information
Sample rental housing inspection forms





CITY OF CARROLL

BUILDING DEPARTMENT
NEW RESIDENTIAL UNITS
Caﬁl{eer:jar Single Family | Multi Family Total Dollar Valuation
1964 61 $857,500.00
1965 64 $9,687,900.00
1966 42 ~ $697,800.00
1967 46 $776,300.00
1968 39 $827,275.00
1969 27 $548,100.00
1970 32 $562,300.00
1971 57 12 69 $1,234,500.00
1972 45 90 135 $1,835,500.00
1973 51 0 51 $1,268,095.00
1974 32 30 . 62 $1,456,600.00
1975 40 50 . 90 $1,742,500.00
1976 53 12 . 65 $1,858,075.00
1977 59 45 104 $2,730,250.00
1978 62 54 116 $3,325,000.00
1979 43 49 0 92 $2,716,000.00
1980 53 26 79 $2,415,200.00
1981 29 43 72 $1,990,650.00
1982 31 4 - 35 -$1,646,750.00
1983 34 10 - 44 $2,336,460.00
1984 20 24 44 $2,108,834.74
1985 10 8 18 $1,033,220.03
1986 7 6 13 $779,629.11
1987 15 57 .72 $4,297,663.44
1988 6 8 14 $874.00
1989 19 8 - 27 $2,142,000.00
1990 34 33 67 $4,267,000.00
1991 22 47 69 $3,497,000.00
1992 42 25 67 $4,924,000.00
1993 51 22 73 $6,994,000.00
1994 45 33 78 $5,840,000.00
1995 33 8 41 $5,496,000.00
1996 44 7 51 $5,873,000.00
1997 57 65 122 $10,208,191.00
1998 38 25 63 $6,645,700.00
1999 37 56 93 $7,945,531.00
2000 27 0 27 $4,590,688.00
2001 30 0 30 $4,978,315.00
2002 27 8 35 $4,940,232.00
2003 41 2 43 $7,320,391.00
2004 36 0 36 $6,493,335.00
2005 33 0 33 $6,076,372.00
2006 29 0 29 $6,083,564.00
2007 23 0 23 $5,202,175.00
2008 17 8 25 $3,755,378.00
2009 19 8 27 $5,087,265.00
2010 11 6 17 $2,832,690.00
2011 14 0 14 $3,319,600.00
2012 14 0 14 $3,483,284.00
2013 18 6 24 $5,692,693.00
2014 10 0 10 $3,677,000.00
2015 9 4 13 $2,765,000.00
2016 19 4 23 $6,426,217.00
2017 12 4 $5,336,322.00











ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The project team would like to acknowledge the contributions of
the residents of Carroll County, who gave their time, ideas, and ex-
pertise for the creation of this plan. It is only with their assistance
and direction that the plan gained the depth necessary to truly
represent the spirit of Carroll County and it is with their commit-
ment that the plan will be implemented.

We would also like to thank the partner organizations, Carroll Area
Development Corporation, Carroll County, and the City of Carroll
who supported this study, financially and through their leadership.
A special thanks to everyone involved.

A SPECIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO OUR PROJECT TEAM, COM-
MUNITY LEADERS, AND STAFF.

Jim Auen

Nick Badding
Carolyn Siemann
Clay Haley

Gene Meiners

Neil Bock

Shannon Landauer

CONSULTING TEAM

o0
PLANNING @ DESIGN

www.RDGUSA.com






CONTENTS

MUMITY HOUSING PERCED

INErOdUCLION (e 6
SUIVEYS ittt iitiiee ittt eettre e s s irasesssebe e s sta s s svenaesabrbeessaans 6
Stakeholder GroupsS.....occie v 16
Concluding ThemMEeS. .o vveciee e e 17

2 APROPILE OF CARRBOLL COUNTY 18

4 o %

Carroll County Assessment.....ccccevveeiieeniicienennn, 20

Community AssSessmMents ..o cnnennns 30
[OF:1 4 (o) | R
Coon Rapids .. .
GHAABN vt e
MENNING et st bbb iee e

Community Opportunities ......cccceeeviecreiineviireeins 46
Arcadia

Carroll...........
CoON RAPIAS (it s 56
Dedham e e
GHAEN ..ot

HalbUr e

Lanesboro ...
Lidderdale...

DEFINIMG HOUS i 1
Defining Housing lssues
Strategic HOUSING GOalS. .o 84

4 DIRECTIONS FORWARD

Program Focuses

Housing Partnerships & Financing ......ccecooceenevininncns 88
Targeted Programs. . eiesissreeneseesiseseeresveessssienne 91
Neighborhood & Community Reinvestment................ 95
Neighborhood Conservation ......cccoceevcnennns ...96
Lot Development..... .97
SeNIOr HOUSING oot 99











Carroll Area Development Corporation

CARROLL COUNTY ASSESSMENT

Carroll County is a rich tapestry of lowa culture and agricul-
tural history. To understand Carroll County, it is important to

understand each of the communities th
the region.

at form the fabric of

Population Change and Characteristics

Like many rural counties in the Midwest, Carroll County ex-
perienced population loss during the first decade of the new
century. Aside from Crawford County, Carroll experienced the
smallest decrease in population compared to adjoining coun-

ties. Since 2010 the county's strong job

market has likely lev-

eled off some of this loss but success for rural areas will not
only lie in job growth but in finding ways to attract new resi-
dents to the area to fill those jobs. This may result in changing
demographics and cultural make-up for some areas, as has
been seen in many Midwest communities over the past two

decades.

FIGURE 2.1: Surrounding Counties Population Change

Carroll

Audubon

Calhoun

Crawford

Greene

Guthrie

Sac

2000

21,421

6,830

n,ns

16,942

10,366

1,353

1,529

2010

20,816

6,186

9,846

16,951

9,448

11,040

10,480

2014

20,702

5,935

9,980

17,259

9,232

10,794

10,162

CHANGE PERCENT

CHANGE
(00-14)
-719 -3.47%
-895 -15.08%
-1,135 -N.37%
317 1.84%
-1,134 -12.28%
~559 -5.18%
-1,367 -13.45%

MAP 2.1: Map of Carroll County, lowa

EE CARROLL =
[_ ii‘rgh ; i r_l.‘.;zle;l‘-om
i - t ~ —
; )
=]
Liddzrdalz
s
i
J 5
& ”"o,', i : “Arjadia 4 I
{ ! (7Y ity ! el
| ST «l Y estsiifz——henad U5 -30- Lﬁj\ﬁ L
\p i B0 B I camon® . I
==l - = — -US-30 30—
3 - B b o Ko Giften N
pet Lol e oL s
+f .
4, d
‘ ¢ % Us-30———
&G $56m ; L 7
pid ) L & Scranton
‘ rrfgplb‘m : 300m
.175 ny v }
["Jllley
&
v e
2 Z
=
SR 3 Fmpleton ‘
Asrm-/an j_ : (j j'
A- 141 ~L,_~'J'|‘_1]' ning L AR B { zdham
a [+ l‘"" Yo -
: o R00N
S W { S r:‘\‘ ik
L \
o gt Learronn H <
)
Qi W 20
NARN AN AN
RAAL I






The general population trend in Carroll County and its
communities is one of stability and/or slow decline; this
can be attributed to the fact that the population is aging.
To further understand the impact of the regions aging pop-
ulation, an analysis was completed that compared predict-
ed population to actual 2010 Census population counts.
The estimates in Figure 2.3 (page 22) are based on esti-
mated birth and death rates for the population developed
by the U.S. Bureau of the Census and the National Center
for Health Statistics. The analysis indicates that:

» A number of the county’s communities overcame an
aging population and actually experienced some in-
migration.

» In-migration occurs when the cities actual population
is greater than the predicted population. This was the
case for Arcadia, Breda, Carroll, Coon Rapids, Halbur,
Manning and Templeton.

Chapter 2 Community Assessments

» Those communities with a negative difference between
predicted and actual experienced population loss
both due to low birth rates and an out-migration of
some residents. Glidden is an example of a community
that had a young enough population in 2000 that it
should have experienced natural population growth
but actually saw a population loss. Proactive lot
development by the city may have stabilized this trend
since 2010.

FIGURE 2_,2:»Histo'ric' Population Change

1980 1990 2000 2010
Carroll County 22,951 21,423 21,421 20,816
Arcardia 454 485 443 484
Breda 502 467 477 483
Carroll 9,705 9,579 10,106 10,103
Coon Rapids 1,448 1,266 1,305 1,305
Dedham 321 264 280 266
Glidden 1,076 1,099 1,253 1,146
Halbur 229 215 202 246
Lanesboro 196 182 152 S
Lidderdale 197 202 186 180
Manning 1,609 1,484 1,490 1,500
Ralston 108 n9 98 79
Templeton 319 321 334 362

Willey 94 78 103 88

2014 DIFFERENCE
2000-2010

20,702 -605

563 41

456 6
10,051 -3
1,408 0

220 -14
1,403 -107

231 44

m =31

213 -6
1,554 10

84 -19

370 28

71 -15






Carroll Area Development Corporation

FIGURE 2.3: Predicted Versus Actual Population Change

2000 2010 2010 ACTUAL DIFFERENCE -
POPULATION PREDICTED PREDICTED VS. ACTUAL
Carroll County 21,421 20,972 20,816 -156
Arcardia 443 429 484 55
Breda 477 437 483 46
Carroll 10,106 9,894 10,103 209
Coon Rapids 1,305 1,231 1,305 74
Dedham 280 270 266 -4
Glidden 1,253 1,330 1,146 -184
Halbur 202 205 246 a
Laneshboro 152 145 121 -24
Lidderdale 186 183 180 -3
Manning 1,490 1,354 1,500 146
Ralston 98 95 79 -16
Templeton 334 329 362 33
Willey 103 106 88 -18

s W o o 22
ey S S






Chapter 2 Community Assessments

FIGURE 2.4: Median Age s
MEDIAN AGE 2000 2010 2013
MEDIAN AGE MEDIAN AGE MEDIAN AGE

Arcadia 37.6 36.3 28.2

Breda 42.2 37.6 38.2.

Carroll City 38.8 42 40.7

Coon Rapids 429 41.3 45.4

Dedham 36 32.3 29.7

Glidden 40.1 44.8 441

Halbur 34 35.4 26.7

Lanesboro 43.3 50.8 36.3

Lidderdale 38 46.5 31.9

Manning 44 45.5 47

Ralston 40.7 40.3 42.6

Templeton 39.3 . 43.6 49.8

Willey 32.2 32.5 47.5
Carroll County Economy and Employment » Unemployment rates are the highest among residents
Carroll County’s strong economy has a significant impact on Zzemgfinziogc?ryhec?ur?ingzgfapll;fggg :;; ;hc?fltoh“é e;:eatest
?:ousmg? and hous.lng degwgncc:ij: A ba?IC assessment of Carroll challenges to entering the workforce. Scheduling

ounty’s economic trends indicates: conflicts with school, skill development, and access

or transportation are just some of the challenges this

» A higher median household income is driven by f
population faces.

established industries and a low employment rate.

Suilitytjobtstanol‘housingfcos.tﬁ thft ;r;]atch walaeséyvill » Occupations focus on management, business, science,
he eyh (1;. racting new a?" 'te]‘f' ° teslr.e}a].. ethlan and the arts. This focus is true for the larger region with
gusehold Income iy Important 1or e5tadiis nghe many of these workers being employed in the education
threshold at which families qualify for assistance. Higher and health care industries. As a regional commercial
incomes elevate this threshold. hub, Carroll also has a substantial percentage of

» Unemployment rates are extremely low, leaving very residents employed in sales and office occupations.

few qualified individuals to fill new or existing positions.
Figure 2.6 illustrates that this is not just an issue for
Carroll County but all of the surrounding counties have
workforces that are nearly at full employment. This
means that cities and counties are competing against
each other for a very small pool of potential applicants.
To address this issue new residents must be attracted to
the region. Housing and community amenities are often
an important part to creating an incentive package that
attracts workers to a region.






Carroll Area Development Corporation

FIGURE 2.5: Median Household Income

2014 POPULATION 2014 ESTIMATED MEDIAN 80% OF MEDIAN 50% OF MEDIAN
HOUSEHOLD INCOME

Carroll 20,702 $48,998 $39,198 $24,499
Audubon 5,935 $47,566 $38,053 $23,783
Calhoun 9,980 $44,934 $35,947 $22,467
Crawford 17,259 $47,437 $37,950 $23,719
Greene 9,232 $47,255 $37,804 $23,628
Guthrie 10,794 $50,238 $40,190 $25,119
Sac 10,162 $48,581 $38,865 $24,291

Source: American Community Survey, 2014;

FIGURE 2.6: Employment frends

2014 LABOR FORCE*  UNEMPLOYMENT

POPULATION RATE
Carroll 20,702 16,181 2.50%
Audubon 5,935 4,872 2.60%
Calhoun 9,980 8,209 4.40%
Crawford 17,259 13,253 5.30%
Greene 9,232 7,347 6.90%
Guthrie 10,794 8,601 4.50%
Sac 10,162 8,194 3.80%

* Population 16 years and over

Source: American Community Survey, 2014






Chapter 2 Community Assessments

Vacancy Rates - A Note of Caution

In a healthy market some vacancy is necessary to ensure options for new residents and to avoid escalating prices. A healthy
balance usually occurs somewhere between 5% and 7%. Vacancy rates can also be very challenging to calculate, especially
for rental markets where there are often non-traditional units and demand can fluctuate from year to year. Realtors, employ-
ers, and community leaders all noted a lack of quality rentals throughout Carroll County. This is further supported by a sur-
vey of landlords that indicated a vacancy rate of approximately 3.0% and units being filled very quickly. Current estimates,
which provide a snapshot in time, are not reflecting this trend and therefore, for projection purposes the nominal vacancy
rate will be adjusted to levels reflecting survey results.

FIGURE 2.7: Percentage of Labor by Occupation

CARROLL  AUDUBON  CALHOUN CRAWFORD  GREENE GUTHRIE SAC
COUNTY
Management 28.0% 34.2% 32.6% 24.8% 32.8% 33.4% 28.1%
Service 19.5% 18.1% 19.0% 16.0% 18.0% 15.8% 17.6%
Sales & Office 23.1% 20.7% 22.2% 19.8% 22.2% 22.9% 24.1%
IR s
] 12.5% 12.0% 13.0% 14.6% 11.6% 14.0% 121%
Construction, & Maintenance
ion, tation,
Freduction. Transportatien 16.9% 15.0% 13.2% 24.8% 15.4% 13.9% 18.0%

& Material Moving

Source: American Community Survey, 2014

Carroll County Housing Trends Housing Occupancy

In terms of general housing trends Carroll County is most Carroll County provides a greater percentage of rental hous-
comparable to Guthrie County. While smaller, Guthrie County  ing than adjacent counties. This stock of housing is essential
has very similar household incomes, home values, and rents. when communities are trying to attract young households.
Aside from Crawford County, Carroll and Guthrie counties Almost all young professionals and even many young fami-
have experienced the most stable population over the past 14 lies begin their experience in the housing market as renters. A
years. Strong economies in these three counties has also re- healthy housing market provides housing options at all stages
sulted in higher home values, while a high demand of quality of life, such as quality rental units for those at the beginning of
rentals is likely driving up rental costs across all counties. their adult life or for downsizing later in life. Carroll County’s

strong economy is again reflected in the lower vacancy rate
and reflected in conversations with realtors and landlords,
who noted a scarcity of housing in specific price points.

FIGURE 2.8: Occupancy Status : Pt

CARROLL AUDUBON CALHOUN  CRAWFORD GREENE GUTHRIE SAC
COUNTY
Owner-Occupied 6,496 2,157 3,439 5147 3,178 3,693 3665
% of Occupied Units 75% 80% 80% 79% 76% 79% 81%
Renter-Occupied 2,165 543 877 1,328 990 976 870
% of Occupied Units 25% 20% 20% 21% 24% 21% 19%
Total Vacant 669 259 565 484 395 1080 921
Vacancy rate 7.2% 8.8% 1.6% 7.0% 8.7% 18.8% 16.9%
Total 9,330 2,959 4,881 6,959 4,563 5,749 5,456

Source: U. S. Census Bureau, 2010






Carroll Area Development Corporation

Construction Activity

Construction activity in Carroll County, outside of the munic-
ipalities has focused on single-family construction. With the
beginning of the recession and housing crisis in 2008 con-
struction activity declined in response. From a high in 2004,
construction in the county was half by 2015. Changes in fi-
nancing, options within the communities, the rising cost of
agricultural land, and availability of contractors have all con-
tributed to the continued slow construction activity. Some of
these same factors have also influenced housing construc-
tion in the county’s larger communities. It should be noted
that some rural options should be available but overall homes
within the municipalities can be served by public infrastruc-
ture in a much more cost effective manner.

)
o
k\fi) AN

26

Building Permits

FIGURE 2.9:-Carroll County Construction Activity

14 (]

o
I
]

e
o

Source: Carroll County

Housing Affordability

One metric used to determine the affordability of a housing
market is to compare median household incomes to median
home values. An affordable, self-sustaining housing market,
with adequate value and revenues to support market-rate
new construction, will typically have a value to income ratio
between 2.5 to 3.0. Ratios above 3.0 present significant af-
fordability issues while ratios below 2.0 are significantly un-
dervalued relative to income.

While a market that is unaffordable presents significant chal-
lenges to attracting new residents and to enabling residents
to move within the housing market, an undervalued market is
equally troublesome. An undervalued housing market stag-
nates the economy in several ways:

. Purchasing a home is comparatively more affordable
than rental options, the median rents are driven lower
to a level where it is no longer feasible for new, rental
units to be developed

+ The lack of new rental units limits the accessibility of the
housing market to new residents, employees, and fam-
ilies

« Undervalued markets discourage new construction, es-
pecially the construction of speculative housing that
cannot be appraised at the cost of construction and
thus removing all profits for the builder.






Chapter 2 Community Assessments

FIGURE 2.10: Community Assessments
MEDIAN HOME VALUE  MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD VALUE TO INCOME MEDIAN CONTRACT

(2013) INCOME (2013) RATIO RENT (2013)
Arcadia $78,200 $57,321 1.36 365
Breda $76,900 $42,417 1.81 403
Carroll City $123,000 $43,483 2.83 433
Coon Rapids $68,800 $41,979 1.64 326
Dedham $62,700 $48,281 1.30 -+
Glidden $85,400 $50,333 1.70 373
Halbur $87,900 $63,333 1.39 <
Lanesboro $35,000 $31,250 112 417
Lidderdale $74,400 $47,813 1.56 *
Manning $72,900 $43,125 1.69 388
Ralston $46,100 $46,250 1.00 ¥
Templeton $90,000 $46,563 1.93 519
Willey $76,700 $37,083 2.07 *

Source: 2013 American Community Survey
* Indicates that too few samples were collected to estimate

Carroll County has a fairly healthy ratio, indicating an ability
to support new construction and the rehabilitation of exist-
ing housing. Many of the surrounding counties are experienc-
ing very low home values, discouraging the development of
speculative housing and the construction of new rental hous-
ing. Nationally the cost of rental properties is increasing as
demand continues to remain high. Lower wages, expectation
of more affordable housing in rural areas, and lack of build-
ers comfortable with the rental market all combine to limit the
amount of new rental construction activity occurring in the
region. Quality, affordable rental units, especially for those
households making just above the limits set for housing as-
sistance was a re-occurring concern for many stakeholders.
A lack of new construction only drives up housing costs and
leaves poor quality units on the market.






Carroll County Economic Development Corporation

GUIDE TO ANALYSIS TABLES

The following section provides an overview of the demographic, housing, and economic trends in the county's four largest
communities. This guide is meant to be a reference for understanding the methodology and make-up of those tables. All data
comes from the U.S. Census Bureau or American Community Survey, unless otherwise noted.

Affordability Gauge

A comparison of median household incomes to median home values to evaluate the affordability of a marketplace. An afford-
able, self-sustaining housing market, with adequate value and revenues to support new market-rate construction, will typically
have a value to income ratio between 2.0 to 3.0.

Population Projections

A projection for how each community can be expected to grow considering a number of factors related to historic trends and
how and why a place grows, or doesn’t. Factors include: historic trends; the age/sex of the current population; the expected mi-
gration of new residents; and new employment options.

Occupancy Analysis FIGURE 2:3:0cclpancy Aualjsi e e L s
COON RAPIDS 2000 2010 2013 NET CHANGE
An examlnatlon Of the number Of dWe”lng units Number terea hNumber %(’(Lg?:e‘: Number F(‘;cr'ffl:ri\f: Number
that are owner occupied, renter occupied, or va- tnits Halts
cant and how these trends have changed over i A . e = a2 724 u
time. This information combined with a review of pied 157 25% s 7% 163 28% 2
construction activity can shed light on a commu- Tots! Vacant 2 o3 5 30
nities changing housing demand. Vi Lo PR e
Vacancy Analysis Tote! 0 o3 o5 7
An examination of the status of vacant units - is the unit vacant because it is for FIGURE 2.4: Vacdney Analysis =
sale or up-for-lease, only occupied seasonally, or is it leased for migrant workers? e Z 19N, DEEERTCE
This analysis provides a glimpse into the vacancy trends and reasons for why these e s & &
units are vacant. ForRent 4 E 8
e . . . 5 For Sale Only 8 14 6
In the communities of Carroll County, this analysis uses information from the 2010 RN
Rented or Sold, No! 3 1 -
Geeupied

Census Data to deliver the most reliable picture of housing within the region.

- ol Use 0 1o 10
Housing Affordability Analysis I , , .
An assessment of housing costs to incomes that Other Vacant o % 1

begins to identify gaps in the market. Monthly
costs for owner units are generally considered
affordable if the overall housing unit costs be- FIGURE 2.7: Housirio Affordabiity Analysis - Coer Rapids, lowa
tween 2 and 2.5 times the household's yearly e

percent of Total

Percent of

income. This ratio covers all housing costs, in- ncomeRange - L0 Gas ol hongelar . ok flordable Balnce
cluding taxes, insurance and utilities. Affordable ) IS L BEAToESale AP
: 5 5 e 5 $0-25,000 60.00% 27.94% 164 $0-50,000 1o $0-400 12t 231 67
rental units (including utilities) are considered to o
0, $25.000-49,999 61-119% 25.21% 143 -99895‘;}‘ 9 $400-800 39 230 82
have monthly rents less than 30% of the house- :

3 _ i 574 06% 7% % p» $100,000- 125¢ » 3 R
hold’s monthly gross income. This analysis eval- il G R P weese B swom 0 : ®
uates the availability of affordable housing and §75.09956  180230%  6690% s Sooeeg 2 smsoso o 2
compares the quantity of housing that is afford- §100-150,000  239-357%  2061% ” i 7 uae. 9 7 11
able to each income group. A positive balance $120.000+ owerdsTs  L70% 0 ssoo00r  m so00¢ 3 " s
indicates a surplus of housing within the afford-
ability range of each respective income group, . ; :

Median $41,879 100.00% 587.00 424 163 587 0

while a negative balance indicates a shortage.
This analysis is meant to illustrate larger trends
and not exact demand in certain price ranges. It
does not take into consideration housing quality
or mortgage status.






Chapter 2 Community Assessments

Housing Demand Model

This analysis builds on the population projections, housing trends, and community
conversations to forecast the demand for additional housing. The model is built on Hou
the following assumptions with appropriate adjustments made for each communi- st Endotpe
ties circumstances.

Household population at the end of the period does not include residents
living in group care facilities, dormitories, and other institutional quarters.

The non-household population does not produce a demand for conventional P SEHEN ey e e
housing units. For this analysis it is assumed that the proportion of non- s

household population will remain stable through the planning period. ,

Popuiation at End of

1338 1372 1406

1,296 1329 1,362

»

Average people per household is expected to remain constant over the next
decade. Some growth may occur as Millennials move into their childbearing
years but this forecast focuses on the demand created by this cohort leaving
their parents homes and the housing needs they will have.

z

» Unit demand at the end of the period is calculated by dividing household population by the nhumber of people per
household. This equals the number of occupied housing units.

A manageable housing vacancy provides housing choice for new residents moving to a community. In Carroll County’s
current economy, a higher vacancy rate likely reflects units that are in poor condition or inappropriately priced. Higher
rates do create more demand in the model but are not a positive for the overall perception and health of the market;
while falling vacancy rates create less demand in the model and can result in rising housing costs.

¥

Unit needs at the end of each period are based on the actual household demand plus the number of projected vacant
units.
» Replacement need is the number of housing units demolished or converted to other uses. Homes in poor condition or

obsolete should gradually be replaced in a city’s housing supply. The number of units lost annually is based on both
the quantity and quality of a community’s housing stock.

»

» Cumulative need shows the number of total units needed between the base year of 2015 and the year indicated at the
end of the period.

Housing Development Program
Building on the Housing Demand Model, the Development Program forecasts pro-
duction targets for owner and renter occupied units based on the following:

Tstal Owner Occupled 7 g 15

» The proportion of rental development should be slightly higher than current
owner/renter ratios. This is done to address both pent-up demand created Affordable Low: 60-100000 1 1 2
by a lack of rental construction over the past twenty years, changes in the AffordableModerate: 100130000 2 2 ’
lending market leaving households in rental units for longer periods, and the
growing number of young households entering the market.

arate Markat 130-200,000 2 2 4

High kat: Over $200,000 2 2

» Owner-occupied units will be distributed roughly in proportion to the income
distribution of households for whom owner-occupancy is an appropriate
strategy.

Total Renter Occupled 5 5 10

» Most low-income residents will be accommodated in rental units.

It is important to note that most lower-cost owner-occupied housing will be pro-
duced indirectly through a filtering process. For example, a unit that meets the
needs of a high-income, empty-nester household may encourage that household to
sell their current home to a moderate income family. Filtering processes rarely sat-
isfy an affordable housing need on a one-to-one basis, but they do realistically ad-
dress part of the market demand.





Carroll Area Development Corporation

COMMUNITY ASSESSMENTS

City of Carroll - Community Assessment

The most populous city in the county, Carroll is the primary
center of employment, retail and service opportunities, edu-
cation, and healthcare in the region. As a result of its size and
regional presence, much of the housing demand throughout
the county is drawn to and absorbed by existing and new de-
velopment within the City of Carroll and its periphery.

Primary Themes of Carroll, lowa

Aging Population

A significant portion of Carroll’s population is older and out-
side of their child-bearing years. Without strong in-migration
over the next decade, this demographic mix results in a slow
decline in population (Figure 2.3 & 2.4). The city and county
will have to find new ways to attract young households from
varying backgrounds to overcome natural population loss, fill
existing jobs, and expand the economy.

The city’s aging population also has a significant impact on
the number and type of units that are or will be coming on the
market. There are an estimated 1,239 households over the age
of 65 and an estimated 893 (72%) of those households live in
owner occupied units. A good portion of those households
will be looking for housing alternatives in the next ten years
creating a demand for new housing options but also poten-
tially supplying housing to young families.

Potential for New Growth

Over the past 50 years the city has experienced a fluctuat-
ing growth pattern. Strong growth in the 1960s and 1970s
has been followed by three decades of slow to no growth. To
achieve the city and county’s economic development goals
growth will need to occur. For the purposes of this study it is
assumed that the city will grow at a minimum of 0.5% annual-
ly resulting in a 2025 population of 10,578. (Figure 2.13)

Dominance of Owner Occupied Housing Options
There are an estimated 2,999 owner occupied dwellings in
Carroll (Figure 2.15). This represents 70% of occupied dwell-
ings in the community, a comparable proportion to other
similar communities. It should be noted that nationally the
percentage of owner-occupancy has decreased slightly since
2008. This is due to increased lending requirements and a
growing number of young households entering the market
that tend toward rental units for their first housing.

Of the total dwelling units that are vacant, there is a marked
difference between owner-occupied vacancies (1.5%) and
rental vacancies (11.4%) (Figure 2.14). These numbers were

in drastic contrast to what realtors, employers and residents
were sharing in regards to the rental housing market. A survey
of nearly 300 rental units found a vacancy rate closer to 3%.

‘e\ﬁ{}ﬁj
()

o) i
7 \\\4 (4] \]'}.{

0, e
(NVAR
Y

At a Glance
Affordability Gauge

E_O

) Undervalued Affordable

(Less than 2) (2-3)

UnaffordableA

(Greater than 3)

2015 Population: 10,063
2025 Population: 10,578 (515 new residents)

Affordability Balance:

» Overall affordability good with a shortage of units
for households with incomes below $25,000 and
above $100,000 annually

2010 Vacancy Rate: 7.3%

Owner | Renter Occupancy: 70% | 30%

Housing Demand by 2025: 449 units (45 units/yr)
» Renter Units: 180
» Owner Units: 269

FIGL RE2’II Carroll Construction Activity

35

30

25

20

Building Permits

15

10

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Year
O New Home Permits OMF

Source: City of Carroll

A word of caution on these numbers - those completing the
survey were not likely to own substandard units or units being
used for storage. These units do not fill a demand in the mar-
ket and therefore bringing them up to standard would be sim-
ilar to adding a unit to the market.

30
SO





Chapter 2 Community Assessments

Housing to Support FIGURE 2.12: Historic Population Change

E_X’St’"g Resﬂ#‘"’s POPULATION AT CHANGE IN % GROWTH ANNUAL GROWTH
Since 2005 the city has aver- DECADE'S END POPULATION  DURING DECADE RATE

aged 21 new residential per-

mits annually (Figure 2.11). 1960 1,682
This level of development has
supported a housing market 1960-1970 8,716 1,034 13.5% 1.3%
that is driven by an increase in
the number of households not ~ 1970-1980 9,705 989 3% 11%
by a growing population. Over
N, & % 0 @
the past decades the number 1980-1990 %570 L 155
of people per household has
P oy a 0, 0,
decreased. This is traditional- ~ 1990-2000 10,106 527 5% 0.5%
ly caused by smaller families )
and aging populations. What 2000 - 2010 10,103 @ 0.0% -
once might have been a single
1960-2010 2,421 31.5% 0.6%

household of four people now

may be three households. This
creates a demand for new housing but does not increase the FIGURE 2.14: Vacaney Analysis

city’s population. Projections for future growth assume that CARROLL CITY 2000 2010 DIFFERENCE
by attracting new families to the community the number of

people per household will stabilize and create a strong de- Vacant Units 258 34 83
mand for new units to support both new growth and existing
households looking to move up to nicer/larger housing. For Rent n7 176 59
For Sale Only 55 5 -50
FIGURE 2.13: Population Projection Rented or Sold, Not ” - "
CARROLL CITY 2010 2015 2020 2025 Occupied
For Seasonal,
Natural Change 10,103 9,897 9,782 9,71 Recreation, or 8 7 -1
Occasional Use
0.2% Annual Growth 10,103 10,063 10,164 10,266 For Migrant Workers 0 33 33
0.5% Annual Growth 10,103 10,063 10,317 10,578 Other Vacant 52 73 21

FIGURE 2.15: Occupancy Analysis

CARROLL CITY 2000 2010 2013 NET CHANGE
Percent of Percent of Percent of
Number Occupied Number Occupied Number Occupied Number
Units Units Units

Owner-Occupied 2,926 70% 2,999 69% 3057 70% 131
Renter-Occupied 1,247 30% 1358 31% 1282 30% 35
Total Vacant 258 = 341 2 381 % 123
Vacancy rate 5.8% - 7.3% - 8.1%* - -
Total 4,431 - 4,698 = 4720 - 289

* A survey of landlords and realtors indicated a vacancy rate closer to 3.2%. This rate will be used for projection purposes (see page 23 for details)

31






Carroll Area Development Corporation

FIGURE 2.16: Housing Affordability Analysis - Carrell City, lowa
CARROLL CITY

Income Range Fefeent of

$0-25,000 52.00%
$25,000-49,999  53-103%
$50,000-74,999  104-155%
$75-99,999 156-207%
$100-150,000 208-310%
$150,000+ OVER 310%
Median $48,361

Source: RDG Planning & Design

Percent of

City Median Households

23.83%

28.07%

9.86%

10.97%

22.01%

5.25%

100.00%

FIGURE 2.17: Housing Demand Model

Number of  Affordable Number Affordable Number
Households  Range for of Owner Range for of Renter
in Each Owner Units Renter Units

Range Units Affordable Units Affordable
1,034 $0-50,000 144 $0-400 517
$50,000- i
1,218 99,999 902 $400-800 716
$100,000- i
428 149,999 914 $800-1,250 21
$150,000- $1,250-
476 200,000 9e0 1,500 0
$200- $1,500-
485 $300,000 314 2,000 g
228 $300,000+ 163 $2,000+ 28
4,339 3,057 1,282

CARROLL CITY 2015 2020 2025 TOTAL
Population at End of 10,063 10,317 10,578

Period

Household Population

at End of Period st g8 Wi

Average Persons Per 275 295 275
Household

Household Demand at

End of Period 4,347 4,457 4,569
Projected Vacancy 399 2.9% 509

Rate

Uni't Needs at End of 4,652 4.820

Period

Replacement Need 10 10 20
Cunjulativg Need 71 178 349
During Period

Potential Additional

Demand from Job 50 50 100
Expansion

Average Annual a4 46 45
Construction

Source: RDG Planning & Design

‘\%“i?g “?ﬂ«%

32

Total
Affordable
Units

661

1618

935

620

314

191

4,339

+/-

-373

400

507

144

-641

FIGURE 2.18: Housing Development Program (2015 - 2025)

CARROLL CITY 2015-  2020- TOTAL
2020 2025
Total Need 221 228 449
Total Owner Occupied 133 137 269
Affordable Low: $60-100,000 30 31 61
Affordable Moderate: $100-
130,000 22 22 44
Moderate Market: $130-200,000 31 32 63
High Market: Over $200,000 50 51 101
Total Renter Occupied 89 91 180
Low: Less than $450 34 35 69
Affordable: $450-700 22 22 44
Market: Over $700 33 34 67

Source: RDG Planning & Design






Defining Housing Affordability

Chapter 2 Community Assessments

The definition of affordable housing is determined by a household’s income. What is affordable to one income bracket is
not affordable to another. The cost of housing can also be defined as either market rate or below market rate.

Units that are below market rate require some assistance to be built. The rent or value of these units would be priced be-
low construction costs and therefore builders need assistance o cover the cost of development and construction. These
assistance packages vary but ensure that communities have safe and affordable housing for households in the lowest in-

come ranges.

Housing to Support a Growing Job Market

Carroll County employers all indicated that demand to fill ex-
isting positions and the potential to expand their employment
base is strong. A recent survey identified approximately 220
unfilled jobs. This combined with unposted positions and in-
terest in expanding operations, the employment demand is
likely closer to 500 jobs. Some of this growth is absorbed in
the population projected for the city and some of it will be
filled by individuals living in surrounding counties. This may
leave only one-third (167) of the 500 jobs as additional new
residents moving to the county. These individuals will likely
spread out throughout the county but over the past ten yeatrs,
the city of Carroll has accounted for 60% of building activity
in the county. This would generate a demand for an additional
100 units over the next ten years in Carroll.

A Need for Housing Affordability

Quality affordable housing is a challenge for almost every
community. For Carroll, the overall market is generally afford-
able (see Figure 2.16) but there is a shortage of housing in key
income ranges. The demand for quality affordable housing

is most critical among households making less than $25,000
annually. While there is a significant shortage of housing for
those making more $100,000 they have greater options be-
cause they can always choose to find housing in lower ranges.
However, this option also creates an even greater competition
for those households in the lower ranges. In these cases low-
er income households are often forced into the lowest quality
housing and low quality housing remains on the market be-
cause the demand for anything that can be considered afford-
able remains high.

It should be noted that some of the demand within the low-
est income ranges is generated by older households who live
in housing with little or no mortgages remaining. Of Carroll’s
893 households over the age of 65 and living in owner-occu-
pied housing, an estimated 537 (43%) of those households
have an income less than $25,000 per year. This is 51% of all
households (1,034) making less than $25,000 per year.

"A recent survey identified
approximately 220 unfilled
Jjobs. Combined with unposted
positions and interest in
expanding cperations, the
employment demand is likely
closer to 500 jobs... This would
generate a demand for an
aclditional 100 units over the
next ten years in Carroll.”

Demand for Housing within Specific Price Points
Residents participating in meetings and surveys indicated

a need for housing across many price ranges but especially
for households in the moderate to lower ranges. Figure 2.16
would indicate that households in the moderate ranges have
a surplus of housing. However, all households live in a unit and
many of those units are being filled by residents in higher in-
come ranges. The lack of housing in the highest ranges can
also create greater competition for housing, ultimately driving
up housing costs. Over the next ten years the city will need to
construct, rehab and create filtering opportunities that result
in 105 units priced below $130,000 or below market rate (Fig-
ure 2.18). Another 68 rental units will need to be created to
support the lowest income households for which ownership is
not an option.






Carroll Area Development Corporation

CARROLL

As the largest population and employment center in Carroll
County, additional analysis of the trends occurring in the city
of Carroll can be found earlier in this chapter. The purpose of
this section is to provide a high-level overview of impressions,
trends, and recommended programs.

In Carroll, housing issues tend to concentrate in specific
neighborhoods, as opposed to the more scattered pattern
that occurs in the smaller communities. Overall housing rein-
vestment and maintenance is strong. The city’s older housing
stock will require continued reinvestment especially for the
large number of homes constructed in the 1960s and 1970s.
For most of the existing city, neighborhood conservation and
infill should be the top priority with new development hap-
pening immediately adjacent to existing infrastructure.

Regional Center. As the regional population and
employment center, the city should provide employment
opportunities for many residents of the region and
serve to be a housing option for those residing, or
looking to reside, in Carroll County. To serve the roles

as employment and housing center, it is important

that Carroll maintain its high quality of life, expand
employment opportunities, create new neighborhoods,
and stabilize existing neighborhoods. Further, if Carroll's
economy (jobs, housing, and overall quality of life)
continues to improve, the region will continue to prosper
and improve.

Neighborhood Stabilization. While much of the
housing stock is in good condition, certain existing
neighborhoods suffer from concentrated housing
issues. Programs to resolve these issues will benefit the
neighborhood as a whole.

At a Glance

Affordability Gauge:

2.83

Unaffordable

‘Undervalued  Affordable
(Less than 2) (2-3) (Greater than 3)
Median Home Value: $123,000
Median Household Income: $43,483
Median Contract Rent: $433
2000 Population: 10,106
2010 Population: 10,103 (-3 residents)
2014 Population: 10,051* (-52 residents)

*Estimate. The accuracy of population estimates
vary and should be used with caution.

Predicted vs. Actual Population Change (00’ to 10)

+209 residents more than predicted. This suggests
in-migration of new residents

New Housing Development. As described earlier in this
chapter (page 33), new housing is needed in Carroll at
certain price-points.

()
IN7ARPAN /2
“‘?ﬂo“‘i%;f?fé ’49\3?

54






Chapter 2 Community Assessments

MARP 2.5: Housing Policy Areas - Carroll, lowa

| 4 =
‘Carroll City 3
i 180th St 2 olh St
£
L
T
=~
ll;g*‘ ¢ ;8
po
| 3 Carroll
X {113 unicipal
\ Golf Course Notth
N Park &
| ]" : :
— e r
[ Lofom= ot g :
! ‘L . 1 o
‘"_“ A .'_.-_a.-]j f'_‘i,;
% 30 e s [ 1A e - E1fth St Aeporten = 190th st
12, =] ~
', CX 218 ]
; i (’S'/,,) “;o i i '..._-.-—-.v_—.z-.-/g:
| 2y ,74 T <L
-] 1 \l £
% iy v, EE 3
\ ji = ;5\ : z
et et well g |
E NGt 2 %
i . o
s
ST Maple
Park
£46th'St F Highpay=30US 30 mmmes
(5 -
- i
\ —.. 0
{
O R 5 : i &
4 oo - StAnthor; E L Anthony [Stm—=-m—== - ok
‘.‘Regio‘r'lal Canroll - ]_____[ \'\_'x...
 Hospital City | - N
‘ Lemslery ) S
B SR
bl 210th St @
£ |
i ‘Sources: Esri, HERE, DelLorme, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, U¢
3 “NRCAN; GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, MET
v Kong), swisstopo, MapmylIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the G

New Development

Infill and Stabilization

Neighborhood Conservation

~ Redevelopment Opportunity

( __ Gateway Preservation and Enhancement

55











Carroll Area Development Corporation

DEFINING HOUSING ISSUES

The information, analysis, and community engagement pro-
cess presented in the previous two chapters indicated a num-
ber of key issues and opportunities that face Carroll County
as it considers its capacity to meet housing needs during the
next ten years. The purpose of this chapter is to articulate the
specific issues and opportunities to drive the county's hous-
ing goals and priorities. The following chapter will provide
the policy framework and program directions for addressing
these priorities.

Housing Resources and Assets

Like many places, the cities of Carroll County can become
overwhelmed by the difficulty of the housing challenges they
face. However, Carroll County's communities have taken many
positive steps and have key resources and assets with which
to build a successful housing program. These include:

Strong Job Market

Carroll County has one of the lowest unemployment rates in
the region. At an estimated 2.5%, the county is nearly at full
employment and employment demand would appear to ex-
ceed recruitment capacity. A recent survey indicated that
there are roughly 220 unfilled jobs. This is likely a conser-
vative number and does not reflect the potential to expand
operations if employees were available. Employers suggest-
ed that there is demand to expand their operations and hire
additional workers but that those workers are not available
in Carroll County. All are aware of the need to attract and re-
tain new, talented workers to the region. New residents look
for many features when considering a move - good paying
jobs, quality schools, recreation and quality of life amenities,
and affordable living with quality housing. These attributes
are what also keeps new employees in a community. Carroll
County is a highly attractive environment to live and raise a
family but the first impressions and experiences have to be
positive, and this also includes a good experience within the
housing market.

0 (P
0, N7 0, 2
AN AN AN
VN

YOV Y@

Continued Demand

Natural population growth, smaller households, employment
expansion, and replacement needs continue to generate a
strong demand for housing. Despite aggressive strategies by
several communities to increase the lot supply and increasing
construction rates for custom built homes in Carroll, demand
continues to exceed construction activity. As a result and de-
spite what current Census Bureau estimates indicate, many
of the cities have vacancy rates that indicate almost full occu-
pancy of habitable units. As such, communities like Glidden,
Coon Rapids, and Breda cannot afford to relax their efforts
to create new lots and other cities may need to find ways to
more aggressively encourage new development.

Construction Community

Carroll County has a core group of contractors who are en-
gaged in the communities. Many of these contractors have
gravitated toward the more secure custom build market since
the 2008 recession. Communities also realize that these build-
ers have limited capacity and have been willing to work with
builders from outside the region to meet the construction
demand. Future policies and programs should engage these
builders and limit their risk.






High Quality Housing Stock

One of Carroll County’s greatest strengths is the quality of
the existing housing stock. The culture of pride in ownership
is evident in many of the communities in Carroll County and
results in higher home values and lower turnover rates. This
quality is evident across the board for many of the communi-
ties and includes housing and neighborhoods from a number
of development periods. Some pockets of disinvestment ex-
ist and are most noticeable in the rental market. Much of this
is related to the age of the county’s rental housing stock. For
many of the smaller communities the rental market is depen-
dent on small, older single-family homes that can be picked
up cheaply as investment properties. While many are nicely
maintained there are also a number that have reached their
life expectancy and lack the modern construction and insula-
tion features to make them affordable housing options. Newer
rental options, mostly in the form of 2 to 4 unit projects are in
good condition with high demand for these units at any price
point.

Quality Communities and Schools (family friendly)
For those communities that have some of the best housing
stock the same level of investment is put into community ser-
vices, business, and public spaces. These environments are
highly valued and attractive to young residents wanting to
raise families in positive and healthy environments. Quality
schools are also an essential component to a healthy and vi-
brant community. A strong school district is essential to at-
tracting new young families. For those communities that have
lost their schools over the years attracting and retaining res-
idents becomes even more challenging. Carroll County also
offers strong educational options, a unique feature not found
in most rural areas.

Chapter 3 Defining Housing Issues

Local Business and Banking Support

The banking community is an essential partner in any hous-
ing development program. Local dollars are essential to the
process and can provide much greater flexibility. Having a
strong and diverse banking community also means that more
partners can be brought to the table to share the risk on more
non-traditional projects that diversify the housing market.
More and more the business community, outside of financial
institutions, are becoming involved in the housing market.
They have come to realize that quality housing options are
essential to attracting new employees. Positions cannot be
filled and operations cannot be expanded without housing for
those workers. Carroll County’s businesses understand this di-
lemma and are open to being part of the housing solution.






Carroll Area Development Corporation

Housing Challenges and Issues

Although Carroll County has numerous assets, the cities do

have some clear challenges that they must face to ensure a

housing market that meets market demands. These include:

Demand for Scarce Price Point

The greatest demand for housing in Carroll seems to be
homes priced in the mid-hundred thousands and for mar-

ket rate rentals. For owner-occupied units there is a scarcity
of quality units priced between $120,000 and $180,000. At
current lot prices and building costs these units are not be-
ing constructed. Even for those communities that are offering
very affordable lots, construction costs remain at a level that
is resulting in the average new home being priced well over
$200,000. On the rental side of the market, the demand for
quality, non-subsidized structures remains high. It should be
noted that the need for quality housing for those households
in the lowest income ranges is still substantial but often they
are competing for housing with those who could possibly pay
more if the option was on the market . Additionally finding
quality housing that allows individuals to move up from sub-
sidized housing remains an issue. The bottom line is that with
very few real estate listings, low vacancy of habitable units,
and a very low inventory of quality rental units without in-
come limits, new arrivals are left with few options. This is ulti-
mately a problem for both civic and economic health.

Products for Seniors & Young Professionals

Carroll County is an appealing destination for seniors, given
its access to health care, quality of life, and community activ-
ities. However, there is a need for maintenance-free indepen-
dent housing and congregate living. This housing type not
only attracts new seniors to the market from outside but also
helps address local housing demand. When a retiree chooses
to downsize to something smaller or with less maintenance,
they are often leaving a home that is directly within those
scare price points. This often can be the best way to add units
indirectly to the market that are otherwise difficult to build.
On the other end of the spectrum, lower-maintenance units
are also often very appealing to young professionals. Many in
this age-range are looking for lower maintenance options or
rental units that provide quality housing while they build up
equity to enter the buyer’s market.

82

Slow Construction Market

Many factors have come together to slow construction ac-
tivity. Following the housing crisis in 2008 financing for both
the builders and home buyers become much more stringent.
Many builders during this time period were nearing retirement
age and viewed the recession as a sign to leave the business.
For the builders remaining in the community the margins are
much higher on the custom home side and demand is high
enough that there is little incentive to construct speculative
homes. Additionally the risk in the speculative home market is
much higher for smaller communities, where absorption rates
may be slightly longer, or at least perceived to be longer. Fi-
nally, labor shortages mean that builders have a back log of
work and are unable to build more units.






Lack of Rental Construction

While the City of Carroll has developed some multi-fami-

ly housing, little to no new rental construction has occurred
in the other communities of Carrol County. Easy mortgages
during the early 2000s and lower demand in the 1990s made
some form of homeownership, affordable or not, seem attain-
able to most entrants into the housing market. Yet, there has
been a significant change since 2008. Tighter underwriting
standards and downpayment requirements have increased
rental demands, especially for younger households. It should
be noted that the last major push for new rental construc-
tion in many cities occurred during the 1970s, just as many
Baby Boomers were establishing themselves in the housing
market. Communities are now beginning to see this same de-
mand from the children of Baby Boomers. This large genera-
tion is interested in staying in rentals longer, whether that is
due to lending requirements, greater college loan debt, or just
a more cautious nature following the recession. Despite this
demand they are finding few quality options that meet their
needs and communities have few builders/owners familiar
with the multi-family market.

Perception of Rental Costs

The perception of rental costs can have a significant effect

on the construction of new rental housing. Often residents,
both long-time residents and new arrivals, have a perception
that rental prices should be much lower in a rural community.
This is often the case but the cost of construction and main-
tenance are not different, and some times higher in rural ar-
eas than in larger cities. Additionally, many do not realize that
rents can and often have to be higher than monthly mort-
gages. Income assessments indicate a demand for addition-
al market rate rentals but long held perceptions that higher
rents are in low demand leave little incentive to construct new
rental options.

Builder Capacity

Carroll County has a number of quality builders but the de-
mand for new and different housing outpaces their capaci-

ty. Carroll County is not developing enough housing to meet
demand. The slow construction activity and little to no new
rentals creates a backlog demand that is often very difficult to
calculate. Not only is there a demand for new housing to sup-
port growth, but a demand for housing by long time residents
that have not moved because the options are not available.
Additionally, there is a growing demand for different housing
types, such as townhomes, downtown living, or units oriented
to seniors. These are not the type of units that local builders
are often familiar with and they continue to have great suc-
cess with traditional single-family homes, leaving little incen-
tive to try new market types. These builders are also strug-
gling with labor shortages which limits their capacity.

Chapter 3 Defining Housing Issues






Carroll Area Development Corporation

STRATEGIC HOUSING GOALS

As Carroll County looks ahead to the next decade it appears
poised to grow at a record pace. Yet, a strong community fu-
ture depends on the ability of the cities to maintain a sustain-
able level of growth. Analysis of both the assets and issues
suggest the need for a housing and community development
strategy for Carroll County that:

1. Increases the number of quality market rate rentals.
As noted above the lack of new rental construction
over the past 20 years has left the market with few
quality rental options. Many rural communities, outside
of Carroll County, have seen some tax credit projects
being built but that has not necessarily been the case
for Carroll County. This leaves both higher and lower
income households competing for the same units. Many
residents noted the lack of good quality market rate
rentals for families and young professionals. Providing
better options for this market will free up housing for
lower income households and drive the lowest quality
units either off the market or force them to improve their
product.

2.Increase builder capacity. Just as other markets are
looking at ways to recruit and retain employees the
building trades need the same assistance. Ways to
attract individuals back to Carroll that have this expertise
or to train individuals that want to stay in the community
should be explored.

3.Expand the lot supply. Many of the smaller communities
have made great strides to ensure available lots exist
within their corporate limits; these efforts must continue.
Private developers cannot afford to pay for the upfront
costs of infrastructure for lot development and every
reasonable effort should be made to ensure that lots are
available in all of the communities of Carroll County.






Chapter 3 Defining Housing Issues

4.Increase the appeal of rehabilitating housing. Carroll
County’s housing stock is generally in very good
condition but faces some challenges. Young buyers
looking for “move-in ready” housing and a lack of
contractors doing rehabilitation work results in housing
that sells slowly or deteriorates further. Many structures
need maintenance or rehabilitation while others are
obsolete and sometimes too small to meet contemporary
needs. In older neighborhoods, one or two poor houses
on a block can also affect the marketability of the entire
area. The rehabilitation of these homes essential to
providing quality entry level housing in any community
and continual maintenance and rehabilitation is a high
priority.

5.Expand housing options, especially for the senior
market. New partnerships will need to be developed to
spread the risk associated with housing types that are
less traditional in Carroll County. These types will have
to include lower-maintenance options for empty-nesters
and young retirees looking to downsize. The next chapter
will discuss several strategies for addressing this market
gap.

6.Develop moderately-priced “gateway” housing.
Programs and policies should find ways to expand the
number of gateway or entry level housing units that
allow residents to build equity in the community. These
strategies may include efforts to construct new housing
at entry level price points combined with rehabilitation
and maintenance of existing housing.

7. Share risks to meet needs that the private market cannot

satisfy alone. This strategic direction ties closely with
many of the above strategies. Gateway housing, new
multi-family, and non-traditional housing options will
not occur without some risk-sharing by all players in the
local housing market. This includes the cities, financial
institutions, economic development agencies, and even
employers to find new ways to address gaps in the
private market. All of these players may have different
roles but all need to be at the table.

8.Increase the number of affordable lots in Carroll. The

lot supply within the City of Carroll is not a serious issue
but the lack of more affordable lots is a problem. Current
practices require that all of the cost of development goes
into cost of the lot, with a small percentage for profit.
This means that most lots in Carroll are priced well-over
$30,000. At these prices more affordable housing cannot
be built. For a healthy market a good variety of lot types
and prices should be available.

9.Improve options for households in the lowest income

ranges. The demand for quality, affordable housing
cannot be overlooked, especially in the City of Carroll.
New affordable housing should provide better, safer
options and ensure that all residents have a quality place
to call home.





Carroll Area Development Corporation

o0

o











Carroll Area Development Corporation

DIRECTIONS FORWARD

Components of a Housing Study

Without quality housing, Carroll County will not be able to
accommodate the people needed to move forward. As indi-
cated in the previous sections, there is a connection between
economic development and housing—indeed housing de-
velopment is economic development. This section identifies
strategic policies and programs that will support these efforts
and the goals outlined in Chapter 3.

Carroll County Housing Program Focuses
Carroll County’s housing strategy should have six primary fo-
cuses:

1. Housing Partnerships and Financing Mechanisms
2.Targeted Programs

3.Neighborhood and Community Reinvestment
4.Neighborhood Conservation

5.Lot Development

6.Senior Housing

Some of these strategies can be applied county-wide while
others may be adjusted to a community’s specific needs.
Most importantly, no one program or approach will address
the issues and goals identified in Chapter 3. A combination
of projects, programs, and policies will need to be combined
to create a strong housing market. These combinations may
vary from community to community but, whenever possible,
resources should be shared to leverage more capacity and
funding.

Housing Partnerships & Financing Mecha-
nisms

Carroll County should develop a partnership with the flexible
capability to address specific housing needs around the coun-

ty.

An effective community housing partnership should provide
project development, financing, and marketing capabilities.
The components of a Carroll County Housing Partnership
should include:

» Housing Development Corporation
» The Cities and County

» Carroll Area Development Corporation and Major
Employers

» Builders & Realtors

» Financing Mechanisms and the Financial Community

88






Housing Development Corporation

A housing development corporation is a nonprofit developer
governed by a board of directors and operating in the same
entrepreneurial way as a conventional developer. The differ-
ence between a development corporation and a traditional
developer is the market they serve and the risks they are will-
ing to take. As a non-profit, their mission should be focused
on providing housing to those markets that private develop-
ers cannot effectively serve. This may include entry level price
points for owner-occupancy and housing rehabilitation that
does not provide the profit margins necessary for a successful
private business.

Housing development corporations often grow out of estab-
lished organizations that have identified housing as vital to
their work. In places like Dodge City, Kansas and Wayne, Ne-
braska, these organizations have been local economic devel-
opment groups who increasingly saw the connection between
housing development and community vitality. In Omaha these
organizations have included community organizations such

as churches, human service groups, and community action
agencies that identify housing as a critical need.

Cities and County

Cities generally have the responsibilities of providing and
maintaining urban infrastructure and municipal services, and,
under the lowa Redevelopment Law, can initiate community
redevelopment projects. Consistent with these responsibil-
ities, Carroll County’s cities should: finance capital improve-
ments using techniques that reduce and/or defer the front-
end cost of lots; assemble or acquire property for develop-
ment or redevelopment as needed; and act to promote other
projects or remove obstacles to developments that provide
entry level housing and units that accommodate the coun-
ty’s lowest income households. The role of each of the cities
in the housing partnership may vary by community but could
include:

» Acquisition and site preparation of infill redevelopment
sites

» Financial assistance through CDBG, TIF and other
programs

Subdivision development with infrastructure

» Funding and management of energy saving programs
through their local utilities

Funding and management of any residential incentive
loans

A number of Carroll County’s communities are already using
one or more of these tools but the opportunity to combine
these with an organization that is focused specifically on fill-

Chapter 4 Directions Forward

ing gaps in the market, has not existed in the past.

Carroll Area Development Corporation and Major
Employers

CADC and the region’s major employers can play many differ-
ent roles. CADC may be the home for a development corpora-
tion but should at the least be a conduit between the private
development community and the municipalities. They may
also play a vital role in marketing and promotion of housing
and community resources.

Major employers can also play a variety of roles. This may in-
clude:

» Working with the development corporation to ensure
adequate housing for employees

» Providing financial support to one or more of the
potential funding mechanisms discussed below

» Expanding employee benefits to include some type of
housing benefit. This may include:

« Moving and relocation support

« Employer assisted housing through programs that pro-
vide matching funds for a downpayment

« “Corporate” unit(s) that can be used by interns or top
management that are relocating to the area. This type
of unit(s) could even be shared among different employ-
ers

Builders & Developers

Builders’ and realtors role in the housing partnership will be
as the contractors and the marketers of new or rehabilitated
housing.






Carroll Area Development Corporation

Financing Mechanisms and the Financial
Cormmmunity

Creative approaches to financing should continually be ex-
plored but two of the core mechanisms include:

Lending Consortium. Many of the county’s housing strategies
must have a source of financing including the housing de-
velopment corporation. Such a financing program should be
designed for maximum leverage (in the language of commu-
nity development, leverage is the ability of program dollars

to generate private investment in response); shared risk; and
quick turnover rather than long-term financing. The develop-
ment of a housing partnership should include a “lenders con-
sortium;” a cooperative venture among lending institutions
active in the Carroll County market to spread individual risk. In
addition, these cooperative ventures can attract the support
of other agencies such as the lowa Finance Authority (IFA),
the Federal Home Loan Bank, and the lowa Economic Devel-
opment Authority.

A lending consortium is an ideal instrument to provide short-
term financing or “patient financing” for builders and contrac-
tors in the community, and to provide interim financing for
projects developed by the housing partnership, cities or even
the county.

Housing Trust Fund. A housing trust fund provides a source
of seed capital, unconstrained by program regulations, for a
city or development corporation to use for the purpose of de-
veloping needed housing types. The popularity of trust funds
can be attributed to their inherent flexibility. For Carroll Coun-
ty, these dollars could be used to support construction of new
entry level housing, rehabilitation of existing housing, or de-
velopment of new rental housing. Trust funds can be funded
in several ways, including dedication of a specific share of lo-
cal option sales tax, fees, local revenue bond issues, or grants
and charitable contributions. Through charitable contributions
to a trust fund, the county’s employers could play a vital role
in housing quality and choice in the county.

Region XIf Housing Programs

Region XII Council of Governments is involved in imple-
menting and operating housing programs. - Programs are
designed to benefit low and moderate-income residents
throughout the region and member communities.

(HPL) Revolving Loan Fund

Loans to income-qualified homeowners in member com-
munities for repairs to eliminate health and safety hazards
including windows, doors, roofs, furnaces, etc.

Rehabilitation Programs

Developed in communities where poor housing condi-
tions and the need for rehabilitation has been identified.
Income-qualified homeowners can receive assistance {o
complete substantial repairs and assistance is provided as
a part loan / part forgivable loan.

Down Payment Assistance Programs

Developed in communities that have identified insufficient
down payments as a barrier to homeownership for low
and moderate-income families. ‘Assistance as a loan and/
or forgivable loan to potential homeowner as gap financ-
ing between loan amount and the cost of the home. ‘A re-
gional down payment loan program is also available,

Rental Projects

Assist in the development or rehabilitation of rental proj-
ects. Staff can help develop a financial package utilizing a
variety of funding sources. ‘

New Construction

Staff members to help with the development of new sin-
gle family homes and subdivisions, providing technical
assistance in grant writing, financial packaging, and mar-
keting.

Speculative Financing Revolving Loan Fund

Funding to make partial construction loans to contrac-
tors for new spec homes. Contractors or developers can
receive a loan of up to $20,000 for construction at a low
interest rate for homes that may sell for up to $110,000.

Lead-Based Paint and Asbestos Inspection and Abate-
ment

Region XiI’s housing inspectors are certified in lead based
paint-and asbestos inspection, and can assist in abate-
ment programs for both materials.






Chapter 4 Directions Forward

Targeted Programs

Carroll County and its communities should focus on programs
that provide: affordable equity housing, affordable and high
quality rental housing options; expanding housing variety;
and reinvestment in the regions existing housing stock.

Affordable Equity Housing. Many of the programs listed in
the next pages will assist residents in building equity in the
community but a more direct housing program may also be
needed in Carroll and Manning especially, but also in any of
the communities. New entry level, owner-occupied hous-

ing can strengthen a city’s housing stock by attracting new
households that are looking to build equity in a community.
New housing may be built either in existing subdivisions or on
infill lots within built-up areas. While many communities have
found ways to provide affordable lots, the homes built on
these lots are often not affordable to those first entering the Sioux Center, IA: Moderately-Priced Housing
market, tending to be higher price point homes. Using a community land development corporation, capi-
talized by purchase of shares by citizens of Sioux Center,
a new moderately-priced development was initiated. The
program builds three to six speculative homes at a time,
maintaining an available inventory. The proceeds of sales
are then used to build the next increment of houses. The
development group develops the lots from land pur-
chased from the city. The housing is focused on the con-
struction of moderately-priced housing and started the
program with homes priced around $120,000. Over the
years this has increased to $180,000 but efforts in 2016
are focused on keeping the cost closer to $150,000.

New housing in a variety of styles (single-family, single-family
attached, and townhomes) may be built in either contiguous
developments or on clustered infill lots within built-up areas.
The cost of housing may be controlled through a mixture of
techniques. One potential scenario: the housing trust fund
may provide recoverable, front-end funding for such items

as project design; the cities may acquire property or devel-
op infrastructure through TIF or revenue bonds; the housing
development corporation would act as the master developer
holding contracts with private builders for home construction;
and the lenders consortium would provide interim financ-

ing for the development corporation. A number of the Car-
roll County’s communities, including Glidden and Templeton,
have been doing lot development through property acquisi-
tions, TIF and/or general funds, but have not had the resourc-
es or mechanisms to deliver either housing variety or housing
at prices points that meet the moderate income housing de-
mand.

Region 12 can also play an important role through their fund-
ing sources which include downpayment assistance pro-
grams. Realtors may also participate by reducing commis-
sions on selected projects. Potential target markets for new
affordable units may include younger households, people
with stable incomes, and downsizing empty-nesters.

It should be noted that many of the communities have

a strong demand for market rate housing priced above
$200,000. These types of units have a much lower risk to the
private development community and increasing production
of these units can be addressed in ways discussed later in this
section, specifically through expanding builder capacity and
ensuring an adequate lot supply.

91





Carroll Area Development Corporation

Rent-to-Own. Rent-to-own projects provide a middle-ground
approach between ownership and rental occupancy, giving
new residents who cannot afford homeownership at present
an avenue to build equity in a community. In the rent-to-own
program, the development corporation may build houses us-
ing the Low Income Housing Tax Credit. A portion of the fam-
ily’s rent is placed in an escrow account for a future downpay-
ment. At the end of a specific period, the residents can then
use the accumulated downpayment escrow to purchase either
a new house or an existing unit. Rent-to-own programs have
the advantage of providing rental housing to residents, while
incorporating aspects of owner-occupancy.

Communities and counties in Nebraska have worked togeth-
er with developers that specialize in or are familiar with this
type of product to share project financing. The financing and
resources are split between the two communities with a set
number of homes being built in each community.

Rental Housing & Housing Variety. Rental construction over
the past two decades has been slow but changes in financing
and a large young adult population are increasing the demand
for quality rental options. In Carroll County, demand for rent-
al housing crosses all income ranges. New rental housing and

Saint Louis: Live-Work

Rental development in large cities like Saint Louis pro-
vide lessons that could be imported by smaller cities like
those in Carroll County. Rental housing does not have to
be in apartment complexes. New approaches to housing
can combine living and working spaces to attract young
people and create opportunities for greater economic
activity.

owner-occupied attached units should include market-rate
rentals for professionals, workforce housing, housing for peo-
ple with urgent needs in the lowest incomes, and seniors in-
terested in downsizing. All of these options should expand the
mix of housing choices in Carroll County.

Funding sources such as a lending consortium and hous-

ing trust fund can be used to develop new inventory, and

tax credits may be employed to address the needs of low-

er income households. Tax Increment Financing, CDBG/
HOME funds, and tax credits can also help create affordable
multi-family housing. The housing partnership and lending
consortium should be active participants in the financing of
multi-family housing developments by distributing the risk of
projects across several lenders.

Marketing and recruitment of rental housing developers may
be necessary to expand the market. While Carroll County has
a number of quality builders and developers, most of them
are not familiar with or interested in rental or multi-family de-
velopment. Through a strategic effort communities can iden-
tify appropriate sites and appraise developers to ensure the
needs of Carroll County’s lowest wage earners are met.

The need for quality rental housing cannot be overstated.
New arrivals to a community often use rental housing as a
way to become familiar with a community, eventually becom-
ing homeowners. If a new worker cannot find quality rent-

al housing that is appropriately priced, they will often move
on to the next closest town or county, settling in as future
home-buyers.





Acquisition/Rehab/Resale. In this program concept, houses
are acquired and sold in a rehabilitated or “turnkey” state to
owner-occupants. It recognizes the limited number of pro-
spective buyers who want to carry out a major home reha-
bilitation project. This program works best when candidate
houses can be purchased at relatively low cost - a common
condition in some parts of Carroll County. Under the program,
a development corporation purchases existing houses, re-
habilitates them, and resells them to new homebuyers. The
lending community may participate cooperatively in this ef-
fort by providing interim financing. Mortgage financing for
low- and moderate-income buyers may be assisted by Region
Xl and/or CDBG or HOME “soft-second” loans. Realtors may
also participate by reducing commissions on selected proj-
ects.

By using local dollars, the development corporation may be
able to target those dollars to households at or above the area
median income. These households are much more likely to be
bankable and based on realtor input have the hardest time
finding quality housing. There may also be the opportunity to
expand the number of houses eligible for the program.

Chapter 4 Directions Forward

Builder Capacity. Workforce development is a significant is-
sue across many industries and the building trades are no
different. As part of the work already being done around
workforce development a program should be designed and
implemented to train the next generation of professionals
and craftspeople for the building trades. “Leadership tran-
sition” should also be a component of this program. Many of
the county’s current builders and specialty trades people are
nearing their retirement years with well-established business-
es and no one to sell or hand-off their business to. Through
small business loans, young crafts-people can purchase an
established business and the retiree can capture the equity
that they have built into their business over the years.

The workforce development program should market the ca-
reer satisfaction and economic rewards that the construction
industry offers young people. Partners in the program may
include:

» Des Moines Area Community College. In the past,
DMACC has assisted in a trades program that should be
continued with an eye toward the retention of the best
and the brightest that complete the program.

» Area School Districts. Many school districts over the
years have moved away from traditional building trade
classes and focused more on college preparation.

With the demand for skilled trades people this trend

is changing but will need support from the broader
community. Working with the school districts, programs
should be put in place that include architecture and
drawing, focused on English/communication and math
learning, construction skills, and business education.

» The Building Community. Through internship
programs students can learn first-hand experience. An
introduction session may need to be developed that
prepares students for their internships to create an
asset to the builders rather than a burden.

» Cities, County and Private Sector. Through resources,
funding and internships, all of these groups should play
arole in expanding the areas workforce.






Carroll Area Development Corporation

Employer Assisted Housing. Housing assistance by
employers was briefly discussed above, including several of
the most common types of assistance. Employers may need
to push beyond these more common approaches to attract
and retain talent and consider housing assistance as part of
an overall benefits package. In addition to those noted above,
employers may consider:;

»

¥

Investment in the equity for affordable housing
developments financed under the Section 42 Low-Income
Housing Tax Credit Program. These investments receive
substantial tax advantages making them an attractive
and financially rewarding investment option for some
individuals and corporations.

Downpayment assistance programs that may be patterned
after 401(K) programs. This program would permit
employees to withhold a set amount of their salaries for
deposit in an interest-bearing account. These employee
contributions would be matched by a contribution from
the employer. The downpayment matching program would
continue for a specified period (up to three years) and/or

a specified maximum amount. Under another scenario, the
employer could advance downpayment loans, repaid on
the same basis.

Targeted employer assistance programs are very similar
to the downpayment programs but provide incentives

to employees considering home purchases in areas of
special interest to the employers. For Carroll County this
may be for the purchase or construction within a specific
community or any community in Carroll County or within a
targeted redevelopment area.

94

Housing Incentives at Saint Louis University
Saint Louis University has provided a housing benefit to
its employees through an Employer Assisted Housing
Program (EAHP). The EAHP provides three benefits for
the University employees:

1. Housing information and education on home
ownership

2.When available, preferred rates and reduced closing
costs on mortgage and refinancing costs through
partnering institutions.

3.When available, forgivable loans for eligible
employees, applicable towards the purchase of a
home located in the designated neighborhoods new
campus.

This program applies to all current, full-time faculty and
staff members. Properties eligible for the forgivable loan
program must be located with specific revitalizations ar-
eas. For Carroll County a program could be focused on a
redevelopment area, specific community in the county,
or anywhere within Carroll County. In the SLU program
the percentage of the loan that is forgiven increases with
the number of years of employment after origination of
the loan, up to 100% of the loan after five years of em-
ployment.






Neighborhood and Community Reinvestment
Carroll County has an excellent housing stock and high quali-
ty older neighborhoods. Often the smallest communities, with
populations below 1,000 struggle with housing quality but
Willey is just one great example in Carroll County where that
is not the case. That does not mean that Carroll County’s com-
munities have not experienced some disinvestment.

To protect and sustain the county’s stock of older housing (an
important affordable housing resource) and use existing in-
frastructure in the most efficient manner, Carroll County com-
munities should implement conservation and reinvestment
programs.

Land Assembly. One of the biggest hurdles to transforma-
tive infill development is the assembly of land or lots. Most
developers do not have the capital, time, or other resources

to assemble lots from multiple property owners. Using the
strategy areas identified in Chapter 2, communities and/or the
development corporation should assemble lots in the most
strategic way possible. Infill sites should be located in areas
that are substantially sound and attractive, albeit older, neigh-
borhoods that will sustain and benefit from the higher cost

of new construction. Ideal infill sites are clustered together,
giving a new development project the critical mass necessary
to provide security for buyers and increase values in the sur-
rounding neighborhood. An infill program may include the
following components:

» A geographic inventory of vacant lots and deteriorated
houses completed by each of the communities. This will
assist the development company and city in defining
target sites for new construction

» An aggressive program to acquire and demolish houses
that are so deteriorated that rehabilitation is not
feasible

Negotiation with property owners to acquire targeted
vacant lots

¥

In areas with a concentration of infill sites, preparation
of a redevelopment plan that can guide developers and
builders

» Where a concentration of infill sites cannot be done
in one community the resources of multiple close
communities may be combined to make the lots
more appealing to a developer looking for using their
resources to build more than just one house at a time.

Chapter 4 Directions Forward

Downtown Housing. Communities of all sizes have proven
the popularity of downtown living and its ability to play an
important role in business district reinvestment. Downtown
housing can also take advantage of specific incentives such as
historic tax credits that provide additional equity in projects.
Downtown Carroll has the potential for both new construc-
tion of vacant or under-utilized spaces and upper story con-
version. Downtown Manning has already seen some interest
in both upper story housing and adjacent high-density senior
housing.

The use of upper stories for residential is one of the most ef-
fective ways to enliven and energize a downtown district.
Residents in the district bring people to the streets after tra-
ditional office hours. For a district like Carroll the retail and
dining options remain strong and attractive to potential resi-
dents. However, there are some challenges that must be ad-
dressed, including:

» Parking. All of Carroll County’s communities have
adequate downtown parking. However, parking
needs for residential units is a different than parking
for businesses. Parking for housing does have to
be adjacent to the building or even enclosed to be
attractive to most prospective residents.

» Access. Meeting fire codes can be a challenge in
some upper story conversions but life-safety has to
be a priority. These code requirements may impact
the number and layout of apartments. Modifications
to buildings, such as additional exits, must also be
balanced against the design integrity of the building
and the downtown district.

» Facade Improvements. Fagade improvements should
be done in a manner that is sensitive to the historic
features of the building, elevating the quality and feel
of the entire district and making units more appealing
from both the interior and the exterior. Exterior building
improvements will also support the appeal and leasing
rates necessary to support downtown conversions.






Carroll Area Development Corporation

Neighborhood Conservation

Neighborhood conservation programs should strengthen
neighborhoods and small communities housing stock and

create an environment of reinvestment. A comprehensive ap-
proach should eliminate substandard housing and create an
atmosphere of property reinvestment. Generally speaking this
atmosphere and pride of ownership exists in most neighbor-

hoods and communities but there are pockets of disinvest-
ment around the county.

Carroll County communities should continue to leverage Re-
gion Xl funds and expand those opportunities through a vari-
ety of techniques for both owner and renter occupied units.

Owner Assistance
A coordinated rehabilitation strategy, both within and be-

tween communities, should be operated on a reliable, multi-
year basis. A rehabilitation program, appropriate to the re-

spective needs of individual communities, may include:

= An Emergency repair program. For very low-income
residents, an emergency repair program should be
established. This type of program is usually funded
through Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
funds in the form of grants or forgivable loans. Emer-
gency repair programs are designed to meet critical in-
dividual needs, but also to keep viable housing from de-
teriorating further. Thus, when funds are limited, assis-
tance should be focused on fundamentally sound struc-

tures.

- Direct rehabilitation loan program. Region Xl admin-
isters a loan and forgivable loan program that could be
further leveraged by the communities. This program is
most appropriate to low-income homeowners who are
not otherwise bankable. These efforts should generally
be focused in strategic areas where loans support oth-
er area investments, such as substantial infill develop-

ment.

provide guidance on these programs.

O
T 74
() i\f w%\g ]

\x '\\ /2\%, \‘;ﬂ

Acquisition/rehab/resale programs. As discussed on
page 93, a purchase/rehabilitation/resale program is
particularly useful in adapting older houses. Several de-
velopment corporations have extensive experience with
this type of program, including Wayne (Nebraska) Com-
munity Housing Development Corporation, who could

« Energy efficiency loans. Funding may be leveraged
through the local utilities to provide loans that improve
the energy efficiency of older homes. These low-inter-
est or no-interest loans can be used to replace windows,
heating and cooling systems, or any other upgrades
that improve the energy efficiency of the home. Re-
gion Xl already provides funding for repairs that elimi-
nate health and safety hazards through a revolving loan
fund, but again these types of programs can always be
leveraged further on the local level.

Advertisement and marketing is often one of the biggest chal-
lenges for these programs and also a very important compo-
nent. Communities will see limited use of these programs due
to a lack of public awareness, however if they can be com-
bined with a code enforcement effort, they can act as an in-
centive for bringing structures up to a reasonable standard.

96





Rental Rehabilitation

The cities should also consider a rehabilitation program fo-
cused on rental properties that provides leveraged loans
combined with code enforcement. With limited (com-
plaint-driven) code enforcement and a tight rental market
there is often no incentive for rental property owners to make
improvements. For most of the communities in Carroll County
the rental market is found in small single-family homes. These
homes tend to be some of the oldest housing and the least
energy efficient units. This program provides financing for the
improvement of sound rental properties in need of rehabilita-
tion.

Rental rehabilitation must include housing code enforcement
to ensure that units meet minimum housing standards. The
reluctance of tenants to file complaints can seriously hamper
effective life-safety enforcement. Some communities have in-
stituted rental registration or licensing programs. These pro-
grams apply to all rental units, exclusive of type or cost. Here,
all rental units must register to be certified for occupancy.
Registration requires a life-safety inspection and compliance
with minimum standards. The potential of loss of revenue,
combined with available financing, can induce participation
by property owners in this type of program. These programs
can be effective, but are staff-intensive and must be adminis-
tered to avoid displacing low-income households. The issues
of cost and staffing may be addressed by several communi-
ties coming together to share staff and resources.

Mechanically, the foundation of a rental rehabilitation pro-
gram should be private financing. An individual institution
or development corporation, acting as a referral agency, may
take a leading role in marketing the availability of rehabilita-
tion loans to small rental property owners. Working with Re-
gion XII, the cities could provide blended loans when some
form of subsidy is needed.

97

Chapter 4 Directions Forward

Lot Development

The policies and strategies for lot development is directly im-
pacted by a community’s lot absorption rate. For a city like
Carroll, where more units are constructed annually; and there-
fore lots can be absorbed more quickly, lot development can
be less of a financial risk. However, when lot development is
driven by the development community, as it is in Carroll, a
stock of affordable lots can be an issue. This is not the fault of
the developer, they are for-profit businesses needing to re-
cover their costs for infrastructure design and development.
For smaller communities, with much slower absorption rates,
the private market is often much more reluctant to become
involved in lot or subdivision development. This creates two
different issues with regards to lot development in the county
and therefore requires different policies.

Carroll

The supply of lots in the City of Carroll is not a tremendous
issue. Over the years local developers have periodically ex-
panded their subdivisions to add new lots to the city’s stock.
The challenge for Carroll is that the cost of these lots, roughly
starting at $45,000 and up, is too high to support the con-
struction of housing priced below $200,000. In the final sale
price of a home, the cost to develop the lot - construction of
streets, water, sewer, and stormwater lines - has to be fac-
tored into the final price. The higher the cost of creating the
lot, the greater the subsidy on the actual construction of the
house would need to be. One of the most effective ways to
lower the final price in a new development is to bring down
the cost of the lot.






Carroll Area Development Corporation

Infill lots can be one way to provide affordable lots since the
initial development costs of these lots has long been recuper-
ated through property taxes. However variety is also needed
in any healthy market. In addition to assembling infill lots, as
discussed above, the city may partner with a private devel-
oper or development corporation to develop more affordable
lots. Potential programs or approaches include:

¥

»

»

\,ﬂ(\
WLO

Infrastructure investments for a share of costs. The
public share might be from 30% to 50% of construction
cost. For Carroll, the city should require that units on
these lots fall within targeted price points that provide
moderate priced entry level housing. Repayment is
derived from the added property taxes created by new
development.

Special Assessments. In many communities, special
assessments are used to finance infrastructure. While
assessments reduce the initial purchase price of the
house, they are repaid through monthly payments, and
therefore add to the monthly and overall cost of the
house.

Subordinate payments. Here, the city front ends a
portion of public improvements, repaid over a longer
period through a second mortgage on the property.
This reduces payments over special assessments by
extending the loan term and reducing the principal.

Deferred payment. Here the city finances the
infrastructure as a deferred loan. The infrastructure
loan is paid back upon sale of the house. The repayment
represents the same percentage of the sale proceeds
that the initial infrastructure loan made up of the
original price.

Grants. Grants from the Federal Home Loan Bank,
USDA, or state-administered Federal programs such
as CDBG or HOME can also help with infrastructure
financing. It should be noted that the funds are often
highly competitive.

Tax Increment Financing (TIF). In Carroll County’s
smaller communities, TIF has been a significant tool for
land acquisition and development financing. TIF uses
the added tax revenue created by the development to
finance project-related costs such as land acquisition
and public improvements.

N/

\\ﬁ:fi [\\/7

(\! /1

o8

Webster City, IA: Subdivision Development
Needing homesites and faced with a lack of interested or
capable developers, Webster City developed the high-
ly successful Brewer Creek Estates subdivision as a city
project. The existing lots are almost fully built out and
the city is looking to expand the development.

Dodge City, KS - Infrastructure Development
Dodge City has successfully used a Kansas program
called Rural Housing Incentive District to develop infra-
structure without relying entirely on private financing or
special assessment. Structured much like a TIF district,
it reduces the lot cost and has been an essential tool for
development of lots and housing in general for Dodge
City.






Carroll County Communities (outside of the City of Carroll)

For many of Carroll County’s communities like Manning, a
scarcity of lots is the greater issue. For some communities
including Glidden, Templeton, Breda and Coon Rapids, the
city or economic development groups have taken the lead to
develop lots. Many of these techniques have been successful.
Approaches in these communities have included the use of
TIF, community development organizations, and direct lot de-
velopment by the city.

Most of these communities have rightly not been concerned
about recovering the cost of the lot but rather see the long
term tax and community benefit to adding housing.

Based on the market analysis conducted in Chapter 2, many
of the county’s communities have a shortage of moderate

to higher market rate housing. For many small communities,
the biggest hurdle to getting this housing built is the need
for lots. It should be noted that it is unlikely that new lots will
create much of a filtering effect in the smaller communities
but will attract new residents. Senior housing, discussed be-
low may create a greater filtering effect. Rather than pushing
housing priced below $200,000, Carroll’s smaller communi-
ties may want to consider:

» Strong marketing plans that may combine efforts of
several communities, letting residents in the region
know that lots are available

» Requiring or seeking out a developer interested in doing
attached units or a small four-plex rental project on a
city lot or infill lot

» Leveraging a county-wide lending consortium
or housing trust fund to assist developers with
development costs

Chapter 4 Directions Forward

Senior Housing

During discussions with almost every community, the lack of
housing that seniors and empty-nesters would find appealing
was frequently noted. It was also observed that many of these
units would be appealing to young-childless professionals.
Carroll County offers an excellent environment for seniors and
empty-nesters, including regional medical services and a vi-
brant social community. In 2010, 31% of Carroll County's pop-
ulation was over the age 55. This population will only continue
to grow as the youngest Baby Boomers turn 55 in the com-
ing years. Figure 4.1 illustrates the growing number of emp-
ty-nesters and seniors both due to aging Baby Boomers and
in-migration. Specifically:

» To determine how older adults moved into and out of
the county, the population over the age of 55 predicted
by natural population change (based on survival rates
determined by the Bureau of the Census) is compared
with the county's actual 2010 population

» The difference between the actual and the projected
shows a net migration

» Between 2000 and 2010 the county experienced an in-
migration of approximately 14%

If the migration rates of the 2000s are applied to a 2025 pro-
jected population:

» The county would have almost 7,600 residents over the
age of 55.

» If the average household size among this population
ranges between two and 1.25, they would account for
4,660 households.

» If just 1% to 0.5% of these households demand
alternative independent housing settings, a demand for
38 units would be created

2010 PREDICTED 2010 ACTUAL

Population 55-64 2,500 2,545
Population 65-74 1,563 1,676
Population 75 and Over 2,093 2,198
Total 55 and Over 6,156 6,419

Source: U.S. Census Bureau; RDG Planning & Design

DIFFERENCE % DIFFERENCE

45 1.8%
n3 7.2%
105 5.0%
263 14.0%

99





Carroll Area Development Corporation

2: Projected Senior Population by Cohorts, Carroll County

2025 2000-2010 2025

PROJECTION MIGRATION POPULATION
(NATURAL FACTOR WITH

CHANGE) MIGRATION
55-64 2,628 1.79% 2,675
65-74 2,626 7.21% 2,815
75 and Over 2,043 5.0% 2,146
Total 55 and Over 7,297 7,636

Source: RDG Planning & Design

For many of the communities, a smaller townhome or sin-
gle-family attached project might make a significant differ-
ence in the overall housing market. By providing independent
living options for seniors, retirees, or empty-nesters a quality
entry level or family-sized home is often also brought to the
market. As noted above Carroll County is a very appealing
market and may attract residents from a larger region with
the right product. These units would be low maintenance and
designed with accessibility in mind, often referred to as uni-
versal design, allowing seniors to remain in their home com-
munities for longer.

Different approaches can be taken to address this market
need.

» Using many of the techniques outlined above, lots or
redevelopment sites can be designated for housing
types that would be more appealing to seniors. These
should include units with common maintenance, smaller
square footage, and universal design standards. The
cities or county may have to recruit and work with
outside developers to promote these types of projects.

» Additional assisted living may be needed in Carroll.
Efforts should be made to reach out to developers that
specialize in these types of units. These need to be
balanced against the overall supply across the county
including some of the newer units in Manning.

» Affordability problems are often most severe among
fixed-income elderly. The cities should continue to
work closely with residents to identify programs and
needs among the elderly population, and to investigate
innovative approaches to developing affordable
senior housing. Under one concept, the housing
development corporation could purchase the resident’s
existing house for rehabilitation and resale to a young
household, and apply all or part of the purchase
proceeds to rent or equity in the new senior setting.
This combines the purchase/rehab/resale program with
a senior oriented development.

100

HOUSEHOLD CAPTURE

PEOPLEPER UNIT DEMAND
HOUSEHOLD DEMAND RATE
2.00 1,338 1.0-5.0% 13 -67
175 1,609 1.0% - 5.0% 16- 80
1.25 1,716 0.5% 9
4,663 38-156

» Downtown living can also be a great option for empty-
nesters and newly retired professionals. The demand
for this type of unit by the nation’'s aging Baby Boomers
is only growing. These more “urban” settings allow
for low maintenance and high access to community
amenities. These units are not necessarily marketed to
this demographic but provide one more option within
the overall market.






Chapter 4 Directions Forward

101






2R 2 R

WHAT IS TAX INCREMENT FINANCING?
Questions and Answers About TIF

Robert E. Josten
Dorsey & Whitney
801 Grand Avenue, Suite 3900
Des Moines, Iowa 50309
(515) 283-1000
josten.robert@dorsey.com

What is tax increment financing?

Tax increment financing is a method of reallocating property tax revenues which are produced as a
result of an increase in taxable valuation above a "base valuation" figure within a tax increment
area. Until the tax increment debt within an area has been repaid, tax revenues produced by
property tax levies imposed on the increased taxable valuation by a city, county, school district,
area school or any other taxing jurisdiction are all allocated back to the city or county which has
established the tax increment area, and must be spent by that jurisdiction for projects within that

area.
What is the statutory authority for tax increment financing?

Chapter 403 of the Code of Towa, the Urban Renewal Law. Major amendments to Chapter 403
were enacted in 1994 which changed many tax increment requirements as of January 1, 1995.
Most of these are discussed below, along with later amendments which made it more possible for
cities and counties to use tax increment revenues to finance public improvements related to private

housing development.

Which jurisdictions may create tax increment financing areas?

Both cities and counties may exercise general tax increment powers.
Why do cities or counties create tax increment financing areas?

Tax increment financing areas are created as a means to maximize property tax dollars within
particular areas, in order to pay the cost of public improvement projects (streets, water, sewer, etc.)
or to make direct economic development grants or loans to private enterprise as an incentive to
locate within the tax increment financing area. The funds must be spent within the area and may
not be used by cities or counties to supplement their general operations.

What is the difference between tax abatement and tax increment financing?

Property tax abatement (authorized by both Chapter 404 and Chapter 427B of the Code of Jowa)
provides an incentive for property owners to make improvements to property by exempting the
resulting increase in valuation from property taxation for a period of time. The new valuation is
"abated” and is, therefore, not subject to tax. Under tax increment financing, all increases in value
are subject to the total consolidated property tax levies of all local taxing jurisdictions, but those
revenues which are produced from the increased (or incremental) valuation are allocated back to
the city or county which has established the tax increment area, and those revenues must be spent

for projects within the tax increment area.

-1-






10.

11.

May cities or counties have both tax abatement and tax increment areas?

Yes, but, as explained above, the concepts are basically contrary to each other and should be
combined only after careful planning and consideration. For example, it will be difficult to repay
tax increment debt if all the potential incremental value has been abated.

What is the process for establishing an urban renewal/tax increment financing area and obtaining
TIF revenues?

a. identify the boundaries or legal description of the proposed area

b. determine if the conditions in the area qualify the area to be designated a "slum,”
"blighted” or "economic development” area, as defined in Chapter 403

prepare an urban renewal plan outlining objectives to be accomplished within the area

set a date for a public hearing by the City Council or Board or Supervisors

refer plan to the local plan and zoning commission for review

send a copy of the plan and the notice of hearing to- each of the other affected taxing
entities (counties, local schools and area colleges) and schedule a date and time for a
"consultation session” with those other affected taxing entities

hold public hearing

adopt resolution approving urban renewal plan

adopt ordinance designating tax increment area

incur debt (see question 15)

file annual TIF debt certification with county auditor

e oo

S

Must a city or a county receive permission from any other governmental entity before establishing
a tax increment area?

No, under most circumstances. However, a city must receive permission from a county in order to
include property in a city tax increment area which is located up to two miles outside its city
limits, and a county must receive permission from a city in order to include property in a county
tax increment area which is located within two miles of a city's boundaries. In addition, a city or
county is required to notify other taxing jurisdictions of its intent fo create or amend a tax
increment area and to give those jurisdictions an opportunity to comment on a proposed tax
increment plan (see 7f above). There is no sign-off required by any State agency for the
establishment of a tax increment area.

Are there any restrictions on types of property that may be included in an urban renewal area?

No, any category of real property may be included in an urban renewal area, but owners of
agricultural land, as defined in Section 403.17 of the Code of Iowa, must give specific permission
before that land may be made part of a city or county urban renewal area.

What is the "base valuation" date for a tax increment area?

The "base valuation" date is the starting point from which incremental value is calculated. For tax
increment areas created prior to January 1, 1995, the base valuation date is January 1 of the
calendar year prior to the year in which the tax increment designation ordinance was adopted. For
plans approved after January 1, 1995, the base valuation date is January 1 of the calendar year
prior to the year in which tax increment debt is first certified to the county auditor.

What is the formula for determining the amount of incremental value which exists within a tax
increment area?

D






12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Incremental values are determined each year by subtracting the taxable valuation which existed on
the base valuation date from the taxable valuation on the most recent tax roll. That difference is

the incremental value.
How are annual tax increment revenues determined?

The amount of incremental valuation is multiplied by the consolidated property tax levy (city,
county, school district, area college). The revenues produced from local debt service levies must
be subtracted, because these are returned to each taxing jurisdiction in order to pay outstanding
general obligation debt, and these revenues do not become part of the tax increment revenues. In
addition, regular and voter-approved school physical plant and equipment (PPEL) levies are also
subtracted and do not become part of the TIF revenues. The remaining revenues are allocated to
the city or county which has established the tax increment area.

‘What are the time limits on the collection and use of tax increment revenues?

For all tax increment areas established prior to January 1, 1995, and for areas established after
January 1, 1995, based on a finding of slum or blight, there is no statutory limit on the period of
time for which the revenues may be collected and used. For areas established after January 1,
1995, based on a designation of economic development, tax increment revenues may be collected
for no more than twenty years. For housing projects in economic development areas, there is a
basic ten year limit, which may be increased to fifteen years (see next question).

‘What are the restrictions on the use of tax increment financing to assist in the development of new
housing?

For tax increment areas established on a finding of slum or blight (see Question 7 above), there are
no restrictions. With some minor exceptions, for tax increment areas established on an economic
development finding, tax increment revenues may be used to finance the cost of public
improvements related to housing, without regard to the cost of the homes or the income levels of
the ultimate owners. However, an amount of funds equal to a certain percentage of the tax
increment revenues that benefit a project must be used by the city or county to provide assistance
related to housing for families whose incomes do not exceed 80% of the median income in the
county. These funds for low and moderate assistance are not restricted to being spent inside the
tax increment area but may be spent anywhere in the city or county. For cities or counties above
15,000 population, tax increment revenues from these projects may not be collected for more than
ten years. For cities or counties under 15,000 population, collection may be possible for fifteen
years, if all other affected taxing entities agree to the extension of time.

How can tax increment projects be financed?

Various types of debt are possible, including general obligation debt, pure tax increment revenue
debt, internal loans between governmental funds and “rebate agreements”, in which all or a
portion of annual tax increment revenues are paid back fo developers. Rebate agreements are

particularly useful for residential developments.

Does debt payable from incremental taxes count against a city’s or county’s constitutional debt
limit?

Yes, it does. While Section 403.9 of the Code of Iowa contains language which states that such
debt does not count against a constitutional debt limit, the ITowa Supreme Court ruled in 1975 that
tax increment debt must be counted against a city’s or county’s constitutional debt limitation.
However, if an “annual appropriation” clause is included in a bond issuance resolution or a rebate
agreement, only annual payment amounts must be counted against a constitutional debt limit.

3.






17.
18. Q:
A
19. Q:
A
20.
21.
A:
22.
A:

How does tax increment financing affect local school districts?

First, all debt service tax levies, as well as regular and voter-approved physical plant and
equipment (PPEL) tax levies, are “protected,” which means that funds produced from those levies
go to the school district and do not become tax increment revenues. Second, because of the state
foundation aid program that funds a portion of each local school district’s general operating
budget, only school districts that have significant general fund tax levies above $5.40 per $1,000
of valuation are likely to be seriously affected by a city or county tax increment financing district.

May urban renewal/tax increment areas be expanded or combined with other areas, and, if so,
what are the implications for the original area?

New property may be added to existing urban renewal/tax increment areas, and separate areas may
be combined or consolidated. It is not necessary that the new property be contiguous to the
existing urban renewal area. The same process must be followed as that for creating the original
area, including hearing and consultation session with other taxing entities. The areas which are
added will be subject to the statutory rules in effect on the date that they are added, but the original
district will not be affected. The property which is added will probably have a different base
valuation date than the base valuation date for the original district.

If a city or county has several separate urban renewal areas, may funds from any area be spent in
any other area?

Assuming that tax increment areas have not been combined or consolidated, as discussed above,
and that the city or county wants its urban renewal areas to remain legally separate, funds must be
spent within the boundaries of the urban renewal area from which they are derived, and, if there is
more than one urban renewal area, the funds from one area may not be spent within another area.

Is interest on tax increment debt exempt from federal or state income taxes?

Depending upon the purposes for which the funds are expended, interest income on tax increment
debt may be exempt from federal income taxation, as well as from state income taxation. If funds
are used to make an economic development loan and/or if security is provided by a private
enterprise, in the form of, for example, a minimum assessment agreement, or if TIF funds are not
used for public improvements, the interest income may not be exempt from federal taxation, but it

may still qualify for state tax exemption.
May cities establish tax increment areas outside their city limits?

Cities may include property located up to two miles outside their city limits in tax increment areas,
but only after obtaining the consent of the County Board of Supervisors and any owners of

agricultural land.
What are the limitations on the establishment of county tax increment areas?

County boards of supervisors may establish tax increment areas for projects in any area which is at
least two miles outside the city limits of any city. In addition, with the agreement of a city council,
a county board of supervisors may also establish a tax increment area within two miles of the city

limits of a city, or inside the city.






PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT

(Questions and Answers about lowa law)

Robert E. Josten
Dorsey & Whitney LLP
801 Grand Avenue, Suite 3900
Des Moines, Iowa 50309
(515) 283-1000
josten.robert@dorsey.com

Q: What is property tax abatement?

A: It is a way in which city councils may give property owners an incentive to
improve property by providing an exemption from property taxes for all or a portion of
the increase in property valuation which occurs from new construction or improvements
to existing buildings.

Q: What is the statutory authority for property tax abatement?

A: Property tax abatement may be implemented only in accordance with the statutory
provisions of either Chapter 427B (Industrial Property Exemption) or Chapter 404
(Urban Revitalization Act) of the Code of Iowa.

Q: What is the primary difference between the two state statutes?

A: Chapter 427B is applicable to the entire City, but it authorizes abatement only for
warehousing, research facilities and industrial properties and limits benefits to a five-year
sliding scale, ranging from 75% in the first year to 15% in the fifth year. Chapter 404 is
applicable in any parts of the City which have been specifically designated by the
Council for tax abatement, and it authorizes abatement for all types of residential,
commercial or industrial properties, with abatement schedules which vary depending on

the type of property, as discussed below.

Q: What is the process by which either statute is implemented?

A: Chapter 427B abatement requires only a public hearing and adoption of an
ordinance by the Council. Chapter 404 abatement requires much more Council action,
beginning with a determination of the portions of the City in which property will be
eligible for abatement; the development of an “urban revitalization plan” for those areas,
including benefit schedules for various types of property; mailing of notice of the public
hearing to all property owners in the affected portions of the City and publication of the
notice at least 30 days before the hearing; adoption of the plan by resolution and
designation of the areas of the City by ordinance.

Q: What does Chapter 404 provide for commercial and industrial properties?
A: A maximum of 100% abatement for three years, or a sliding scale abatement for
ten years, ranging from 80% in the first year to 20% in the tenth year.






Q: What does Chapter 404 provide for residential properties?

A: The benefits vary, depending upon the type of qualification of the area in which
benefits are provided. For an area which meets the criteria of “blight” similar to the
urban renewal law, or of historic preservation, residential property new construction may
qualify for as much as 100% abatement for ten years. Improvements to existing property
are also given special treatment up to a maximum of $20,000. For an area which meets
the criteria of “economic development area” as defined in the urban renewal law, these
same benefits are available, but only if the residential property is occupied by families of
low and moderate income (80% or less of the median income in the county). For an area
which meets the criteria of “appropriate for public improvements related to housing and
residential development,” abatement benefits are limited to 100% of the first $75,000 of

value added, for five years.

Q: Must an urban revitalization plan under chapter 404 cover the entire City?

A: No. Because it can be difficult to meet the “blight” criteria necessary for
eligibility of many areas, most cities have tried to focus abatement for residential
purposes on improvements to homes in already developed areas and construction of new
homes on vacant lots. With respect to new residential development, most cities have
chosen to meet the criteria related to an area appropriate for public improvements related
to housing and residential development, thereby giving 100% abatement to the first
$75,000 of new value, for a maximum of five years.

Q: Must a city follow the statutory abatement schedules without change?

A: No, a city may provide any amount of abatement up to the maximum amount
allowed under a particular statutory schedule, but a city may not provide abatement in
excess of the maximums allowed by statute.

Q: What is the difference between property tax abatement and tax increment
financing?
A: With abatement, the valuation related to the new construction or improvement is

kept off the tax rolls for a period of time, thereby reducing the amount of property taxes
to be paid by the property owner. With tax increment, the new valuation is subject to
taxation, but most of the revenues produced by the taxes levied against that valuation by
the city, county and school district are allocated back to the City as tax increment
revenues, and may be used for economic development activities. Abatement provides a
direct benefit to the person who is ultimately responsible for paying the property taxes;
increment provides new revenues to be used by the City for public improvements and
facilities, as well as incentives to developers.






Workforce Housing Tax Credits - Iowa Economic Development https://www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.con/WHTC

I WA

economic development

WORKFORCE HOUSING TAX CREDITS

ASSISTING CONSTRUCTION OR REHABILITATION OF
HOUSING IN COMMUNITIES WITH WORKFORCE

HOUSING NEEDS

This program provides tax benefits to developers to provide housing in lowa
communities, focusing especially on those projects using abandoned, empty or

dilapidated properties.
e Total program benefits limited to $1 million per project

e The tax incentives include a refund of sales, service or use taxes paid during

construction

e Developers may receive a state investment tax credit of up to 10% of the investment
directly related to the construction or rehabilitation of the housing. The state

investment tax credit is fully transferable.
o If the project has any funding from tax credits, grants or forgivable loans, these

funds cannot be included for purposes of calculating the investment tax credit

e The tax credit is based on the new investment used for the first $150,000 of value

for each home or unit

e This tax credit is earned when the home or unit is certified for occupancy and can
be carried forward for up to five additional years or until depleted, whichever occurs

first
Eligibility
e Projects must meet one of four criteria:

o Housing development located on a grayfield or brownfield site

o Repair or rehabilitation of dilapidated housing stock

of 2 04/20/2017 11:48 AM






Workforce Housing Tax Credits - lowa Economic Development https://www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/WHTC

o Upper story housing development
o New construction in a greenfield (community with demonstrated workforce

housing needs)

e Developer must build or rehabilitate at least four single-family homes or at least one
multi-family building containing three or more units or at least two upper story units

e Total project costs may not exceed $200,000 per unit for new construction or
$250,000 per unit for historic rehabilitation

e The housing project must be completed within three years of award

How to Apply
e Download the application instructions

e Visit iowagranis.gav to apply

External Links

e Workioroe Housing Tax Incentive Program administyative rules

of 2 04/20/2017 11:48 AM






Code Enforcement and Rental Housing Information

Most localities maintain code enforcement programs to ensure the safety and welfare of their citizens.
Traditionally, these programs, like here in Carroll, are complaint-based; that is, in response to a
resident complaint about a substandard housing condition, a municipal code enforcement officer will
conduct a housing inspection and, if the complaint is substantiated, the officer will begin enforcement

proceedings.

Proactive rental inspection (PRI) programs are different. Under a PRI program, most covered rental
units are inspected on a periodic basis to ensure all rental housing is safe and habitable, and that
property values in the surrounding area are maintained. Typically, inspections take place at designated
intervals, though they may also be triggered by an event, such as a change in tenancy. While the
hallmark of proactive rental inspection programs is that inspections are not complaint-based, localities
with proactive rental inspection programs generally conduct complaint-based inspections too.






Please use the following list as a helpful guide as to how the City of Fort Dodge
would define “in good repair”. This guide is intended to help reduce the number

of inspections performed on your property. Please keep in mind, this is a
general list, and is not all-inclusive.

“In good repair / safe condition / working order” is being defined by the City of

Fort Dodge as follows:

O
¢]
(o]

o

0O 0 000 o0

o 0O O O

0 0 0. 0

sidewalks — No trip hazards, appropriate width, minimal cracking
Driveways — No trip hazards, minimal cracking, no large potholes
Porches — Securely attached to the building, no rotten wood, no bare

wood .
Stoops & Outside Stairs — No loose steps, no rotten wood, no crumbled

coricrete
Balconies & Railings — Securely attached to building, no loose railings or

spindles

Garages & Utility Sheds — No holes in the walls or roof, doors are capable
of being opened and closed securely, seems structurally strong

Decks — No rotten wood, all decking and railings securely fastened
Fences — No holes in the fencing, no loose boards or loose. metal wiring
Roof & Chimney — no holes in roof, no leaks '

Exterior Walls — No peeling paint, no missing siding

- Trim, Fascia, & Soffit — No bare wood, no rotten wood,-no holes ,
‘Windows — No cracked or broken window panes, must be capable of being

closed securely, at least one window in each room must open
Doors — Must close securely, no holes or broken jambs

-Foundation — no open cracks or holes

Electrical Service - no exposed wiring |
Kitchen — No holes in walls or floor covering, cupboards attached securely,

appropriate food preparation area, no peeling paint - . ~

Living/dining room — No holes in-walls or floor covering, no peeling paint
Bedrooms — No holes in walls-or fleor covering, no peeling paint

Bathroom — No holes in walls or floor covering, no peeling paint
Stairways — No loose steps, no-loose railings or spindles, no loose floor

" coverings

Floor Coverings — No holes, no loose coverings that pose a trip hazard






City of Fort Dodge Owner/Tenant
Inspection Form

Inspection Addréss

Exterior
. No rubbish or garbage on outside property
. Proper ground cover (grass/weeds) - mowed to less than 10 inches

1
2
3. No obvious pest infestation

4. Porches, Stoops, Stairs, Balconies, & Railings in good repair

5. Garages, Utility Sheds, Decks, Fences, & Swimming Pools in good repair
6. Address numbers clearly visible from the street

7. Roof and chimney do not leak and look to be in good repair

8. Walls and Tritm in good repair

9. Windows & Doors in good repair

10. Foundation in good repair (no large holes)

Cormmon Areaé/Utilities

11. Electrical Service in good repair
12, Electrical Outlets, Light Switches, and Light Fixtures in proper working order

13. Basement has a smoke detector and a light

14, Water heater producés hot water
15, Heating system in proper working order - maintains temp at 68 degrees minimum

16. Plumbing fixtures(including drains) are in proper working order
17. No obvious pest infestation

Living Areas

18. All exterior doors have working locks

19. All windows within 8' of ground level have window locks

20. There are smoke detectors on each level

21. Kitchen has working electrical outlets -

22. Living room/dining room each have working electrical outlets
23. Each bedroom has a working smoke detector and working outlets
24. Bathroom has working light and electrical outlet

25. Stairways have handrails/guards, are lighted, & in good repair
26, All floor coverings are in safe condition

27. All living areas are sanitary and free of garbage and/or rubbish

O.K.

N.A.

Tenant Sighature Dale

Date

Properly Owner/Manager Signature






City of Fort Dodge
RENTAL HOUSING INSPECTION DIVISION
Municipal Building, 819 1° Avenue South, Fort Dodge, Iowa 50501

ID NO.

Owner Manager
FIRST NAME LAST NAME FIRST NAME LAST NAME
MAILING ADDRESS MAILING ADDRESS
CITY STATE ZiP CODE CITY STATE ZIP CODE
Rental Address # Units
HOUSE NUMBER STREET

Rental Housing Registration

This Registration does not indicate or imply that the above property is in compliance or
conformance with any requirements of the Fort Dodge Housing Code or any other Code
or Ordinance of the CITY OF FORT DODGE, IOWA, except registration.

The registrant is hereby informed that an inspection of the above property will be
conducted pursuant to the standard inspection schedule within the next three years and
thirty day notice thereof, which will be mailed to you at the address listed above.

The undersigned owner/applicant hereby and herewith consents to the inspection of the
above-described rental property for the purpose of Certification by the City of Fort
Dodge Housing Inspector(s) pursuant to Section [V of Ordinance No. 2079 of the
ordinances of the City of Fort Dodge, lowa.

Owner or Operator Signature Phone Number Date

Stacey Hamilton
Received By Date

Rental Housing Inspection Division
819 1% Avenue South, Fort Dodge, lowa 50501 ¢ Phone: (515) 576-3601 ¢ Fax: (515) 576-5270






Property Owner/Agent

CITY OF FORT DODGE
RENTAL HOUSING INSPECTION FORM

Owner's

Inspection Address
Exterior

1. No accumulation of rubbish or garbage on premises [307]

2. Proper ground cover (grass/weeds) shall not exceed 10
inches in height [302.4]

3. Infestation [308.1]

4. Sidewalks, driveway, porches, stoops, stairs, balconies,
and railings shall be in good repalr/painted [304.10}

5. Garages, utility sheds, decks fences, and swimming pools
shall be in good repair [304.10]

8. Every dwelling shall have address numbers at least four
inches high, visible from the street {304.3]

7. Roof and chimney shall be well maintained [304.7.11]

8. Walls, trim, fascia, and soffit shall be maintained/painted
[304.2 & 6]

9, All windows and doors shall be in sound condition. No
cracked or broken glass [304.18,304.13,302.2]

10. Foundation walls shall be free of cracks [302.2]

Common Areal/Utilities
14, Minimum 60 amp/240 volt service required [604]

12. All electrical outlets, switches, and light fixtures shall be

in proper working order and covered. Laundry facilities shall
have one grounded electrical outlet or a ground fault circuit

interrupter [605}

3. All basements shall have a smoke detectorand a
luminaire [704,605]

14, Water heater: vent, PRV with discharge pipe,
min. 110°

15. Heating system shall be properily installed, and be in
good working order, and be capable of maintaining a
temperature of 68°

16. Downspouts, fooling drains, and sump pumps
shall not be connected to the sanitary sewer
systemn FDMC [13.24.120]

17. Water supply lines, plumbing fixtures, vents,
and drains shall be properiy installed and in good

working order [505]

Address Phone #
Approved? Living Area Apt# Approved?
YES NO YES NO

18. Exterior doors must have locks/deadbolts. All exit doors
shall be openable from the inside without the use of keys

[304.1]

18. Operable windows located in whole or in part within 6

feet of ground level or walking surface shall be equipped

with a window sash locking device [304.18.2]

20. Smoke detectors shall be installed on each level [704]

21. Kitchen - general condition: walls, doors, floors, 7'

ceiling, sink, food prep space [305] , Appliances, luminaire,

2 receptacles [404,605]

22. Livingroomydining: walls, floors, doors, ventilation,
window(s), ceiling 7', 2 electrical receplacles, luminaire

[305,605]

23a. Bedroom___; smoke detector (inside & out) [704],

egress [702], walls floors, door(s), window(s), celling 7,

adequate size room, 2 electrical receptacles [305,404,608)

23b. Bedroom___; smoke detector (inside & out) {704],

egress [702], walls floors, door(s), window(s), ceiling 7',
adequate size room, 2 electrical receptacles [305,404,605)

23c, Bedroom___: smoke detector {inside & out) [704],
egress [702], walls floors, door(s), window(s), ceiling 7',

adequate size room, 2 electrical receptacles [305,404,605]

24, Bathroom: ventilation, privacy, access, stool, lavatory,

tub or shower, plumbing, electrical receptacle, and iuminaire

[403.3,503,404.4,3,502.1,504,605]

25. Stairs, hall(s), handrails, guards. Properly installed and
maintained luminaire, free of materials which could impede

an exit {305,306,605,702]
Remarks:
PASS
NO PASS
NO SHOW
Inspected by: Date:

The Clty of Fort Dodge makes no warranly with regard to the mallers noled herein. The City merely certifies that an inspeclion has
. been made and no apparent code violations have been detecled.

White Copy - Gity of Fort Dodge

Yellow Copy - Inspector Pink Copy - Property Ownel’






CITY OF FORT DODGE
RENTAL HOUSING INSPECTION FORM

Multi-family Dwelling

Owner's
Property Owner/Agent Address Phone #
Inspection Address
Living Area Apt# Approved? Living Area Apt# Approved?
YES NO YES NO

18, Exterior doors must have locks/deadbolts. All exit doors
shall be openable from the inside without the use of keys

[304.1]

18, Operable windows located in whole or in part within 6
feet of ground level or walking surface shall be equipped
with a window sash locking device [{304.18.2]

20. Smoke detectors shall be installed on each level [704]

21, Kitchen - general condition: walls, doors, floors, 7'
ceiling, sink, food prep space [305] , Appliances, luminaire,
2 receptacles [404,605]

22. Livingroom/dining: walls, floors, doors, ventilation,
window(s), ceiling 7', 2 electrical receptacles, luminaire

[305,605]

23a. Bedroom___: smoke detector (inside & out) [704],
egress [702), walls floors, door(s), window(s), ceiling 7',
adequate size room, 2 electrical receptacles [305,404,605]

23b. Bedroom___; smoke deteptor (inside & out) [704],
egress [702}, walls floors, door(s), window(s), ceiling 7',
adequate size room, 2 electrical receptacles [305,404,605]

23c. Bedroom___: smoke detector (inside & out) [704},

egress [702], walls floors, deor(s), window(s), ceiling 7',
adequate size room, 2 electrical receptacles {305,404,605]

24. Bathroom: ventilation, privacy, access, stool, lavatory,
tub or shower, plumbing, electrical receptacle, and luminaire
[403.3,503,404.4.3,502.1,504,605]

25. Stairs, hall(s), handrails, guards. Properly installed and
maintained luminaire, free of materials which could impede

an exit [305,306,605,702]

Remarks:

Inspected by:

Date:

18, Exterior doors must have locks/deadbolts. All exit doors
shall be openable from the inside without the use of keys
[304.1}

18. Operable windows located in whole or in part within 6
feet of ground leve! or walking surface shall be equipped
with a window sash locking device [304.18.2]

20. Smoke detectors shall be installed 6n each level [704]

21. Kitchen - general condition: walls, doors, floors, 7*
ceiling, sink, food prep space [305] , Appliances, luminaire,
2 receptacles [404,605]

22, Livingroom/dining: walls, floors, doors, ventilation,
window(s), celling 7', 2 electrical receptacles, luminaire
(305,605

23a. Bedroom___! smoke detector (inside & out) [704],
egress [702], walls floors, door(s), window(s), ceiling 7',
adequate size room, 2 electrical receptacles [305,404,605]

23b, Bedroom____: smoke detector (inside & out) [704],
egress [702), walls floors, door(s), window(s), ceiling 7',
adequate size room, 2 electrical receptacles [305,404,605]

23c. Bedroom___: smoke detector (inside & out) [704],
egress [702], walls floors, door(s), window(s), ceiling 7',
adequate size room, 2 electrical receptacles [305,404,605]

24. Bathroom: ventilation, privacy, access, stool, lavatory,
tub or shower, plumbing, electrical receptacle, and luminaire
{403.3,503,404.4.3,502.1,504,605]

25, Stairs, hall(s), handrails, guards, Properly installed and
maintained luminaire, free of materials which could impede

an exit [305,306,605,702]

Remarks:

Inspected by: Date:

The Cily of Fort Dodge makes no warranty with regard to the matlers noted herein. The City merely cerifies that an inspection has
. been made and no apparent code violations have been delected.

White Copy - City of Fort Dodge

Yetlow Copy - Inspeclor

Pink Copy - Property Owner






CITIZEN’S HOUSING COMPLAINT

Date:

Address of Property:

Nature of Complaint:

Complainant’s Name: Phone:

Complainant’s Address:

Landlord’s Name: Phone:

Landlord’s Address:

(Tenant: please fill out only the top portion of this form. The information below the dotted line is for the inspector to fill out)

Inspector’s Findings:

Orders Issued (date):

Due Date:

Referrals Made: Electrical
Plumbing/Heating
Health
Other

Inspector






City of Waverly
CITY OF Community Development
200 1°* Street NE

Waverly, 1A 50677
RENTAL HOUSING REGISTRATION APPLICATION (319) 352-9208

Rental Property Address # of Units

List each unit number (i.e 1A and 1B)

Date of Application / / New Rental Registration
OR

Update Information

OWNER INFORMATION
(f different than Responsible Local Manager)
Name: Phone:
Address: Cell:
Email:

If provided, we'll use email for routine notifications and information.

RESPONSIBLE LOCAL MANAGER

This person is authorized to act on behalf of the owner concerning all matters of compliance with local ordinances and to
receive all communications from the City and to respond on behalf of the owner.

Name: Phone:
Address: Cell:
Email:

If provided, we’ll use email for routine notifications and information.

REGISTRATION FEE: $20 PER STRUCTURE AND $3 PER ADDITIONAL UNIT (No fee for updating
information). Please make checks payable to: City of Waverly

Send payment with completed
registration form to:

City of Waverly Signature of Owner or Responsible Local Manager (Required)
Community Development & Zoning

PO Box 616 *| certify that this information is true and complete to
Waverly, 1A 50677 the best of my knowledge and that | have read a copy

of the City of Waverly, Rental Housing Code provided
on our website at www.waverlyia.com/rental. )

[:] Check this box if you are willing to participate as a landlord participant for mediations involving
other landlord violations (§91.9).

For Office Use Only: Cash OR Check (ck # ) Amount $ Permit # -






CITY OF City of W.averly
Community Development

W“ I ]: R L ! RENTAL HOUSING SELF-INSPECTION CHECKLIST 200 1* Street NE

Waverly, 1A 50677
(319) 352-9208

SEPARATE CHECKLIST FOR EACH UNIT

Property Address (include unit/apt #):

Date of Inspection :

Number of Bedrooms & Size: [11 [J2 [3 4 [s e [7 [Is

g 1% sq.ftofroom 0 5" sq.ftof room
g 2™  sq.ftof room O 6"  sq.ftofroom
O 3% sq.ftofroom 0 7™  sq.ftof room
0 4"  sq.ftofroom O 8" sq.ftofroom

Number of Off-Street Parking Spaces (spaces in garage and on parking surfaces — NOT grass):
Please fill out this inspection form for each unit. If filling out for a duplex or multiple dwelling units
building, one checklist for each unit will be required.

For more information regarding egress windows and smoke detectors please review the brochures
provided on our website (www.waverlyia.com/rental).

Check the box next to each item ONLY if the item is in compliance. If an item needs attention, please
state what is to be done and include the date when the item will be in compliance.

1. Dwelling unit has properly operating sanitary facilities.

The bathroom has a flush toilet in proper operating
condition located in a private room.

3. The dwelling unit has a properly operating sink and
shower or tub with hot and cold running water.

4. The facilities utilize an approved public or private
disposal system

O O o O
N

[1 1. Dwelling unit has suitable space and equipment to store,
prepare and serve food in sanitary manner.

[0 2. Adequate facilities/services for the sanitary disposal of
waste/refuse, dumpsters or garbage receptacles.

[0 3. Dwelling unit has adequate space and utility hook-ups
for oven, stove/range and refrigerator, and equipment is
in properly operating condition if supplied by Landlord.

[0 4. The kitchen has a properly operating sink that has hot
and cold running water that drains in to an approved
public or private system.

Page 1 of 5






1. Dwelling unit contains at least one of each: living room,

CITY OF

City of Waverly
Community Development

RENTAL HOUSING SELF-INSPECTION CHECKLIST 200 1% Street NE
Waverly, IA 50677

(319) 352-9208

kitchen, bathroom and compliant sleeping room.
] 2. Windows and exterior doors that are accessible from the

1. Dwelling unit is capable o maintaining a thermal

outside are capable of being opened and locked.

environment healthy for a human body.
[T 2. Thereis a safe and properly operating system that

provides adequate heat, either directly or indirectly, to
each room.

3. Dwelling unit does not contain unvented room heaters

1. Each room has adequate natural or artificial light.

that burn gas, oil, or kerosene. Electric heaters are
acceptable.

2. Dwelling unit has sufficient electrical sources. The

“electrical fixtures/wiring ensure safety from fire.

3. Atleast one window is in the living room and each

sleeping room, unless egress window is not required.

g O 0O O

4. The kitchen and bathroom each have a permanent,

properly operating ceiling or wall light fixture.

[0 5. The kitchen has at least one properly operating
grounded electrical outlet.
[1 6. The living room and each bedroom have at least two

1. Dwelling unit is structurally sound with no threat to the

properly operating electrical outlets.

O
health and safety of occupants, and will protect the
occupants from the environment and rodents.

0 2. Interior ceilings, walls and floors do not have any serious
defects.

[0 3. Theroofis structurally sound and weather-tight.

[1 4. Exterior wall structure and surfaces do not have any
serious defects (holes, open siding, etc.)

[0 5. Interior and exterior stairs, halls, porches, walkways, etc.
are maintained so there is no danger of tripping and
falling.

[0 6. Handrails are installed on all stairs with four or more
risers.

] 7. Porches and balconies more than 30” high have
guardrails with openings not more than 4” wide.

[0 8. Gutters and downspouts are not missing, loose or

disconnected.

Page 2 of 5






CITY OF City of Wfaverly
Community Development
RENTAL HOUSING SELF-INSPECTION CHECKLIST 200 1* Street NE
Waverly, IA 50677
(319) 352-9208

[0 9. Elevators, if present, must be working and safe.

[1 1. Dwelling unit is free from dangerous levels of air
pollution, carbon monoxide, sewer gas, fuel gas, dust
and other harmful pollutants.

[0 2. Dwelling unit has adequate air circulation.

[1 3. Bathroom has at least one operable window to the
outside or other adequate exhaust ventilation.

0 4. Sleeping rooms have at least one operable window

less no egress window is required

1 1. Dwelling unit is served by an appkryopriate' public or
private, sanitary water supply.

] 1. Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C.
4821-4846), Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C. 4851-4856) and
implementing regulations at part 35, subparts A, B, M
and R of this title apply to dwelling units under this
Code. Pamphlet to be provided to lessee for structures
built prior to 1978. Pamphlet available for download at
www.waverlyia.com or by contacting the Waverly

Community Development Offi

[0 1. Dwelling unit is able to be used/maintained without
unauthorized use of other private properties.

O 2. Building has an alternate means of exit in case of fire
(fire stairs, egress through window).

[0 3. All sleeping rooms above grade have an operable egress
window for escape compliant with size requirements in
building code, unless such room was designed and built
as a sleeping room and was compliant at the time it was
constructed.

[0 4. Sleeping rooms in the basement have operable egress
window(s) compliant with size requirements in the

current building code unless it meets such code because
of sprinkli d of access to the outside

0 1. Dwelling unit and its equipment are in sanitary
condition, and free of vermin and rodent infestation.

[0 2. Garbage and recycling containers are supplied.

Page3 of 5






CITY OF City of Waverly
A ‘ r Community Development
A F R LY RENTAL HOUSING SELF-INSPECTION CHECKLIST 200 1 Street NE
Waverly, IA50677
920

(3

OO0 1. Each dwelling unit has at least one battery-operated or
hard-wired operating smoke detector on each level of
the unit, including basements.

0 2. Smoke detectors are installed in accordance with a meet
the requirements of the National Fire Protection
Association Standard (NFPA) 74 (or its successor
standards). See www.waverlyia.com

O 3. If the dwelling unit is occupied by any hearing-impaired
person, the smoke detectors have an alarm system
designed for hearing-impaired persons as specified in

dards)

0O 1. Sleeping rooms have a minimum ceiling height of 7 feet. \

[0 2. Sleeping rooms occupied by one adult contain a
minimum of 70 square feet, or 120 square feet for room
occupied with two adults.

0 3. No more than two adults in a one-bedroom unit or four
adults in a two-bedroom unit. Units with three
bedrooms or more have no more adults than the
number of sleeping rooms plus one. An adult is someone
who is 18 years or older and not in high school. No

limitation for children.

[T 1. Garages, sheds and other accessory structures are
maintained in good condition.
O 2. Walkways and sidewalks are maintained in good repair.

ck

1. Amaximum of one third of a front yard lot width is used
for required off-street parking (ie: if 66 feet wide, can
use up to 22 feet wide improved parking area).

2. Unit has sufficient off-street parking. Please check

which of the following apply.
O i. Single/duplex dwelling units have a minimum of two spaces for each unit; three spaces for units with three

bedrooms and four spaces for units with four or more bedrooms.

Q ii. Structures with multiple dwelling units have one space for each efficiency (studio) unit; one and one-half space
for each one bedroom unit; two spaces for each two or more bedroom unit.

QO iii. Multiple dwellings for the elderly and disabled have three-quarters space per unit.

[0 3. There is no practical space or alternative for the off-
street parking required [owner may apply to the Board
of Adjustments for a variance of this section. See Section
91.3. (f)]. (Describe hardship)

Page 4 of 5






CITY OF City of W-averly
Community Development

W“ T F R L ! RENTAL HOUSING SELF-INSPECTION CHECKLIST 200 1% Street NE

Waverly, I1A 50677
(319) 352-9208

I certify that I have inspected the aforementioned unit and that the information above is true and
correct to the best of my knowledge.

Phone Number:

Name (Please print):

Relationship to the Property:

Signature: Date:

Page 5 of 5






CITY OF

COMPLAINT ON RENTAL PROPERTY CONDITION

To file a complaint, fill out this form email to zoning@ci.waverly.ia.us or mail to Community
Development, 200 1% Street NE, Waverly, lowa 50677

To: City of Waverly Community Development Office (zoning@ci.waverly.ia.us, 319-352-9208)

House Location/unit number:

Owner/Manager:

Owner/Manager Phone Number:

Occupant:

Occupant Mailing Address:

Occupant Phone Number:

Describe complaint in detail. Include correspondence with owner/manager if available:

Signature of Person Making Complaint:

Printed Name of Person Making Complaint:

Phone Number of Person Making Complaint:

Today’s Date:

Rev. 11/9/15 BK






